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PART I

Cautiott nary Note Regarding Fn orFF ward-Lookingii Statements

This Annual Reporte on Form 10-K includes forward-looking statements wtt ithin the meaning of the Private SecSS urities Litigation
Reforme Act of 1o 995. The words “plan,” “believe,” “may,”yy “could,”ll “will,” “should,”l “would,” “anticipatei ,” “estimate,”
“expect,”t “intend,” “objective,” “seek,”kk “strivtt e” or similar words, or the negative of these words,dd identdd ify forward-lookidd ng
statements.tt Such forward-looking statements are based on certain assumptions and estimates that we consider reasonable but
are subject to various risks and uncertainties and assumptions relating to our operations, financial results, finff ancial conditions,
business, prospects,tt growth strategy and liquidity. Accordingly,ll there are, or will be, important factors that could cause our
actual results to diffeff r materially from those indicated in these statements including, withouttt limitation, those described under
the heading “Risk FacFF tors” in this Aii nnual Reporte on Form 10-K. The inclusion of this fii orwff ard-looking informatff ion should not
be regarded as a representation by us that the future plans, estimates or expecx tations contemplated by ub s will be achieved. Our
actual results could diffeff r materially from the forward-looking statements included herein. These forward-looking statements
are made only as of the date of this document, at nd we do not undertake akk ny obligatii on, other thantt as may be required by
applicable law, tw o updateu or reviseii any forward-looking or cautionary statement to reflect changes in assumptions, the
occurrence of events,tt unanticipatei d or otherwise, or changes in futff ure operating results over time or otherwise. We are
including this Cii autiCC onary Note to make applicable and take akk dvantage of the safe harbor provisions of the Private Securities
Litigatii on Reforme Act of 1o 995 for forward-looking statements. We eWW xpee ressly dll isclaim any obligatii on to update or reviseii any
forward-looking statements after the date of this report as a result of no ew information, future events, or other devdd elopments,
excepte as required by applicable lawsl and regulate ions.

Item 1. Business
The Joy of Krispy Kreme

Krispy Kreme, Inc. (“KKI”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Company” or “Krispy Kreme”) is one of the most beloved
and well-known sweet treat brands in the world. Our iconic Original Glazed® doughnut is universally recognized for its hot-
off-the-line, melt-in-your-mouth experience. Over its 84-year history, Krispy Kreme has developed a broad consumer base
globally and currently operates in over 30 countries through its unique network of fresh Doughnut Shops, partnerships with
leading retailers, and a rapidly growing Ecommerce and delivery business. Our purpose of touching and enhancing lives
through the joy that is KrispyKK Kreme guides how we operate every day and is reflected in the love we have for our people, our
communities, and the planet.

We are a global omni-channel business with more than 10,000 global points of access, creating awesome fresh doughnut
experiences via (1) our Hot Light Theater and Fresh Shops, (2) Delivered Fresh Daily (“DFD”) branded cabinets and
merchandising units within high traffic grocery and convenience stores, (3) Ecommerce and (4) our Branded Sweet Treat Line.
We have a capital-efficient Hub and Spoke model, which leverages our Hot Light Theater Shops’ production capabia lities and
Doughnut Factories to deliver fresh doughnuts daily to local Fresh Shops, DFD Doors, and through Ecommerce channels. We
seek to increase our Sales per Hub through innovation, marketing campaigns and increasing physical availabila ity to our fresh
doughnuts from our Hubsu to new points of access, primarily DFD Doors. Additionally, our convenient Ecommerce platform
and delivery capaa bila ity are significant enablers of our omni-channel growth.

We also launched in mid-2020 our Branded Sweet Treat Line, a new line of Krispy Kreme-branded packaged sweet treats
intended to extend our consumer reach with shelf-stablea , high quality products available through grocery, mass merchandise,
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and convenience locations. In addition to creating awesome doughnut experiences, we create “cookie magic” through Insomnia
Cookies, which specializes in warm, delicious cookies delivered right to the doors of its consumers or “Insomniacs”, along with
an innovative portfolio of cookie cakes, ice cream, cookie-wiches and brownies. Insomnia Cookies is a digital-first concept
with over 40% of its sales driven through Ecommerce in fiscaff l 2021. Targeting affordablea , high-quality emotional indulgence
experiences is at the heart of both the KriKK spy KreK me and Insomnia Cookies brands.

Our current business model, which focuses on fresh daily premium quality doughnuts produced by the capita al-efficient Hub and
Spoke model, primarily via Company controlled shops is in contrast to the Krispy Kreme operating model prior to 2016, which
was focused on retail and legacy wholesale channels (including discounted long shelf-life doughnuts and coffeehouse
execution), a capital-heavy Hot Light Theater Shop production model, and primarily via fraff nchisee controlled shops. We now
focus on limited time offerings (“LTOs”) and seasonal occasions to generate buzz forff our premium products. 96% of net
revenues in fiscal 2021 were fresh sweet treats, the majoa rity being fresh doughnuts, approxia mately 85% of which were shared
with others, and approximately 30% of which were to celebrate a special occasion or event. A taste of our offerings includes:

The Ingredients of Our Success

We operate in the attractive and growing $650 billion global indulgence market. We see consumer preferences in this market
for fresh sweet treats and offering freshness is approxia mately double the importance of any other single ingredient or nutritional
claim in the category. Our strategy is built on our belief that almost all consumers desire an occasional indulgence, and that
when they indulge, they want a high quality, emotionally differentiated experience. To increase consumer access to our fresh
premium products we have a long-term goal of expanding to over 50,000 global points of access, up from our current footprint
of over 10,000. This includes adding more doughnut shops and expanding to more grocery and convenience stores in both
existing and new countries. We are excited for the opportunity to open in at least three new countries in 2022 and expand our
global footff printt for years to come.

We believe the following competitive differentiff ators position us to generate significant growth as we continue towards our goal
of becoming the most loved sweet treat brand in the world.

Beloved Global Brand with Ubiquitous AppA eal

We believe that our brand love and ubiquitous appeal differentiate us from the competition. We believe that Krispy Kreme is an
iconic, globally recognized brand with rich history that is epitomized by our fresh Original Glazed doughnut. We are one of the
most loved sweet treat retailers in the U.S. and many markets around the world. We are the most loved sweet treat brand in
several key countries already in fiscal 2021, such as the U.S., the U.K., Australia, Thailand and Turkey, based on the results of
Krispy Kreme’s Annual Global Brand Tracking Survey conducted by Service Management Group based on over 17,000
consumer responses with Krispy Kreme achieving the highest percentage of consumers indicating they “ten: absolutely love the
brand for sweet treats” on a ten point scale. We have an extremely loyal, energetic, and emotionally connected consumer base.
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We continuously seek to understand what consumers are celebrating or experiencing in their lives and actively engage our
passionate followers to activate this emotional connection through memorablea , sharable moments – our “Acts of Joy” – which
we believe furff ther fuel our brand love. In fiscaff l 2021, Krispy Kreme generated over 40 billion total media impressions, up from
less than two billion media impressions in 2016.

Creatinii g An wesome ExpEE eriences

We provide authentic indulgent experiences, delivering joy through high quality doughnuts made from our own proprietary
formulations. Our strict quality standards and uniform production systems ensure the consumer’s interaction with Krispy Kreme
is consistent with our brand promise, no matter where in the world they experience it. We aim to create product experiences that
align with seasonal and trending consumer interests and make positive connections through simple, frequent, brand-focused
offerings that encourage shared experiences.

We utilize seasonal innovations, alongside the expansion of our core product offering, to inspire consumer wonder and keep our
consumers engaged with the brand and our products. Our sweet treat assortment begins with our iconic Original Glazed
doughnut inspired by our founder’s classic yeast-based recipe that serves as the canvas for our product innovation and ideation.
Using the Original Glazed doughnut as our foundation, we have expanded our offerings to feature everyday classic items such
as our flavor glazes and “minis,” which lend themselves well to gifting occasions such as birthdays and school activities. Our
“Original Filled” rings offer the benefits of a filff led shell doughnut without the mess. Our seasonal items create unique
assortments centered on holidays and events, with Valentine’s Day, St. Patrick’s Day, Easter, the Fourth of July, Halloween,
and Christmas, all examples of holidays for which we routinely innovate. We also maintain brand relevance by participating in
significant cultural moments. We strategically launch offerings tied to these historic moments to gain mind share, grow brand
love, and help drive sales.

Leveraging our Omni-ChanneCC l ModelMM to Expandxx Our Reach

We believe our omni-channel model, enablea d by our Hub and Spoke approach and Ecommerce, allows us to maximize our
market opportunity while ensuring control and quality across our suite of products. Our goal is to provide our fresh doughnuts
to consumers as conveniently and efficiently as possible. We applya a tailored approach across a variety of distinct shop formats
to grow in discrete, highly attractive and diverse markets, and maintain brand integrity and scarcity value while capita alizing on
significant untappeda consumer demand. Many of our shops offer drive-thrus, which also expand their off-premises reach. Our
Hot Light Theater Shops’ production capaca ity allow us to leverage our investment by efficiently expanding to our consumers
wherever they may be — whether in a local Fresh Shop, in a grocery or convenience store, on their commute home or directly
to their doorstep via home delivery.

Hub and Spoke

• Hot Light Theater Shops and other Hubs: Immersive and interactive experiential shops which provide unique and
differentiated consumer experiences while serving as local production facilities forff our network. These locations serve
as Hubs to enablea our Hub and Spoke model and expand our brand’s reach, by supplying fresh doughnuts to other
points of access. Each features our famous glaze waterfalls and “Hot Now” light that communicate the joy and
emotion at the core of our brand. Hot Light Theater Shops are typically destination locations, with over 85% of U.S.
locations featuring drive-thru capabia lity. Our flexible drive-thru model offers a convenient off-premises experience.
We also have smaller Mini Hot Light Theater Shops that serve hot doughnut experiences to high foot fall, urban
locations. In higher density ut rban environments, we also utilize Doughnut Factories to provide fresh doughnuts to
Spoke locations, which include Fresh Shops and DFD Doors. The average capita al investment for a Hot Light Theater
Shop is $2 million to $4 million.

• Fresh Shops: Smaller doughnut shops and kiosks, without manufacturing capabia lities, selling fresh doughnuts
delivered daily from Hub locations. Fresh Shops expand our consumer-serving capaca ity, while maintaining quality and
scarcity value. The average capia tal investment for a Fresh Shop is $0.1 million to $1 million.

• Delivered Fresh Daily: Krispy Kreme branded doughnut cabinea ts within high traffic grocery and convenience
locations, selling fresh doughnuts delivered daily to more than 8,500 doors from Hub locations. Through our DFD
partnerships, we can significantly expand our points of access so that more consumers can experience KrispyK Kreme
doughnuts. These additional Spoke locations further leverage our manufacturing Hub locations, creating greater
system efficiency. Consistent with our commitment to product quality, our current DFD business has been transformed
materially fromff our legacy wholesale model. In 2018, we began strategically exiting unprofitable, low-volume doors
and pivoting towards DFD products offered in branded, in-store cabinea ts. This evolution was largely completed in
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2020 and we believe positions us for strong and sustainable growth in DFD. The average capita al investment for a DFD
Door is $2,000 to $10,000.

• Ecommerce and Delivery: Fresh doughnuts for pickup or delivery, ordered via our branded Ecommerce platforms or
through third-party digital channels. In the U.S. and Canada, our branded Ecommerce platform enables attractive
opportunities like gifting and office catering, further fuelff ing our momentumt across key geographiea s. For fiscal 2021,
17% of our Company-owned sales, inclusive of Insomnia Cookies and exclusive of our Branded Sweet Treat Line and
DFD, were digital and we aim to grow this significantly in the next few years, both domestically and internationally.
We plan to do so by exploring new points forff delivery coverage. After a successful pilot in the U.K. where we have
achieved national delivery crr overage with more than 50 third-party owned facff ilities where we ship fresh doughnuts for
hosting prior to sell-through to the consumer, we are now building up capabia lities in the U.S. and Mexico markets in
2022. This will allow us to expand our Ecommerce capabila ities in a capital-efficient manner.

The Hub and Spoke approach is applied globally and is currently most developed in our international Company-owned
markets such as the U.K., Australia and Mexico. We are in process of applying lessons learned in those international
markets to the U.S., and particularly to expansion in top growth markets such as New York City, Chicago, and Los
Angeles, among others, which we expect to be a significant driver of margin expansion in the U.S., as well as in Canada,
Japan, and in new countries we plan to enter in the future.t

We believe that lack of access is the primary reason consumers do not choose Krispy Kreme-branded products forff their
indulgent treat, based on the results of Krispy KremeK ’s 2021 Annual Global Brand Tracking Survey conducted by Service
Management Group based on over 17,000 consumer responses. Today, we have more than 10,000 global points of access
in more than 30 countries. We plan to open in at least three new countries per year fromff a combination of strategic
franchise partnerships and equity investments in select, key markets. Additionally, we seek to add at least 10% more global
points of access each year, primarily through low cost DFD Doors, and ultimately grow to more than 50,000 points of
access globally to increase our reach through our omni-channel model. Our current and target points of access are less than
5% of the current number of grocery and convenience stores in the countries we operate or have plans to enter in the future,
allowing our brand to remain special and unique.

Brandeddd Sweet TreatTT Lineii

Our Krispy Kreme branded packaged sweet treat line offers a delicious, quality experience free of artificial flavors. This
new line of products is distributed in the U.S. through majora grocery, mass merchandise, and convenience locations,
allowing us to capta uret the sweet snacking occasion for our customers seeking more convenience.

Insomnia Cookies

Our addition of Insomnia Cookies has expanded our sweet treat platform to include a complementary brand rooted in the
belief that indulgent experiences are better enjoyed together. Insomnia Cookies delivers warm, delicious cookies right to
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the doors of individuals and companies alike. We own the night through incredibly craveablea offerings of cookies,
brownies, cookie cakes, ice cream, cookie-wiches and cold milk. In addition to satisfying late night cravings, Insomnia
Cookies delivers the cookie magic across a broad set of daytime occasions, including in-shop, gifting, and catering.
Through its 210 locations as of January 2, 2022, Insomnia Cookies is ablea to deliver locally within 30 minutes while also
expanding its nationwide shipping capabia lities that allows it to deliver next day to more than 95% of addresses in the U.S.
We continue to leverage these digital and internal delivery capabia lities while expanding Insomnia Cookies’ omni-channel
presence, combining both of our strengths to improvem our overall platform.ff

Our Segments

We conduct our business through the following three reported segments:

• U.S. and Canada: Includes all our Krispy Kreme Company-owned operations in the U.S. and Canada, Insomnia
Cookies shops, and the Branded Sweet Treat Line;

• International: Includes all our Krispy Kreme Company-owned operations in the U.K., Ireland, Australia, New
Zealand, and Mexico; and

• Market Development: Includes our franchise operations across the globe, as well as our Company-owned operations
in Japan.

The following tablea presents our global points of access as of January 2, 2022:

Global Points of Access (1)

Hot Light
Theater
Shops Fresh Shops

Cookie
Shops

Carts, Food
Trucks, and
Other DFD Doors Total

Company-
Owned (%)

U.S. and Canada............................ 241 66 210 2 5,204 5,723 100 %
International .................................. 32 370 — 1 2,488 2,891 100 %
Market Development (2) 109 782 — 31 891 1,813 9 %
Total global points of access ....... 382 1,218 210 34 8,583 10,427 84 %

1. Excludes Branded Sweet Treat Line distribution points and legacy wholesale business doors.
2. Includes Japanese locations, which are Company-owned.

Total fiscal 2021 revenue of $1,384.4 million consisted of the following revenue by reporting segment:

Table of Contents

7



The U.S and Canada’s fiscal 2021 revenue of $928.4 million consisted of:

The International segment’s fiscal 2021 revenue of $333.0 million consisted of:

Market Development’s fiscal 2021 revenue of $123.0 million consisted of:
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Our Growth Strategies

We have made investments in our brand, our people and our infrastructuret and believe we are well positioned to drive sustained
growth as we execute on our strategy. Across our global organization, we have built a team of talented and highly engaged
Krispy Kremers and Insomniacs. Over the past several years we have taken increased control of the U.S. operations to enablea
execution of our omni-channel strategy, including accelerating growth across our doughnut shops, DFD, Ecommerce and
Branded Sweet Treat Line. Globally, we have developed an operating model that sets the foundation for continued expansion in
both existing and new geographies. As a result, we believe we are able to combine a globally recognized and loyalty-inspiring
brand with a leading management team and we aim to unlock increased growth in sales and profitability through the following
strategies:

• Increase trial and frequency;

• Increase availabila ity by increasing fresh points of access in new and existing markets; and

• Increase profitabila ity by driving additional efficiency benefits fromff our omni-channel execution.

Increase trial and frequencyc

Almost all consumers desire an occasional indulgence, and when they indulge, they want a high quality, emotionally
differentiated experience. We believe we have significant runway to be part of a greater number of shared indulgence
occasions. On average, consumers visit Krispy Kreme less than three times per year, creating a significant frequency
opportunity. The success of recently launched products, including filled rings and minis, seasonal favorites, limited time buzz-
worthy offerings, and flavored glazes, affirms our belief that our innovations create greater opportunities for consumers to
engage with our brand. We intend to strengthen our product portfolio by centering further innovation around seasonal and
societal events, and through the development of new innovation platforms to drive sustained baseline growth. Our strategy of
linking product launches with relevant events has allowed us to effectively increase consumption occasions while meaningfully
engaging with our communities and consumers.

Our marketing and innovation efforts have expanded the number of incremental consumer use cases for KriK spy KremeK
doughnuts. For example, our gifting value proposition makes doughnuts an ideal way to celebrate everyday occasions like
birthdays and holidays, through gifting sleeves and personalized gift messaging. Our gifting value proposition fulfills distinct
consumption occasions and will continue to make our brand and products more accessible and allow us to participate with
greater frequeff ncy in small and large indulgent occasions, from impromptu dt aily gatherings with family and friends to holidays
and weddings, and everything in between.

Increase availabiii liii tyii by increasing fresh points of access in new and existingii markets

We believe there are opportunities to continue to grow in new and existing markets in which we currently operate by further
capita alizing on our strong brand awareness as we deploy our Hub and Spoke model. We applya a deliberate approaa ch to growing
these discrete, highly attractive markets and maintain our brand integrity and scarcity value while unlocking significant
consumer demand. We focus on increasing points of access through low cost DFD Doors as well as investments in Fresh Shops
with a limited number of investments in our experiential Hot Light Theater shops to implement the Hub and Spoke model in
new and existing markets. This will lead to growth in our key Sales per Hub metric as we furff ther leverage the production
capaca ity of existing Hubs.u

We believe our omni-channel strategy, empowered by our Hub au nd Spoke model, will allow us to effectively seize expansion
opportunities both domestically and internationally. Despite our high brand awareness, we have a limited presence in certain
key U.S. markets, such as New York and Chicago, and have yet to build a presence in key U.S. cities, including Boston and
Minneapolia s. We also believe we have a significant opportunitt y to increase our presence in our existing international markets
such as Mexico, Japan and Ireland where we have a less developed Hub and Spoke system. We believe this provides us ample
opportunity to grow within markets in which we are already present. We also view Hub and Spoke expansion to other
international markets where we do not currently have a presence as a major growth driver forff the future. We have identified key
international whitespace market opportunities such as China, Brazil, and parts of Western Europe. Our goal is to open in at least
three new countries per year. Our proven track record of entering new diverse markets across multiple continents and deploying
the capita al-efficient Hub and Spoke approach demonstrates our ability to effectively penetrate a broad range of market types.
New markets will either consist of Company-owned shops or entered via fraff nchise operations, to be determined on a case-by-
case basis.
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Increase profitabiii liii tyii by driving additiii onal efficff iency benefite s ftt romff our omni-channel execee ution

We are making focused investments in our omni-channel strategy to expand our presence efficiently while driving top-line
growth and margin expansion. The Hub and Spoke model enablea s an integrated approaa ch to operations, which is designed to
bring efficiencies in production, distribution and supervisory mrr anagement while ensuring product freshness and quality are
consistent with our brand promise no matter where consumers experience our doughnuts. By expanding points of access such as
new local DFD Doors to existing Hubs, we increase not just total Sales per Hub, but also profitability because the production
Hubs have largely fixed costs including rent, utilities, and even labor.

To support the Hub and Spoke model in the U.S., we have implemented new labor management systems and processes in our
shops and new delivery route optimization technology to support our DFD logistics chain. In addition, we are launching a new
demand planning system that is intended to improve service and to deliver both waste and labora efficiencies across all our
business channels, including production of our Branded Sweet Treat Line. We are also investing in our manufacturing
capabia lities to support growth of our Branded Sweet Treat Line by implementing new packing automation technology, which is
intended to significantly increase productivity through labora savings and increased capaca ity. By streamlining these operations
across our platform, we believe we can continue to deliver on our brand promise and provide joy to our consumers while
continuing to drive efficff iencies across our platform.

Corporate Social Responsibility

We are committed to making a positive impact on the world — to touch and enhance lives through the joy that is KrispyK Kreme
— and our ambition is to Be Sweet in All That We Do, which represents our corporate social responsibility (“CSR”) platform.
With this platform, we focusff on our greatest opportunities for positive social and environmental impact with our people, our
communities, and our planet. We are committed to transparency and disclosure of our CSR strategies, programs, and
governance. Progress along our CSR strategy is regularly reported to our senior management leadership team (“the Global
Leadership Team”) and our Board of Directors, which also has oversight of our environmental, social, and governance strategy.

• Loving our People: We cWW reate opportunities forff our Krispyii Kremers to achieve their dreams — buildingl the most
engaged, inclusive workforce.

We are committed to diversity and inclusion throughout our organization, from our board room to our shops. We have
establa ished a Diversity, Equity and Inclusion Council (sponsored by members of the Global Leadership Team) and
four Employee Resource Groups in the U.S. We are focused on gender parity globally and increasing representation of
people of color in the U.S. We are also developing a comprehensive, global total rewards framework to drive pay
equity and access for our Krispy Kremers.

• Loving our Communities: We bring joy to otherstt — engaging locally to support and uplifti communities globally.

Our brand purpose truly shines through our Acts of Joy and community fundraising initiatives. Whether through our
COVID-19 vaccination free doughnut offer, our “Healthcare Mondays” supporting the tireless work of healthcare
workers throughout the pandemic or freeff dozen Original Glazed doughnuts to graduating seniors, we bring joy to
others while doing good. In fiscal 2021, we raised more than $30 million to support local community causes. We also
engage with numerous local philanthropic organizations in the communities that we serve around the world.

• Loving our Planet:We respect our planet — using sustainable practices and reducing our environmental impacts.tt

We are working to address climate change and build the resilience of our business and supply chain. We are
conducting a global emissions assessment in 2022 to establia sh our emissions baseline. From this foundation, we will
then set goals forff reducing our greenhouse gas emissions, including Science Based Targets. We are also committed to
responsible sourcing across our supply chain. Krispy Kreme has set a goal of using 100% cage-free eggs by 2026. We
are committed to use of sustainable palm oil, with a goal to achieve 100% deforestation-free palm oil use by 2026. We
are also focused on reducing food waste through landfill diversion programs and food-to-feed initiatives across our
business.

Team Members and Human Capita altt Resources

Investing in, developing, and maintaining human capital is critical to our success. Globally, we employ approximately 21,500
employees as of January 2, 2022, including approximately 17,500 at Krispy Kreme locations that we refer to as our “Krispy
Kremers.” We are not a party to any collective bargaining agreement, although we have experienced occasional unionization
initiatives.
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We depend on our Krispy Kremers to provide great customer service, to make our products in adherence to our high-quality
standards and to maintain the consistency of our operations and logistics chain. While we continue to operate in a competitive
market for talent, we believe that our culture, policies, and practices contribute to our strong relationship with our Krispy
Kremers, which we feel is instrumental to our business model. Our culture is best capturea d by our Leadership Mix, which are
the dozen behaviors that guide us every day. The Leadership Mix was developed based on the beliefs of our founder,
incorporating years of learning on what makes Krispy Kreme such a special organization. These culturalt behaviors are shared
with Krispy Kremers globally, through an internally developed Leadership Mix training program.

The Leadership Mix is what keeps our consumers at the center of everything we do and ensures that our Krispy Kremers are
empowered to do the right thing for our consumers and for the business. We pride ourselves on being an entrepreneurial and
innovative team that is not afraid to take smart risks in service of creating awesome doughnut experiences.

Consistent with our Leadership Mix ingredients, we pride ourselves on attracting a diverse team of Krispy Kremers and
Insomniac team members fromff a wide range of backgrounds. As of January 2, 2022, our U.S. Krispy Kreme Company-owned
operations include approximately 10,000 employees, of which 96% are field-based employees and the remaining 4% are
corporate employees. 65% of such employees are people of color and 55% of such employees are female. We believe our
diverse team drives the entrepreneurial culturet that is at the center of our success.

The success of our business is fundamff entally connected to the well-being of our Krispy Kremers. Accordingly, we are
committed to their health, safety,t and wellness. During the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic, we have taken and continue to take
extraordinary measures that we determined were in the best interest of our KrispyKK Kremers and complied with government
regulations.

Our Total Rewards platform provides KrispyK Kremers and their families with access to a variety of competitive, innovative,
flexible, and convenient pay, health, and wellness programs. Our total package of pay and benefits is designed to support the
physical, mental, and financial health of our people and includes medical, dental, vision, EAP, life insurance and retirement
benefits as well as disability benefits and assistance with majora life activities, such as educational reimbursement and adoption.
Many of these benefits are available to our part-time Krispy Kremers; we believe that offering select benefits to our part-time
Krispy Kremers offers us a competitive advantage in recruiting and retaining talent.

Marketing and Innovation

Our marketing strategy is as unique and innovative as our brand. Krispy Kreme’s marketing strategy is to participate in culture
through “Acts of Joy,” deliver new product experiences that align with seasonal and trending consumer and societal interests
and to create positive connections through simple, frequent, brand-focused offerings that encourage shared experiences. The
tactics which support this strategy are also distinct. In the U.S., KriK spy Kreme’s paid media strategy is 100% digital with a
heavy focus on social media where our passionate consumer base engages and shares our marketing programs farff and wide
through their own networks. Earned media is also an important part of our media mix. We create promotions and products that
attract media outlets to our brand. Through the widespread dissemination of our programs through pop culture, entertainment,
and news outlets, we believe we can achieve disproportionately large attention relative to our spend in a media environment
populated by brands with farff larger media budgets. We believe our marketing strategy, supported with non-traditional media
tactics, has proven to be a potent combination that simultaneously drives sales while growing brand love. In 2021, we received
over 40 billion media impressions.
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By drawing inspiration from important societal events, we create a unique way forff our consumers to celebrate and engage. For
example, in 2021 we offered any consumer who had received a COVID-19 vaccination free doughnuts every day through the
end of the year. This event created social “buzz” (including more than 7.5 billion media impressions) and significant consumer
traffic for our Doughnut Shops. Our ability to create this connection between our consumers and our brand is what has helped
make the KriKK spy KreK me brand iconic, and helps to solidify our position in popular culture.

Limited time seasonal innovation and permanent innovations are used to create consumer wonder and are an essential
ingredient in keeping our consumers engaged with the brand and the products. Our limited time offerings are anticipated by
consumers and the media alike and generate significant social sharing amongst our fans and media coverage. The impact of
limited time seasonal offerings goes well beyond the sales of the innovations themselves; they drive traffic and create additional
sales of our core product offering.

Krispy Kreme has a strong brand presence across both emerging and well-establia shed social media platforms, including
Facebook, Instagram, Twitter, YouTube, Tik-Tok, and Pinterest. These channels enable us to engage with our consumers on a
personal level, while spreading the global brand of Krispy Kreme, including communicating promotional activity, featured
products, new shop openings, and highlighting core equities of the brand. Social media allows precise geo-targeting around our
shops and effective targeting of consumers likely to be interested in our messages.

Supply Chain

Sourcing and Suppliell s

We are committed to sourcing the best ingredients available forff our products. The principal ingredients to manufacture our
products include flour, shortening, and sugar which are used to formulate our proprietary doughnut mix and concentrate at our
Winston-Salem manufacturing facility. We procure the raw materials for these products fromff different vendors. Although most
raw materials we require are typically readily available fromff multiple vendors, we currently have 20 main vendors in addition
to our own mix plant.

We manufacture our doughnut mix at our mix plant in Winston-Salem, North Carolina and a third-party facff ility in Pico Rivera,
Californiff a, domestically, and at several locations internationally, where we produce the doughnut mix used to make our
doughnuts across the U.S. and internationally. In support of international markets, we produce a concentrate exclusively at our
Winston-Salem facff ility forff shipping efficiency. The concentrate is mixed with commodity ingredients in local markets to get to
a finiff shed doughnut mix. Throughout the process, the recipe forff what makes a KriKK spy KremeKK doughnut remains known only to
the Company.

At an additional facility in Winston-Salem, North Carolina, we manufacture our proprietary doughnut making equipment for
shipment to new shops and Doughnut Factories around the world. We manufacture a range of doughnut making lines, with
different capaca ities to support the needs of different shop types.

In addition, we provide other ingredients, packaging and supplies, principally to Company-owned and domestic franchise
shops. Our Krispy Kreme shop-level replenishments generally occur on a weekly basis, working with two national distribution
partners. In addition, we serve New York City with a regional distribution partner to best serve our needs in that market.

In the U.S., we operate fourff Doughnut Factories located in Indianapolis, Indiana, Monroe, Ohio, New York, New York and Fort
Lauderdale, Florida. Internationally, we operate 38 Doughnut Factories, of which 25 are operated by franchiff sees. Each
Doughnut Factory is staffedff by Krispy Kremers and supports multiple business channels forff Krispy Kreme. Each Doughnut
Factory manufactures daily, powering the Hub and Spoke model by producing product for Spoke locations such as Fresh Shops
and Carts and Food Trucks. In addition, they also provide DFD finished products to support local and regional markets. We
operate DFD routes out of each Doughnut Factory to ensure our DFD doughnuts are delivered fresh, every day, and maintain
our highest standards of quality and brand experience.

We utilize our Concord, North Carolina production facility to manufacture our Branded Sweet Treat Line products, including a
variety of Doughnut Bites and Mini Crullers, which are shelf stable and cake-based products. In addition, we also work with
and oversee a co-manufacturert production facility located in Burlington, Iowa. After manufacturing, packaging, and palletizing
our Branded Sweet Treat Line products, we transport the products to a third-party warehousing and distribution vendor. This
vendor warehouses, consolidates, and provides direct shipments to our retail partners’ supply networks.

Insomnia Cookies operates a nationwide, efficient supply chain. To support the Insomnia Cookies shops, third-party logistic
providers bring ingredients and suppliu es to their bakeries to create their warm, delicious products.
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Qualitll y Ctt ontrCC ol

We operate an integrated supply chain to help maintain the consistency and quality of products. Our business model is centered
on ensuring consistent quality of our products. We manufacture doughnut mixes at our facility in Winston-Salem, North
Carolina. Additionally, we also manufacture doughnut mix concentrates, which are blended with flour and other ingredients by
contract mix manufacturers to produce finished doughnut mix. We have an agreement with an independent food company to
manufacture certain doughnut mixes using concentrate forff domestic regions outside the southeastern U.S. and to provide
backup mix production capabia lity in the event of a business disruption at the Winston-Salem facff ility. In-process quality checks
are performedff throughout the production process, including ingredients, moisture percentage, fatff percentage, sieve size, and
metal checks. We provide specific instructions to franchise partners for storing and cooking our products. All products are
transported and stored at ambient temperature.t

Competition

We compete in the fragmented indulgence industry. Our domestic and international competitors include a wide range of
retailers of doughnuts and other treats, coffee shops, and other café aff nd bakery concepts. We also compete with snacks sold
through convenience stores, supermarkets, restaurants and retail stores in the U.S. The number, size and strength of competitors
vary by region and by category. We also compete against retailers who sell sweet treats such as cookies, cupcakes, and ice
cream shops. We compete on elements such as food quality, freshness, convenience, accessibility, customer service, price, and
value. We view our brand engagement, overall consumer experience and the uniqueness of our Original Glazed doughnut as
important factors that distinguish our brand from competitors, both in the doughnut and broader indulgence categories. See
“Risks Related to Our Business and Industry – Our success depends on our ability to compete with many food service
businesses.”

Trademarks, Service Marks, and Trade Names

Our doughnut shops are operated under the Krispy Kreme® trademark, and we use many federally and internationally registered
trademarks and service marks, including Original Glazed®, Hot Krispy Kreme Original Glazed Now®, Insomnia Cookies® and
the logos associated with these marks. We have registered various trademarks in over 65 other countries, and we generally
license the use of these trademarks to our franchisees forff the operation of their doughnut shops. We have also licensed our
marks for other consumer goods. We believe that our trademarks and service marks have significant value and are important to
our brand. To better protect our brand, we have registered and maintain numerous Internet domain names.

Despite our efforts to obtain, maintain, protect, and enforce our trademarks, service marks and other intellectualt property rights,
there can be no assurance that these protections will be available in all cases, and our trademarks, service marks or other
intellectualt property rights could be challenged, invalidated, declared generic, circumvented, infringed or otherwise violated.
Opposition or cancellation proceedings may in the futuret be filed.

For more information on the risks associated with our intellectualt property, see “Risk Factors—Risks Related to Our
Intellectual Property.”

Government Regulation

As a company with global operations, we are subject to the laws and regulations of the U.S. and the multiple foreignff
jurisdictions in which we operate as well as the rules, reporting obligations and interpretations of all such requirements and
obligations by various governing bodies, which may differ among jurisdictions. In addition, changes to such laws, regulations,
rules, reporting obligations and related compliance obligations could result in significant costs but are not expected to have a
material effectff on our capia tal expenditures, results of operations and competm itive position as compared to prior periods.

Seasonality

Our sales peak at various times throughout the year dued to certain promotional events and holiday celebrations. Additionally,
our hot beverage sales generally increase during the fall and winter months while our iced beverage sales generally increase
during the spring and summer months. Quarterly results also may be affected by the timing of the opening of new shops and the
closing of existing shops. For these reasons, results forff any fiscal quarter are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be
achieved for the fulff l fisff cal year.
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Research and Development

New product innovation is important to the success of our business. We believe that the development of new Krispy Kreme
doughnuts, beverages and other products attracts new consumers to our brand, increases shop sales, and allows our shops to
strengthen daypart offerings. One of our properties in Winston-Salem, North Carolina includes research and development
facilities including test kitchens and doughnut producing equipment used in developing new products and processes.

Available Informationff

KKI Annual Report on Form 10-K reports, along with all other reports and amendments filff ed with or furnished to the SEC, are
publicly available freeff of charge on the Investor Relations section of our website at investors.krispykreme.com or at sec.gov as
soon as reasonably practicablea after these materials are filff ed with or furnishedff to the SEC. We also use our website as a tool to
disclose important information about the Company and comply with our disclosure obligations under Regulation Fair
Disclosure. Our corporate governance policies, code of ethics and Board committee charters and policies are also posted on the
Investor Relations section of our website. The information on our website (or any webpages referenced in this Annual Report
on Form 10-K) is not part of this or any other report KKI files with, or furnishes to, the SEC.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors

Investing in our securities involves a variety of risksii and uncertainties, knowkk n and unknown, including, among others, those
discussed below. You should carefullff y cll onsider thett risks dkk escrdd ibed below together with other informatff ion set forthff in thisii
Annual Reporte on Form 10-K. If any of the followingll risks or uncertaintiii es actually oll ccur, our business,ii financialii condition,tt
prospects,tt resultsll of operations and cash flowff s cw ould be materialtt lyll and adversely affected. Tdd heTT risks dkk iscussed below are not
the only risks we face. Additdd ional risks or uncertainties not currently kll nowkk n to us, or that we currently dll eedd m immaterial, ml ay
also have a material adverse effectff on our business, financial condition, prospects,tt results of operations or cash flows. We
cannot assure you that any of the events discussed in thett risk factff ors below will not occur.

Risks Related to Our Business and Industry

Public health ott utbreaks, epidemi ics, or pandemics, including the global COVID-19VV outbreak, have disruptedtt and may
continueii to disruptii , ott ur business,ii and could materialtt lyll affect our business,ii financii ial condition,tt and resultsll of operations.

Health epidemics or pandemics can adversely affect consumer spending and confidence levels and supply availability and costs
in the markets in which we and our franchisees operate, all of which can affect our business, financial condition, and results of
operations. In December 2019, a novel strain of coronavirus, referred to as 2019-ncov, COVID-19 coronavirus epidemic, or
COVID-19, was identified. COVID-19 has since spread globally, including in the U.S. where we have our corporate offices and
principal operations. The global pandemic resulting from the outbreak of COVID-19 has disrupted global health, economic and
market conditions, consumer behavior and food service operations.

While we have enacted protections, we may nonetheless be subject to COVID-19 outbreaks in our shops and other facff ilities,
resulting in a significant percentage of our workforce or the workforce of our business partners being unable to work. If any of
our employees or the employees of our franchisees were to contract COVID-19 or other illnesses, our operations could be
significantly disrupted, since this could require us or our franchisees to quarantine some or all such employees or close and
disinfect our impacted facff ilities.

Operations in our and our franchisees’ shops have been and, at least in the short term, may continue to be disrupted to varying
degrees. The COVID-19 pandemic has impacted our and our franchisees’ businesses globally, most significantly in fiscaff l 2020.
This has included delays in opening new shops. With a prioritization on health and safety ot f our Krispy Kremers and Insomniac
team members and consumers, we were able to re-open shops under modified operations to meet public health guidelines and
evolving consumer behaviors and expectations. As of January 2, 2022, all our shops in the U.S. and Canada were open.

Internationally, the pandemic impacted our Company-owned businesses in the U.K., Ireland, Mexico, Australia and New
Zealand, most significantly in fiscaff l 2020. As of January 2, 2022 all shops in the U.K., Ireland, Mexico, Australia, and New
Zealand were open.

In addition, our business is affected by consumer preferences and perceptions. The risk of contracting viruses has and could
continue to cause employees or guests to avoid gathering in public places, which has had, and could furtheff r have, adverse
effects on ours and our franchisees’ guest traffic and the abila ity to adequately staff shop locations.

Many consumer behaviors have changed during the COVID-19 pandemic and may persist or continue to change beyond the end
of the pandemic. In general, the food service industry’s sales are dependent upon discretionary spending by consumers, which
is influenced by general economic conditions, unemployment levels, and the availabila ity of discretionary income all of which
have been, and may continue to be, negatively impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic. These changes have and could continue
to negatively impact consumer traffic and ours and our franchisees’ sales.

The length of time it may take forff more normal economic and operating conditions to resume remains uncertain and the
economic recovery period could continue for a prolonged period even after the health risks of the pandemic subside. We expect
that certain operational changes made duringd the pandemic, particularly with respect to enhanced health and safety mt easures in
shops, will remain in place for an extended period and some of these changes may be permanent. These changes could increase
our and our franchisees’ costs.

The COVID-19 pandemic may also have the effect of heightening other risks disclosed in this Annual Report, including, but
not limited to, those related to our ability to service our debt obligations, supply chain interruptions and/or commodity price
increases, and the financial condition of our franchisees.
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Changes in consumer prefere ences and demographic trends could negativtt ely ill mpacii t our busineii ss.

Food service businesses are often affected by changes in consumer tastes, dietary and health preferences, national, regional and
local economic conditions, discretionary spending priorities, demographic trends, traffic patterns and the type, number and
location of competing brands. In addition, the food service industry continues to be under heightened legal and legislative
scrutiny related to menu labela ing and packaging resulting from the perception that the products and practices of foodff service
companies have contributed to nutritional, caloric intake, obesity,t or other health concerns of their guests. If we are unable to
adapta to changes in consumer preferences and trends, or if regulatory changes are implemented that impact any of our markets,
our operating results could be negatively impacted.

Maintainintt g,n extendintt g,n and expandingii our reputation and brand imagea are essentialtt to our businessii success.

Our success depends on our ability to maintain our brand image, extend our products to new markets and channels, expand our
brand image with new product offerings and deliver consistently high-quality, delicious products to our consumers.

While we seek to maintain, extend, and expand our brand image and reputation through marketing investments, including
advertising and consumer promotions, most of our marketing initiatives rely heavily on social media. We increasingly rely on
social media and online dissemination of advertising campaigns. Social and digital media increase the speed and extent that
information or misinformation and opinions can be shared. Negative posts or comments about us, our brands, or our products
on social or digital media, whether or not valid, could seriously damage our brands and reputation. These risks are especially
pronounced in light of our reliance on our social-media presence to promote our brand and maintain consumer loyalty and
engagement. In addition, increasing regulatory or legal action against us, product recalls or other adverse publicity could
damage our reputation and brand image, undermine our consumers’ confidence, and reduce long-term demand for our products.
If we do not maintain, extend, and expand our brand image, then our business, financial condition and results of operations
could be materially and adversely affecff ted.

The food service industrytt is affected by fb oodff safety itt ssueii s, including fn oodff tamperinm g on r contamitt nationii .

Food safety,t including the possibility of foodff tampering or contamination is a concern for any food service business. Any report
or publicity linking us or our franchisees to foodff safety it ssues, including food tampering or contamination, could adversely
affect our reputation as well as our revenues and profits. Increased use of social media could amplify the effects of negative
publicity. These risks may be increased as we introduce new products or increase distribution channels, such as our Branded
Sweet Treat Line or DFD business channels. Food safety it ssues could also adversely affect the price and availability of affected
ingredients, which could result in disruptions in our supply chain or lower margins for us and our franchisees. Additionally,
food safety it ssues could expose us to litigation, governmental investigation, recalls or finesff .

The food service industii rytt is affected by lb itll igtt ation, regulatill on and publicity ctt oncerningii food quality,tt health att nd other issues,
which can cause consumers to avoid oi ur products and result ill n lii iabill liii tiii es.

Food service businesses can be adversely affected by litigation, by regulation and by complaints fromff consumers or government
authorities resulting from food quality, illness, injury or other health concerns or operating issues stemming from one shop or a
limited number of shops, including shops operated by our franchisees, or as we introduce new products or increase distribution
channels, such as our Branded Sweet Treat Line or DFD business channels. In addition, class action lawsuits have been filff ed
and may continue to be filed against various food service businesses (including quick service restaurants) alleging, among other
things, that foodff service businesses have failed to disclose the health risks associated with high-fat foodsff and that certain food
service business marketing practices have encouraged obesity.t Because one of our competitive strengths is the taste and quality
of our doughnuts and other indulgence products, adverse publicity or regulations relating to foodff quality or other similar
concerns affect us more than it would food service businesses that compete primarily on other facff tors. We could also incur
significant liabilities if such a lawsuit or claim results in a decision against us or because of litigation costs, regardless of the
result.

Adverse weathertt conditions could adversely affect our business.ii

Adverse weather conditions can impact guest traffic at our and our franchisees’ shops and, in more severe cases such as
hurricanes, tornadoes, flooding or other naturalt disasters (which can be worsened by climate change), cause temporary closures,
sometimes for prolonged periods, which would negatively impact our shop sales. Changes in weather could result in
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constructrr ion delays, interruptions to the availabila ity of utilities, and shortages or interruptions in the supply of food items and
other supplies, which could increase our costs.

We may not realizeii the anticipateii d benefite s ftt romff past or potentialii future acquisitiott ns, is nveii stments,tt or other strategice
transactions.

From time to time, we evaluate and may complete mergers, acquisitions, divestitures, joint venturest , strategic partnerships,
minority investments or strategic transactions. Such transactions may include strategic opportunities to acquire or partner with
our domestic and international franchisees. In certain circumstances, our past and existing franchisees may retain a minority
stake in the franchise shops we acquire and continue to participate in the operation of the applicablea shops. Such arrangements
are entered into on a case-by-case basis.

Past and potential futff uret strategic transactions may involve various inherent risks, including, without limitation:

• Expenses, delays or difficulties in integrating acquired KrispyK Kreme franchised shops, strategic partnerships or
investments into our organization, including the failure to realize expected synergies and/or the inability to retain key
personnel;

• Diversion of management’s attention fromff other initiatives and/or day-to-day operations to effectively execute our
growth strategy;

• Inability to generate sufficient revenue, profit, and cash flows from acquired KrispyKK Kreme franchised shops,
companies, strategic partnerships or investments;

• The possibility that we have acquired substantial contingent or unanticipated liabia lities in connection with acquisitions
or other strategic transactions; and

• The possibility that investments we have made may decline significantly in value, which could lead to the potential
impairment of the carrying value of goodwill associated with acquired businesses.

Past and potential future strategic transactions may not create the intended value for us and may harm our reputation and
materially, adversely affecff t our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

We willii face risks as we continuett to focus on expansion of the DFD bFF usinessii and our Branded Sweet TreatTT Line.ii

In fiscal 2020 and fiscal 2021, we completed the evolution of our legacy wholesale business by transforming our DFD model
and introducing our new Branded Sweet Treat Line. We view continued expansion of these businesses to be part of our growth
strategy. Such efforts have entailed significant costs and uncertainties arising from, among other things, building
manufacturing capabia lity, our transition to an omni-channel business model, building and developing our information
technology and logistics systems and adaptia ng our corporate organization and talent.

Successful implementation of this transition relied and will continue to rely on our ability to capita alize and realize certain goals,
including identifying retail partners, expanding the geographies we serve and developing and maintaining the manufacturing
and logistical capaca ity to service our DFD and Branded Sweet Treat Line business channels. In addition, these may exacerbate
or be exacerbated by other risk factors included herein, especially those related to our logistical and manufacturingt capacity and
ability to compete in the indulgence market. There is no guarantee that we will achieve the benefits we anticipate or achieve the
costs savings, revenue generation and other positive effects necessary to offset the costs and risks discussed here.

In addition, our Branded Sweet Treat Line has thus far been unprofitable and has only been deployed domestically. There is no
guarantee that it will see success among customers in international markets or ever turnt a profit either domestically or
internationally. Any failure to recognize our expected benefits could materially and adversely affect our business, results of
operations and financial condition.

Our success depends on our abiliii tyii to compete with mtt any food service businesseii s.

We compete with many well-establia shed food service companies. At the shop level, we compete with other indulgence retailers
and bakeries, specialty coffee retailers, bagel shops, quick service restaurants, delicatessens, take-out food service companies,
convenience stores and supermarkets. Our Branded Sweet Treat Line competes primarily with grocery store bakeries and
packaged snack foods.ff
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In both our shop and Branded Sweet Treat Line business channels, aggressive pricing by our competitors or the entrance of new
competitors into our markets could reduce our sales and profit margins. Moreover, many of our competitors offer consumers a
wider range of products. Many of our competitors or potential competitors have subsu tantially greater finaff ncial and other
resources than we do which may allow them to react to changes in pricing, marketing, and the quick service restaurant industry
better than we can. As competitors expand their operations, competition may intensify. In addition, the start-up costs associated
with retail indulgence and similar foodff service establia shments are not a significant barrier to entry into the retail indulgence
business, further increasing the potential forff competition.

In addition to the above, our omni-channel business approaa ch, especially our Insomnia Cookies brand, which emphasizes
delivery as a key component, competes with local and international indulgence brands in a highly competitive space. While we
control and operate our Ecommerce platform, we rely on third-party foodff delivery services, including DoorDash, for last-mile
delivery of our products. We are also a partner platform on such services, in which the end-to-end transaction with consumers,
including delivery of our products is conducted by the third-party platform. Our consumers may prefer other indulgence
providers’ Ecommerce platforms or other delivery platforms and services for a variety of competitive reasons, including
delivery availability, app user experience, and overall market demand forff food delivery.

If we are unable to successfully compete, we may be unable to sustain or increase our revenues and profitability as well as
leverage the growth we expect to achieve through our omni-channel business model.

We are the exclusive supplier of do oughnutdd mixesii or mix cii oncentratestt to all Krispy Kreme shops worldwidell . Wee e aWW lso supply
other key ingrediendd ts and flavors to all domestic Krispy Kreme Company-owned shops. If we have any problems supplyingii
these ingreii dients, our and our franchisees’ abilitll y ttt o mtt ake doughnuts ctt ould bll e negativtt ely all ffea cted.tt

We are the exclusive supplier of doughnut mixes for many domestic and international Krispy Kreme shops and the exclusive
supplier of doughnut mix concentrate, which is blended with other ingredients to produce doughnut mixes at both domestic and
international production facilities, for all KrispyK Kreme shops globally. Any shutdown or disruption of our concentrate
production would disrupt our entire global supply chain without an adequate alternative source. We also are the exclusive
supplier of certain other key ingredients and flavors to all domestic Company-owned shops, most domestic franchise shops and
some international franchise shops. We manufacture all our concentrates at our manufacturing facility located in Winston-
Salem, North Carolina and produce doughnut mix domestically at our Winston-Salem plant and a third-party facility in Pico
Rivera, California. We distribute doughnut mixes and other key ingredients and flavors using independent contract distributors
for Krispy Kreme shops domestically and internationally.

The Pico Rivera faciff lity produces mix for distribution to most Krispy Kreme shops west of the Mississippi River and has the
capaca ity to manufacture our doughnut mixes for other regions in the event of a shut-down or loss of capaca ity at our Winston-
Salem facff ility. Nevertheless, an interruption of production at any manufacturing facility could impede our ability or that of our
franchisees to make doughnuts domestically. Internationally, we produce doughnut mix at several plants and any disruption at
such facilities may have regional impacts on doughnut production capaa bila ities at our locations and our franchisees’ locations.

We generally ship our mix and concentrate internationally from a single port in Florida. Delays in shipping or logistics chains
could impact ours and our franchisees’ international operations. Events that delay shipment may be known or unknown,
including events arising in connection with adverse weather events, customs and border shutdowns, trade conflicts and general
trade route delays. In addition, in the event that any of our relationships with our raw material suppliu ers terminate unexpectedly,
even where we have multiple suppliu ers for the same ingredient, we may not be able to obtain adequate quantities of the same
high-quality ingredients at competitive prices. As we continue to expand our global footpriff nt the above risks may be
exacerbated as we encounter supply shortages, logistical hurdles and other costs associated with operating and supplying a
global network of shops.

We are the only manufacturer of so ubstantialtt lyll all of our doughnut-makitt ngii equipment. If we have any problems producing
this equipment, our shops’ abiliii tyii to make doughnuts ctt ould bll e negativtt ely all ffea cted.tt

We manufacture our custom doughnut-making equipment in one facility in Winston-Salem, North Carolina. Although we have
limited backup sources for the production of our equipment, obtaining new equipment quickly in the event of a loss of our
Winston-Salem faciff lity would be difficult. In such an event, we would be forced to rely on third-party manufacturers or shift
production to another manufacturing facility, and we could face significant delays in manufacturing and increased costs, which
would jeopardize our ability to supply equipment to new shops or new parts forff the maintenance of existing equipment in
establia shed shops on a timely basis.
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Our profitabiliii tyii is sensitiii ve to changes in tii hett cost of ro aw matertt ials.ll

Although we utilize forward purchase contracts and futures contracts and/or options on such contracts to mitigate the risks
related to commodity price flucff tuations, such contracts do not fully mitigate commodity price risk, particularly over the longer
term. In addition, the portion of our anticipated futureff commodity requirements that is subject to such contracts varies from
time to time.

Our three most significant ingredients are flour, shortening, and sugar. We also purchase a substantial amount of gasoline to
fuel our fleet of delivery vehicles for our DFD business and significant amounts of packaging materials to make, among other
things, our iconic boxes for our dozens and half-dozens. The prices of wheat and soybean oil, which are the principal
components of flourff and shortening respectively, and of sugar and gasoline, have been volatile in recent years. We attempt to
leverage our size to achieve economies of scale in purchasing, but there can be no assurances that we can always do so
effectively. Adverse changes in commodity prices could adversely affect our profitability.

We have limitedii supplieu rs for many of the product componentm s att nd services that we rely oll n and any interrupttt iontt in supplyll
could impairm our abilitll y ttt o mtt ake and delivll er our signature products, adversely affectingii our business,ii financial condition,
and resultsll of operations.

We utilize a sole supplier for our glaze flavoring and glaze base. In addition, all the cookie dough used by our Insomnia
Cookies brand is supplied by a single supplier. Unless and until we can secure alternative suppliers for such components, our
dependence on such supplier will subject us to the possible risks of shortages, interruptions, and price flucff tuations. Any
interruption in the delivery orr f glaze flavoring would adversely affect our ability to produce and deliver our signaturet products,
including our hot Original Glazed doughnut, to our consumers on a timely and competitive basis and could adversely affect our
operating results. In the event we cannot obtain replacement products in a timely manner, we risk the loss of revenue resulting
from the inability to sell our products and related increased administrative and shipping costs.

Furthermore, dealing with a limited number of providers exposes us to increased risks arising from such suppliers’ distribution
networks. Increases in the price of fuelff , employee strikes, organized labor activities, inclement weather and a variety of other
known and unknown factors could limit our providers’ ability to service our logistical needs. If we are unable to source
alternative logistical providers, our costs may significantly increase and, if we are unable to pass increased distribution costs on
to our consumers in the form of higher prices for our products, our business, financial condition, and results of operations could
be adversely affected.

A key portion of our growth strategytt depends on opening new KrispyKK Kreme shops both domesticallyll and internattt ionalltt y.ll

A core part of our business strategy is expansion of our shops, DFD and Ecommerce to new geographies, markets and
consumers, nationally and internationally. Our ability to successfully execute such an expansion may be influenced by factors
beyond our and our franchisees’ control, which may slow shop development and impair our growth strategy. We may also be
limited by logistical or other operational concerns, including an inabila ity to source product components or logistical services.
Further, certain international markets of ours are heavily reliant on our franchisees and there can be no assurance that our
franchisees will successfully develop or operate their shops in a manner consistent with our concepts and standards, or will have
the business abila ities or access to financial resources necessary to open and maintain the shops required by their agreements.

Our Branded Sweet Treat Lineii and DFD bFF usinessii channels depend on key customett rs and are subject to rtt isks if such key
customett rs reduce the amount of producff ts they purchase from us or terminateii their relationshitt psii with us.

Sales to retail customers through both our Branded Sweet Treat Line and DFD channels represent a substantial portion of our
revenue. The infrastructuret necessary to support our Branded Sweet Treat Line and DFD business channels results in significant
fixed and semi-fixed costs. Also, the loss of one of our large retail customers or significant financial difficulff ties in their
businesses could adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations.

We have several large retail customers throughout the world. However, no single retail customer accounted forff more than 10%
of our total revenue in the fiscal years ended January 2, 2022, January 3, 2021, or December 29, 2019. These customers do not
enter long-term contracts; instead, they make purchase decisions based on a combination of price, product quality, consumer
demand and service quality. In the future, they may reallocate their shelf space, including space currently used for our products,
for other products, including private labela products. If our sales to one or more of these customers are reduced, this reduction
may adversely affecff t our business.
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We rely on informatrr iontt technology in our operations and are making improvm ements to importantm businessii systemyy s. Any
matertt ial failure, ie nadeii quacy or intertt ruptiontt of that technologyll could adversely affect our abilitll y ttt o ett ffee ctivtt ely oll pero ate our
businessii and result ill n fii inancff ial or other loss.ll

We and our franchisees rely on computer systems and information technology to conduct our business. Our ability to
effectively manage our business depends significantly on the reliability and capacity of these systems. In addition, we must
effectively respond to changing guest expectations and new technological developments. Disruptions or failures of these
systems could interrupt our business, which could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and financial
condition.

Business interruptions also could result from the failure of other important information technology platforms we use to operate
our business, including platforms hosted or otherwise provided by third parties on our behalf. Any disruptions, delays or
deficiencies in the design and/or implementation of any of these systems, or our inabila ity to accurately predict the costs of such
initiatives or our failure to generate revenue and corresponding profits fromff such activities and investments, could impact our
ability to perform necessary business operations, which could adversely affect our reputation, competitive position, business,
results of operations and financial condition.

Systemtt s failuff res and resultill ngii interrupttt ionstt could adversely affect our omni-channel businessii strategytt .yy

Our omni-channel approach will in large part rely on our information technology systems to operate successfully, including the
implementation of our delivery strategy. As we expand our DFD and delivery business channels, our exposure to such risks will
increase. Our systems, which in some cases rely on third-party providers, may experience service interruptions, degradation or
other performance problems because of hardware and software defects or malfunctions, distributed denial-of-service and other
cyberattacks, infrastructuret changes, human error, earthquakes, hurricanes, floods, fires, naturalt disasters, power losses,
disruptions in telecommunications services, fraud, military or political conflicts, terrorist attacks, computer viruses,
ransomware, malware, or other events. Our systems also may be subject to break-ins, sabotage, theft, and intentional acts of
vandalism because of criminal third parties (including state-sponsored organizations with significant financial and technological
resources), third parties we do business with and our and our franchisees’ employees. Our reliance on third-parties increases our
exposure to such risks as we exercise a lesser degree of control over such persons. Our business interruption insurance may not
be sufficient to cover all our losses that may result from interruptions in our service as a result of systems faiff lures and similar
events. As a result, if we experience any outsized material impacts from a faiff lure of our systems, our business, results of
operations and financial condition could be materially and adversely effecff ted.

While we endeavor to keep all systems current, within two revisions of the most current software and firmware versions, there
can be no guarantee that we can reliablya update and maintain our systems. In instances where we are unable to do so, the
mitigating controls we put in place to reduce the risk may fail. Any such failure could lead to Ecommerce downtime,
disruptions to our information technology systems and expose vulnerabila ities to cyber-criminals.

Our businessii could be adversely impactm edtt by changes in oii ur consumers’ access to the InterII netrr and mobileii devices.

The Ecommerce and delivery aspects of our omni-channel strategy will depend on consumers’ ability to access our branded
platforms and third-party platforms via a mobile device or personal computer and the Internet. We may operate in jurisdictions
with limited Internet connectivity, particularly as we expand internationally. Internet access and access to a mobile device or
personal computer are frequently provided by companies with significant market power that could take actions that degrade,
disrupt, or increase the cost of consumers’ ability to access our platform. In addition, the Internet infrastructure that we, third-
party platforms and our consumers rely on in any particular geographica area may be unable to support the demands placed uponu
it and could interfere with the speed and availability of our branded Ecommerce platforms or third-party platforms. Any such
failure in Internet or mobile device or computer accessibility, even forff a short period of time, could adversely affect our
business and results of operations.

If we or our franchisees or licensees are unable tll o ptt rotect our consumers’ payment card data and other regulated, pdd rotected
or personallyll identifiabli e ill nformii ation, we or our franchisees could bll e exposedee to data loss, litiii gatii on, and liabili itll y,tt and our
reputatitt on could bll e significantly hll armed.

Our business requires the collection, transmission, and retention of large volumes of consumer and employee data, including
credit and debit card numbers and other personally identifiablea information, in various information technology systems that we
and our franchisees maintain, and in those maintained by third parties with whom we contract to provide services. The integrity
and protection of that guest and employee data is critical to us. Any failure to comply with legal and industry rules and/or
requirements could significantly harm our brand, reputation, business, and results of operations. We also rely on independent
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service providers for payment processing, including credit and debit cards. If these independent service providers become
unwilling or unable to provide these services to us or if the cost of using these providers increases, our business could be
harmed.

We are, and may increasingly become, subject to other various laws, directives, industry standards and regulations, as well as
contractualt obligations, relating to data privacy and security in the jurisdictions in which we operate. The information, security
and privacy requirements imposed by governmental regulation are increasingly demanding. In the U.S., various federal and
state regulators, including governmental agencies like the Consumer Financial Protection Bureau and the Federal Trade
Commission, have adopted, or are considering adopting, laws and regulations concerning personal information and data
security and have prioritized privacy and information security violations for enforcement actions. Certain state laws may be
more stringent or broader in scope, or offer greater individual rights, with respect to personal information than fedeff ral,
international or other state laws, and such laws may differ fromff each other, all of which may complicate compliance efforts.
State laws are changing rapidly and there is discussion in Congress of a new comprehensive federal data privacy law to which
we would become subject if it is enacted, which may add additional complexity, variation in requirements, restrictions and
potential legal risks, require additional investment of resources in compliance programs, impact strategies and the availabila ity of
previously useful data and could result in increased complim ance costs or changes in business practices and policies.

We are also subject to international laws, regulations and standards in many jurisdictions, which apply broadly to the collection,
use, retention, security, disclosure, transfer and other processing of personal information. For example, the General Data
Protection Regulation (“GDPR”), which was adopted by the European Union effective May 2018, includes obligations and
restrictions concerning data transparency and consent, the overall rights of individuals to whom the personal data relates, the
transferff of personal data out of the European Economic Area (“EEA”) or the U.K., security breach notifications and the security
and confidentiality of personal data. The GDPR authorizes fineff s forff certain violations of up to 4% of global annual revenue or
€20 million, whichever is greater. Further, the U.K.’s decision to leave the European Union has created uncertainty with regard
to data protection regulation in the U.K. We are also subject to the U.K. GDPR and U.K. Data Protection Act of 2018, which
retains the GDPR in the U.K.’s national law. Our failure to adhere to or successfully implement appropriate processes to adhere
to international data privacy requirements could expose us and our franchisees to finaff ncial penalties and legal liability. Our and
our franchisees’ systems may not be able to satisfy changing requirements and guest and employee expectations or may require
significant additional investments or time to do so.

Because the interpretation and application of laws, regulations, standards, and other obligations relating to data privacy and
security are still uncertain, it is possible that these laws, regulations, standards, and other obligations may be interpreted and
applied in a manner that is inconsistent with our data processing practices and policies. If our practices are not consistent, or are
viewed as not consistent, with changes in laws, regulations and standards or new interpretations or applications of existing laws,
regulations, and standards, we may also become subjb ect to fineff s, audits, inquiries, whistleblower complaints, adverse media
coverage, investigations, lawsuits, loss of export privileges, severe criminal or civil sanctions, or other penalties. Although we
endeavor to comply with our public statements and documentation, we may at times fail to do so or be alleged to have failed to
do so. The publication of our privacy policies and other statements that provide promises and assurances abouta data privacy and
security can subject us to potential government or legal action if they are found to be deceptive, unfair or misrepresentative of
our actual practices. Any concerns about our data privacy and security practices, even if unfounded, could damage the
reputation of our businesses and discourage potential users from our products and services. Any of the foregoing could have an
adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations, and prospects.

Breaches or failures of oo ur information technologyll systemtt s or other cybersecurrr ity or data security-relatedtt incidents may
have an adverse impactm on our business,ii financii ial condition,tt and results of operations.tt

Efforts to hack or breach security measures, faiff lures of systems or software to operate as designed or intended, viruses, operator
error or inadvertent releases of data all threaten our and our franchisees’ information systems and records. An actual or
perceived breach in the security of our information technology systems or those of our franchisees and third-party service
providers could lead to an interruption in the operation of our systems, resulting in material adverse impacts on our business,
financial condition, and results of operations, and could result in adverse publicity and significant damage to our brand and
reputation with consumers and third parties with whom we do business. Additionally, a significant theft, loss, disclosure,
modification or misappropriation of, or access to, guests’, employees’, third parties’ or other proprietary data or other breach of
our information technology systems could result in fines, legal claims or proceedings, including regulatory investigations and
actions, or liability for failure to comply with privacy and information security laws, which could disrupt our operations,
damage our reputation and expose us to claims from guests and employees, any of which could have a material adverse effectff
on our financial condition and results of operations.
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The techniques and sophistication used to conduct cyber-attacks and breaches of information technology systems, as well as the
sources and targets of these attacks, may take many formsff (including phishing, social engineering, denial, or degradation of
service attacks, malware, or ransomware), change frequently and are often not recognized until such attacks are launched or
have been in place for a period of time. In addition, our employees, franchisees, contractors, or third parties with whom we do
business or to whom we outsource business operations may attempt to circumvent our security measures to misappropriate
regulated, protected, or personally identifiablea information, and may purposefully or inadvertently cause a breach involving or
compromise of such information. Third parties may have the technology or know-how to breach the security of the information
collected, stored, or transmitted by us or our franchisees, and our respective security measures, as well as those of our
technology vendors, may not effectively prohibit others from obtaining improper access to this information. There is no
assurance that any security procedures or controls that we or our third-party providers have implemented will be sufficient to
prevent data-security related incidents from occurring.

We could be forced to expend significant financial and operational resources in responding to a security breach, including
investigating and remediating any information security vulnerabilities, defending against and resolving legal and regulatory
claims and complying with notification obligations, all of which could divert resources and the attention of our management
and key personnel away from our business operations and adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of
operations. In addition, our remediation efforts may not be successful, and we could be unable to implement, maintain and
upgrade adequate safeguards.

While we currentlr y maintain cybersecurity insurance, such insurance may not be sufficient in type or amount to cover us
against claims related to breaches, failures, or other data security-related incidents, and we cannot be certain that cyber
insurance will continue to be available to us on economically reasonable terms, or at all, or that any insurer will not deny
coverage as to any future claim. Any of the foregoing could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results
of operations and prospects.

Politll ictt al, economic, cc urrency and other risks associatedtt with ott ur internationaltt operations could adversely affect our and our
internationaltt franchiseesii ’ operatio ngii results.ll

As of January 2, 2022 and excluding Doughnut Factories, there were 1,227 Krispy Kreme shops operated outside of the U.S.
and Canada, representing 68% of our total shop count. Of this total, 773 shops were owned and operated by francff hisees. Our
revenues from international operations and business segments are exposed to risks associated with doing business in foreiff gn
countries. Risks arising from our international operations include, but are not limited to:

• Recessionary or expansive trends in international markets;

• Import or other business licensing requirements;

• Limitations on the repatriation of fundsff and foreign currency exchange restrictions due to current or new U.S. and
international regulations;

• Diffiff culty in staffing, developing and managing foreign operations and supply chain logistics, including ensuring the
consistency of our product quality and service;

• Disputes with our franchisees, or failures by our franchisees to operate successfully, to develop or finance new shops
or build them on suitable sites or open them on schedule;

• Local laws that make it more expensive and complex to negotiate with, retain or terminate employees;

• Competition with entrenched competitors as we expand our international operations; and

• Increase in anti-American sentiment and the identification of the brand as an American brand.

Royalties from our franchisees are based on a percentage of net sales (as defined in our franchise agreements) generated by our
foreign franchisees’ operations. Royalties payablea to us by our international franchisees are based on a conversion of local
currencies to U.S. dollars using the prevailing exchange rate, and changes in exchange rates could adversely affect our
revenues. To the extent that the portion of our revenues generated from international operations increases in the future, our
exposure to changes in foreff ign political and economic conditions and currency flucff tuations will increase.

We also are subject to governmental regulations throughout the world that impact the way we do business with our international
franchisees and vendors. These include antitrust and tax requirements, anti-boycott regulations, import/export/ctt ustoms
regulations and other international trade regulations, the USA Patriot Act, the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act, and applicable
local law. We typically export our products, principally our doughnut mixes and doughnut mix concentrates, to our franchisees
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in markets outside the U.S. Numerous government regulations apply to both the export of food products fromff the U.S. as well
as the import of food products into other countries. If one or more of the ingredients in our products are banned, alternative
ingredients would need to be identified. Although we intend to be proactive in addressing any product ingredient issues, such
requirements may delay our ability to open shops in other countries in accordance with our desired schedule.

We are subject to franchise lawll s and regulationstt that govern our status as a francff hisor and regulate stt ome aspects of our
franchise relationstt hips. Our abilitll y ttt o dtt evdd elopll new franchised shops and to enforce contractual rights against francff hisees
may be adversely affected by tb hesett laws and regulationstt , ws hich could cause our franchise revenues to declinell .ee

As a francff hisor, we are subject to regulation by the Federal Trade Commission (the “FTC”) and by domestic and foreign laws
regulating the offer and sale of franchises. Our failure to obtain or maintain approvaa ls to offer franchises would cause us to lose
future franchise revenues and revenues generated through our Market Development segment. In addition, domestic or foreign
laws that regulate substantive aspects of our relationships with fraff nchisees may limit our ability to terminate or otherwise
resolve conflicts with our franchisees.

Our franchisees could take actions that could harm our business.ii

Franchisees are independently owned and operated, and they are not our employees. Although we provide certain training and
support to franchisees, our franchisees operate their shops as independent businesses. Consequently, the quality of francff hised
shop operations may be diminished by any number of facff tors beyond our control. Moreover, franchisees may not operate shops
in a manner consistent with applicable laws and regulations or in accordance with our standards and requirements. Also,
franchisees may not successfully hire and train qualified managers and other shop personnel. Although we believe we currently
generally enjoy a positive relationship with our franchisees, there is no assurance that future developments, some of which may
be outside our control, may significantly harm our future relationships with existing and new franchisees. In addition, our image
and reputation, and the image and reputation of other francff hisees, may suffer materially if our franchisees do not operate
successfully, or in accordance with our standards and requirements, which could result in a significant decline in Krispy
Kreme’s branded sales, our revenues, and our profitabila ity.

Healthcarett legise lation and other potential employm ment legll islatll iott n could all dversely affect our business,ii financial condition,
and resultsll of operations.

Federal legislation regarding government-mandated health benefits and potential minimum wage legislation is expected to
increase our and our domestic franchisees’ costs. In the past several years states have increased their minimum wages and there
is mounting pressure to increase minimum wage on a fedeff ral level as well. In addition, for those of our employees paid at rates
set above, but related to, the applicablea minimum wage, further increases in the minimum wage could increase our labora costs,
which may also be increased by inflationary pressures and any shortages in the labor market.

Various federal and state labor laws govern our relationships with our employees and affect operating costs. These laws include
employee classifications as exempt or non-exempt, minimum wage requirements, unemployment tax rates, workers’
compensation rates, overtime, family leave, safety standards, payroll taxes, citizenship requirements and other wage and benefit
requirements forff employees classified as non-exempt. It is difficulff t to predict the overall trend of government regulation, and
we may be subject to significant and sweeping change or reforms arising out of legislative initiatives surrounding labora laws,
healthcare laws or other laws affecting our labora costs. Significant additional government regulations could impose increased
compliance costs and we may be subject to litigation arising out of noncompliance with such regulations. Such risks, combined
with other increases in our labora costs, could have material adverse effects on our business, financial condition, and operating
results.

Our annual effective income tax rate can change materially all s a result oll f co hanges in oii ur geographic mix of U.S. and
foreign earningsii and other factors, including changes in tax laws and changes made by regulatoryll authoritiii es.

We are subject to fedeff ral, state and local income taxes in the U.S. and in foreign jurisdictions. Our future effective tax rates and
the value of our deferred tax assets could be adversely affected by changes in tax laws, the consequences of which have not yet
been fullff y determined. In addition, we are subject to the examination of our income tax returns by the Internal Revenue Service
(“IRS”) and other tax authorities. Although we believe we have made appropriate provisions for taxes in the jurisdictions in
which we operate, changes in the tax laws or challenges fromff tax authorities under existing tax laws could adversely affect our
business, financial condition and results of operations.

Our overall effective income tax rate is equal to our total tax expense as a percentage of total earnings before tax. However,
income tax expense and benefits are not recognized on a global basis but rather on a jurisdictional or legal entity basis. Losses
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in one jurisdiction may not be used to offset profits in other jurisdictions and may cause an increase in our tax rate. Changes in
the mix of earnings (or losses) between jurisdictions and assumptions used in the calculation of income taxes, among other
factors, could have a significant effect on our overall effective income tax rate. Additionally, changes in tax laws and changes
made by regulatory authorities could have a significant effect on our overall effective income tax rate.

The full realizationii of our deferred taxtt assets may be affected by a nb umber of factors,tt including future earningsii and the
feasibiliii tyii of on-going plannill ngii strategies.i

We have deferred tax assets including federal, state and foreign net operating loss carryforwards, accruals not yet deductible forff
tax purposes, tax credits and other items. We have established valuation allowances to reduce the deferred tax assets related to
U.S. federal tax credits as well as foreign and state and local net operating loss carryforwards to an amount that is more likely
than not to be realized. Our ability to utilize the deferred tax assets depends in part upon our ability to generate futureff taxable
income within each respective jurisdiction during the periods in which these temporary differences reverse or our ability to
carryback any losses created by the deduction of these temporary differences.

Due to legal or regulatory changes, such as suspensions on the use of deferred tax assets and tax credits by certain jurisdictions,
possibly with retroactive effect, our existing deferred tax assets and tax credits could expire or otherwise be unavailable to
offset future income tax liabilities. For example, California temporarily suspended the use of certain net operating losses and
tax credits to offset revenue losses associated with the COVID-19 pandemic. Other jurisdictions could also impose limitations
on the use of certain deferred tax assets and tax credits.

We expect to realize the deferred tax assets over an extended period. If we are unable to generate sufficient future taxable
income in the U.S. and/or certain foreign jurisdictions, or if there is a significant change in the time period within which the
underlying temporary differences become taxable or deductible, we could be required to increase our valuation allowances
against our deferred tax assets. Our effective tax rate would increase if we were required to increase our valuation allowances
against our deferred tax assets.

An inabilityii to recruit aii nd retain pii ersonnel could have materially all dverse effects ott n our operations.

We rely heavily on our Krispy Kremers to provide high-quality service and unique experiences. Our Krispy Kremers are
essential for continued operation of our retail and manufacturing facilities as well as our delivery logistics. They enablea us to
ensure that we provide a consistent product to our consumers, whether it is in our Hot Light Theater Shops or one of our DFD
access points. Our future success also depends upon the continued contributions of senior management and other key personnel
and the ability to retain and motivate them. Economic and social trends beyond our control, such as labora shortages or the
continuing effects of the global COVID-19 pandemic, may make it difficff ult to recruitr and retain talented KrispyKK Kremers,
including our senior management and other key personnel. If we are unable to recruit, retain and motivate Krispy Kremers
sufficiently to support the projected growth and initiatives of our business, there could be materially adverse effects on our
operations.

We have incurred significi ant indebtedness, which could all dversely affect us, including decreasingii our businessii flexibiee liii tyii
and increasingii our intertt est expensexx .ee

We have significant indebtedness, which could adversely affect us, including decreasing our business fleff xibility and increasing
our interest expense. Our indebtedness could also reduce fundsff available forff working capita al, capital expenditures, acquisitions,
the repayment or refinff ancing of our indebtedness as it becomes due,d and other general corporate purposes. It may also create
competitive disadvantages forff us relative to other companies with lower debt levels. If our financial performancff e does not meet
current expectations, our ability to service our indebtedness may be adversely impacted.

Additionally, in assessing our credit strength, credit rating agencies consider our capita al structuret and financial policies as well
as our results of operations and financial position at the time. If our credit ratings were to be downgraded as a result of changes
in our capita al structure,t changes in the credit rating agencies’ methodology in assessing our credit strength, the credit agencies’
perception of the impact of credit market conditions on our current or future results of operations and financial position or for
any other reason, our cost of borrowing could increase. Furthermore, a significant downgrade in our credit ratings could limit a
financial institution's willingness to participate in our accounts payablea program and reduce the attractiveness of the accounts
payablea program to participating suppliers who may sell payment obligations from us to financial institutions. In addition, a
significff ant downgrade in our credit ratings may reduce fleff xibility of our business to engage in certain transactions, such as the
execution and renewal of certain leases.
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Risks Related to Our Organizational Structure

If the ownership of our common stock continueii s to btt e highly concentrated, it may prevent shareholders from influencing
significant corporate dtt ecdd isions and may ra esult in conflin cts ott f io nteii rest.

JAB Holdings B.V. (“JAB”) beneficially owns approximately 45% of our common stock through its affiliate as of March 4,
2022. As a result, JAB can exercise significant influence over all matters requiring a shareholder vote, including: the election of
directors; mergers, consolidations and acquisitions; the sale of all or substantially all of our assets and other decisions affecting
our capita al structure;t the amendment of our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and our amended and restated
bylaws; and our winding up and dissolution. This concentration of ownership may delay, deter or prevent acts that would be
favored by our other shareholders. The interests of JAB may not always coincide with our interests or the interests of our other
shareholders. This concentration of ownership may also have the effect of delaying, preventing or deterring a change in control
of us. The concentration of voting power could deprive you of an opportunity to receive a premium for your shares of common
stock as part of the sale of us and ultimately might affect the market price of our common stock. Also, JAB may seek to cause
us to take courses of action that, in its judgment, could enhance its investment in us, but which might involve risks to our other
shareholders or adversely affect us or our other shareholders. As a result, the market price of our common stock could decline
or shareholders might not receive a premium over the then-current market price of our common stock upon a change in control.
In addition, this concentration of share ownership may adversely affect the trading price of our common stock because investors
may perceive disadvantages in owning shares in a company with significant shareholders.

Certain provisions of Delaware Law, tw hett Investors’rr Rights Agreement, our amended and restatett d certificate ott f io ncorii porationrr
and our amended and restatett d bylb awsll could hinder, delayll or prevent a change in control of us, which could all dversely affect
the price of oo ur common stock.

Certain provisions of Delaware Law, our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and our amended and restated
bylaws will contain provisions that could make it more difficult forff a third-party to acquire us without the consent of our Board
of Directors or JAB, as the largest beneficial owner of our common stock.

As a Delaware corporation, we are subject to provisions of Delaware law, including Section 203 of the Delaware General
Corporatr ion Law, as amended (the “DGCL”), which prevents some shareholders holding more than 15% of our outstanding
common stock (“interested shareholder”) fromff engaging in certain business combinations without approval from the holders of
at least two-thirds of our outstanding common stock not held by the interested shareholder.

Furthermore, JAB controls a substantial portion of the voting power of the shares of our common stock eligible to vote in the
election of our directors and on other matters submitted to a vote of our shareholders through its affiliate, and JAB may be ablea
to influence the outcome of matters submitted to a shareholder vote.

In addition, under our amended and restated certificate of incorporation, our Board of Directors has the authority to cause the
issuance of preferred stock from time to time in one or more series and to establia sh the terms, preferences and rights of any such
series of preferred stock, all without approval of our shareholders. Nothing in our amended and restated certificate of
incorporation will preclude future issuances without shareholder approvaa l of the authorized but unissued shares of our common
stock. These factors could have the effect of making the replacement of incumbent directors more time consuming and difficult.

These provisions may make it difficult and expensive for a third party to pursue a tender offer, change in control or takeover
attempt that is opposed by JAB, our management, or our Board of Directors. Public shareholders who might desire to
participate in these types of transactions may not have an opportunity to do so, even if the transaction is favorable to
shareholders. These anti-takeover provisions could substantially impede the ability of public shareholders to benefit from a
change in control or change our management and Board of Directors and, as a result, may adversely affect the market price of
our common stock and your ability to realize any potential change of control premium.

We have entered into the Investors’ Rights Agreement with JAB which provides them certain information rights pursuant to
which the Company shall provide JAB the following, which shall be treated as confidential information by JAB: (w) copies of
the Company’s management’s monthly finaff ncial review reports, (x) the consolidated finaff ncial results of the Company for each
fiscal year, (y) the unaudited consolidated financial results of the Company for each fiscal quarter and (z) such other
information related to the Company’s financial condition, business, prospects or corporate affairs as JAB may reasonably
request from time to time. As a result of these rights and the representatives of JAB who serve on our Board of Directors, JAB
has greater access to our management and earlier access to our financial results than our other investors. While JAB remains
subject to appla icable U.S. securities laws regarding the trading of our securities while in possession of material non-public

Table of Contents

25



information, it will nonetheless have a better view as to our business and financial condition than you for so long as its
information rights continue under the Investors’ Rights Agreement.

Risks Related to Our Intellectual Property

Our failure or inabiliii tyii to obtain,ii maintaiii n,ii protect, att nd enforce our trademarks, ss ervice marks akk nd other intii eltt lell ctual
property rights could adversely affect our business,ii includingii the value of our brands.

We own certain common-law trademark rights in the U.S., as well as numerous trademark and service mark registrations in the
U.S. and in other jurisdictions. We believe that our trademarks and other intellectualt property rights are important to our
success and our competitive position. Despite our efforts to obtain, maintain, protect and enforce our trademarks, service marks
and other intellectualt property rights, there can be no assurance that these protections will be available in all cases, and our
trademarks, service marks or other intellectualt property rights could be challenged, invalidated, declared generic, circumvented,
infringed or otherwise violated.

The value of our intellectualt property could also diminish if others assert rights in or ownership of our trademarks, service
marks and other intellectualt property rights, or trademarks or service marks that are similar to ours. We may be unable to
successfully resolve these types of conflicts to our satisfaction. In the event that our trademarks or service marks are
successfully challenged, we could be forced to rebrand our products, which could result in loss of brand recognition and could
require us to devote resources towards advertising and marketing new brands. Over the long term, if we are unable to establia sh
name recognition based on our trademarks and service marks, then we may not be able to compete effectively. Any claims or
consumer confusion related to our trademarks and service marks could damage our reputation and brand and substantially harm
our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

We may be required to protect our trademarks, service marks and other intellectualt property rights in an increasing number of
jurisdictions, a process that is expensive and may not be successful, or which we may not pursue in every location. We have a
system in place that is designed to detect potential infringement on our trademarks and service marks. The protective actions
that we take, however, may not be sufficient, in some jurisdictions, to secure our trademark and service mark rights forff some of
the goods and services that we offer or to prevent imitation by others, which could adversely affect the value of our trademarks
and service marks or cause us to incur litigation costs, or pay damages or licensing fees to a prior user or registrant of similar
intellectualt property. Moreover, policing our intellectual property rights is difficult, costly and may not always be effecff tive.

Our intellecll tual property rtt ights ctt ould be infringedii or we could infringeii the intellell ctual property rtt ights ott f oo thers,rr and adverse
events regardingii licensed inteii llecll tual property could harm our business.ii

We possess intellectualt property that is important to our business. This intellectualt property includes ingredient formulas,
trademarks, copyrights, patents, business processes and other trade secrets. We and third parties, including competitors, could
come into conflict over intellectualt property rights. Litigation could disrupt our business, divert management attention and cost
a substantial amount to protect our rights or defend against claims. We cannot be certain that the steps taken to protect our
rights will be sufficienff t or that others will not infringe or misappropriate our rights. If we are unable to protect our intellectualt
property rights, our brands, products and business could be harmed.

In some cases, we license rights to distribute third-party products. The licensor may be able to terminate the license
arrangement upon an agreed period of notice, in some cases without payment to us of any termination fee. The termination of
any material license arrangement could adversely affecff t our business and financial performance.

Loss of our trade secret recipesii could adversely affect our sales.ll

We derive significant competitive benefit fromff the fact that our doughnut recipes and formulations are trade secrets. Although
we take reasonable steps to safeguard our trade secrets, should they become known to competitors, our competitive position
could suffer substantially. Furthermore, trade secrets can be difficult to protect. We seek to protect our trade secrets and other
know-how, in part, by entering into non-disclosure and confidentiality agreements with parties who have access to them, such
as our employees, corporate collaborators, outside contractors, consultants, advisors and other third parties. We cannot
guarantee that we have entered into such agreements with each party and any of these parties may breach the agreements and
disclose our proprietary information. Enforcing a claim that a party illegally disclosed or misappropriated a trade secret is
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difficult, expensive, and time-consuming, and the outcome is unpredictable. In addition, others may independently discover our
trade secrets and confidential information, and in such cases, we could not assert any trade secret rights against such parties.

Although we try to ensure that our employees, consultants, advisors and independent contractors do not use the confidential or
proprietary information, trade secrets or know-how of others in their work for us, we may be subject to claims that we or these
individuals have, inadvertently or otherwise, improperly used or disclosed intellectualt property rights, confidential or
proprietary information, trade secrets or know-how of any such individual’s current or former employer or other third party.
Further, we may be subject to ownership disputes in the future arising, for example, from conflicting obligations of consultants
or others who are involved in developing our products. We may also be subju ect to claims that former employees, consultants,
independent contractors or other third parties have an ownership interest in our intellectualt property rights. Litigation may be
necessary to defend against these claims. If we fail in defending any such claims, in addition to paying monetary damages, we
may lose valuable intellectualt property rights or personnel. Even if we are successful in defending against such claims,
litigation could result in substantial costs and be a distraction to management.

Our relianceii on third parties, including our franchisees and other licensees, may negatively impactm our abilitll y ttt o ptt rotect our
intellecll tual property.yy

Although we monitor and restrict third-party activities through our partnership and license agreements, third parties, including
our franchisees and other licensees, may use, refer to, or make statements abouta our brands that do not make proper use of our
trademarks, service marks or required designations, that improperly alter trademarks, service marks or branding, or that are
critical of our brands or place our brands in a context that may tarnish their reputation. This may result in dilution or
tarnishment of our intellectualt property. It is not possible for us to obtain registrations for all possible variations of our branding
in all territories where we operate. Third parties may seek to register or obtain registration for domain names and trademarks
involving localizations, variations, and versions of certain branding tools, and these activities may limit our ability to obtain or
use such rights in such territories. Franchisee, licensee and other third-party noncompliance with the terms and conditions of
our partnership or license agreements may reduce the overall goodwill of our brands, whether through the failure to meet health
and safety standards (including with respect to additional sanitation protocols and guidelines in connection with the COVID-19
pandemic), engage in quality control or maintain product consistency, or through the participation in improper or objectionablea
business practices.

Moreover, unauthorized third parties may conduct business using our intellectualt property to take advantage of the goodwill of
our brands, resulting in consumer confusion or dilution. Any reduction of our goodwill, consumer confusion, or dilution is
likely to impact sales, and could materially and adversely impact our business and operating results.

Risks Related to Our Common Stock

The market price of our common stock could bll e negatively affected by sb ales of substantialtt amounts of our common stock in
the public markets.

As of March 4, 2022, approximately 45% of our outstanding common stock is held by an affiliate of JAB and can be resold into
the public markets in the future in accordance with the requirements of RuleRR 144. The sale by JAB’s affiliate of a substantial
number of our shares, or a perception that such sales could occur, could significantly reduce the market price of our common
stock. A decline in the price of our common stock might impede our ability to raise capital through the issuance of additional
common stock or other equity securities.

We may be unable tll o ptt ay dividendsi on our common stock.

We intend to pay cash dividends on our common stock on a quarterly basis, subject to the discretion of our Board of Directors
and our compliance with applicable law, and depending on our results of operations, capita al requirements, financial condition,
business prospects, contractualt restrictions, restrictions imposed by applicable laws and other facff tors that our Board of
Directors deems relevant. Our ability to pay dividends may also be restricted by the terms of our existing debt agreements, or
any future debt or preferred equity securities. Our dividend policy entails certain risks and limitations, particularly with respect
to our liquidity. By paying cash dividends rather than investing that cash in our business or repaying any outstanding debt, we
risk, among other things, slowing the expansion of our business, having insufficient cash to fund our operations or make capia tal
expenditures or limiting our ability to incur borrowings. Our Board of Directors will periodically review the cash generated
frff om our business and the capita al expenditures required to finance our growth plans and determine whether to modify the
amount of regular dividends and/or declare any periodic special dividends. There can be no assurance that our Board of
Directors will not adjustd the amount or timing of regular cash dividends or cause us to cease paying dividends altogether.
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Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.

Item 2. Properties

The material properties used by KrispyK Kreme, Inc. in connection with its manufacturing, warehousing, distribution, and
corporate administrative operations, serving all segments, are as follff ows:

Location
Approximate Size
in Square Feet Purpose Type

Winston-Salem, NC 107,000 Mix Production Plant and Distribution Owned
Winston-Salem, NC 101,710 Equipment Manufacturingt Facility Owned
Charlotte, NC 31,776 Corporate Administrative Leased

In the U.S., we operate fourff Doughnut Factories located in Indianapolis, Indiana, Monroe, Ohio, New York, New York and Fort
Lauderdale, Florida. Internationally, for our equity markets, we operate 13 Doughnut Factories. Each Doughnut Factory
manufactures daily to provide finished products to shops and to support our DFD routes. The majora ity of our Doughnut
Factories are leased.

Additionally, as of January 2, 2022, Krispy Kreme, Inc. had 971 Company-owned shops globally, a majority of which are
leased. We also lease space in various locations globally for regional, district and other administrative offices, training facilities
and storage.

Specific to the Branded Sweet Treat Line, we utilize two manufacturing, warehousing and distribution facilities, serving the
U.S. and Canada segment. We utilize our leased Concord, North Carolina production facility forff manufacturing. In addition, we
also work with and oversee a co-manufacturer production facility located in Burlington, Iowa. After manufacturing, packaging,
and palletizing our Branded Sweet Treat Line products, we transport the products to a third-party warehousing and distribution
vendor. This vendor warehouses, consolidates, and provides direct shipments to our retail partners’ supply networks.

We believe our existing facilities, both owned and leased, are in good condition and suitablea for the conduct of our business.
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Item 3. Legal Proceedings

In the ordinary course of conducting our business, we have in the past and may in the future become involved in various legal
actions and other claims. We may also become involved in other judicial, regulatory and arbitration proceedings concerning
matters arising in connection with the conduct of our businesses. Some of these matters may involve claims of substantial
amounts. These legal proceedings may be subject to many uncertainties and there can be no assurance of the outcome of any
individual proceedings. See Note 14, Commitments and Contingencies, to the audited Consolidated Financial Statements in
Item 8 of Part II of this Annual Report on Form 10-K for information regarding certain legal proceedings in which we are
involved.

TSW Foods, LLC Litigation

On November 13, 2020, TSW Foods, LLC (“TSW”), a reseller of certain Krispy Kreme packaged products, filed a demand for
arbitration and statement of claim alleging Anticipatory Repudiation of the Master Reseller Agreement, Breach of the Master
Reseller Agreement, and Breach of the Implied Covenant of Good Faith and Fair Dealing. The Company intends to vigorously
defend against TSW’s claims and prosecute its counterclaims. The parties held a voluntary, non-binding mediation on
November 11, 2021. The case is expected to proceed through arbitration pursuant to an existing arbitration agreement. At this
time the Company is unable to predict the outcome of this matter, the potential loss or range of loss, if any, associated with the
resolution of this matter or any potential effect it may have on the Company or its operations.

Shareholder Derivative Suit

On December 3, 2021, a shareholder of the Company brought a shareholder class and derivative action complaint against the
members of the Company’s Board of Directors, the Company, JAB Holdings, and certain entities related to JAB Holdings (JAB
Holdings and the related entities collectively, the “JAB Entities”). The plaintiff alleges that the members of the Company’s
Board breached their fiduciary duty by allowing the JAB Entities to conduct a creeping takeover of the Company and that the
JAB Entities aided and abetted those breaches.

On December 16, 2021, the court denied the plaintiff’sff request for an emergency temporary restraining order to prohibit furtheff r
acquisitions of the Company’s stock by the JAB Entities. At this time the Company is unable to predict the outcome of this
matter, the potential loss or range of loss, if any, associated with the resolution of this matter or any potential effect it may have
on the Company or its operations.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.
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PART II

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity
Securities

Market InfoII rmationtt

Our common stock has been listed on the Nasdaq Global Select Market under the symbol “DNUT” since our initial public
offering on July 1, 2021. Prior to that time, there was no public market forff our common stock.

Holdersll

The approximate number of shareholders of record of our common stock as of March 4, 2022 was 243. This does not include
persons whose stock is in nominee or “street name” accounts through brokers.

Dividendii Policll yc

For the fiscal quarters ending October 3, 2021 and January 2, 2022, we paid quarterly cash dividends on our common stock of
$0.035 per share, which were paid in November 2021 and February 2022, respectively. On February 9, 2022 the Company’s
Board of Directors declared a $0.035 per share cash dividend payablea on May 11, 2022, to shareholders of record on April 27,
2022. We expect to pay a dividend after the close of each quarter.

Any declaration and payment of future dividends to holders of our common stock will be at the sole discretion of our Board of
Directors and will depend on many factors, including economic conditions, our financial condition and operating results, our
available cash and current and anticipated cash needs, capita al requirements, contractual, legal, tax and regulatory restrictions,
including restrictive covenants contained in certain of our subsidiaries’ credit facilities, and such other facff tors as our Board of
Directors may deem relevant. See “Risk Factors – Risks Relating to our Common Stock – We may be unable to pay dividends
on our common stock.”

Under Delaware law, dividends may be payablea only out of surplus, which is calculated as our net assets less our liabilities and
our capita al, or, if we have no surplus, out of our net profits forff the fiscal year in which the dividend is declared and/or the
preceding fiscal year.

Use of Proceeds from Sale of Regie sterii ed Securitiii es

On July 1, 2021 we completed the IPO of our Class A common stock, $0.01 par value, pursuant to our Registration Statement
on Form S-1, as amended (d (No. )333-256664) hthat was declared effective on June 30, 2021. We sold 29,411,765 shares in the
offering at a price to the public of $17.00 per share. The lead book-running managers in the offering were J.P. Morgan
Securities LLC, Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC, BofA Securities, Inc., and Citigroup Global Markets Inc.

The net proceeds received by us in the offering were $$458.8 imilllliion.

None of the underwriting discounts and commissions or offering expenses were incurred or paid to our directors or officers or
their associates or to persons owning 10% or more of our common stock or to any affiliates of ours. In the quarter ended
October 3, 2021 we used the net proceeds of the offering along with additional borrowings under our 2019 Facility revolving
credit facility as follows: (i) $500.0 million to repay all of the outstanding indebtedness under the Term Loan Facility, (ii) $20.3
million to repurchase approximately 1.3 million shares of common stock fromff certain of our executive officers at the price to be
paid by the underwriters and (iii) $15.5 million to repurchase approximately 1.0 million shares of common stock from certain of
our executive officers for payment of their withholding taxes with respect to the RSUs vesting or for which vesting was
accelerated in connection with the offering.

On August 2, 2021 the underwriters exercised their over-allotment option and purchased an additional 3,500,000 shares of
common stock at the IPO price less the underwriting discounts and commissions. The net proceeds received on August 2, 2021
were $56.1 million after deducting underwriting discounts and commissions of $3.4 million. This brought total net IPO
proceeds to $514.9 million.
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Issuer Purchases of Eo quity Stt ecSS uritiii es

Shares under our ongoing share repurchase program may be repurchased in open market transactions, including pursuant to a
trading plan adopted in accordance with RuleRR 10b5-1 of the Exchange Act, as amended, or through privately negotiated
transactions. The timing, manner, price, and amount of repurchases will be determined at our discretion, and the share
repurchase program may be suspended, terminated or modified at any time for any reason. As of January 2, 2022, all
outstanding shares remained availablea for repurchase under current authorizations.

Performance Graph

The following graph depicts the total returnt to shareholders from the IPO on July 1, 2021 through our fiscal year end date of
January 2, 2022, relative to the performancff e of the Russell 2000 Index, the NASDAQ Composite Index and the Standard &
Poor’s Consumer Discretionary Sector. All indices shown in the graph have been reset to a base of 100 as of July 1, 2021 and
assume an investment of $100 on that date and the reinvestment of dividends paid since that date. The stock price performance
shown in the graph is not necessarily indicative of futuret price performance.

Krispy Kreme, Inc. Russell 2000
NASDAQ Composite S&P Consumer Discretionary

07/01/21 01/02/22
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July 1, 2021 January 2, 2022

Krispy Kreme, Inc. $ 100.00 $ 111.29
Russell 2000 100.00 96.39
NASDAQ Composite 100.00 107.73
S&P Consumer Discretionary 100.00 112.01

Item 6. [Reserved]
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysisyy of our financial condition and results ott f oo pero ations should be read together with ott ur
audited consolidated finff ancial statements att nd relatel d notes included elsewhere in this Aii nnual Reporte on Form 10-K. This
section of the Annual Reporte on Form 10-K generally dll iscusses fisff cal 2021 and fiscalii 2020 items and year-to-year comparisons
of fiff scalii 2021 to fiscalii 2020. Discussions of fiff scalii 2019 items and year-to-year comparisons of fiff scalii 2020 and fiscalii 2019 are
not included in this Aii nnual Reporte on Form 10-K and can be found in “Management’s Discussion and Analysisll of Financial
Condition and Results ott f Oo peratiO ons” on our IPO Prospects us dated JuneJJ 30, 2021 filed with the U.S. Securities and Exchange
Commission. This discussion contains forward-looking statements ttt hattt involvel risks and uncertainties. The words “believe,”
“may,”yy “could,”ll “will,” “should,”ll “would,” “anticipatei ,” “estimate,” “expecx t,” “intend,” “objective,” “seek,”kk “strivett ” or
similar words, or the negative of these words,dd identdd ify forward-looking statements.tt Such forward-looking statements att re based
on certain assumptions and estimates that we consider reasonable but are subject to various risks and uncertainties and
assumptions relating to our operations, financial results,tt financial conditions, business, prospects,tt growth strategye and
liquidity. Accordingly, tyy here are, or will be, important factors that could cll ause our actual results ttt o diffeff r materially from those
indicated in these statements including, without limitation, those described under the heading “Riskii Factors” in thitt s Aii nnual
Reporte on Form 10-K. The inclusion of this fii orwff ard-looking informatff ion should not be regarded as a representation by us that
the future plans, estimates or expecx tations contemplated by ub s will be achieved. Our actual results ctt ould dl iffeff r materially from
the forward-looking statements itt ncluded herein. These forward-looking statements are made only as of the date of thisii
document, at nd we do not undertake any obligatii on, other thantt as may be required by applicable law, tw o updateu or revise any
forward-looking or cautionary statement to reflect changes in assumptions, the occurrence of events,tt unanticipatei d or
otherwise, or changes in futureff operating results ott ver time or otherwise.

General

Krispy Kreme is one of the most beloved and well-known sweet treat brands in the world. Our iconic Original Glazed doughnut
is universally recognized for its hot-off-the-line, melt-in-your-mouth experience. KrispyK Kreme operates in over 30 countries
through its unique network of fresh Doughnut Shops, partnerships with leading retailers, and a rapidly growing Ecommerce and
delivery business. Our purpose of touching and enhancing lives through the joy that is KrispyKK Kreme guides how we operate
every day and is reflected in the love we have for our people, our communities, and the planet.

We operate and report financial informatff ion on a 52 or 53-week fiscal year ending on the Sunday closest to December 31.
Fiscal year 2021 reflects our results of operations for the 52-week period ended January 2, 2022. Fiscal year 2020 reflects our
results of operations for the 53-week period ended January 3, 2021. The additional week in a 53-week fiscal year is added to the
fourth fiscal quarter, resulting in a 14-week quarter.

We conduct our business through the following three reported segments:

• U.S. and Canada: Includes all our Company-owned operations in the U.S. and Canada, including our Krispy Kreme
and Insomnia Cookies-branded shops, DFD and our Branded Sweet Treat Line;

• International: Includes all our Krispy Kreme Company-owned operations in the U.K., Ireland, Australia, New
Zealand and Mexico; and

• Market Development: Includes franchise operations across the globe, as well as the Company-owned operations in
Japan.

The following tablea presents a summary of our financial results forff the periods presented:

Fiscal Years Ended
(in thousands except percentages) January 2, 2022 (52 weeks) January 3, 2021 (53 weeks) % Change
Total Net Revenues................ $ 1,384,391 $ 1,122,036 23.4 %
Net Loss ................................. (14,843) (60,940) 75.6 %
Adjusted Net Income(1) .......... 66,723 42,346 57.6 %
Adjusted EBITDA(1) .............. 187,945 145,434 29.2 %

1. Refer to “Key Performance Indicators and Non-GAAP Measures” below for more information as to how we define and
calculate Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted Net Income and for a reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted Net
Income to net loss, the most comparablea GAAP measure.

We generated 12.5% and 1.2% organic revenue growth in fiscal 2021 and fiscal 2020, respectively.
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Significant Events and Transactions

Executingii on our Transformation Strategye

As ka k yey component of our strategygy to convert ma krket is into f llullff y iy impllementedd H bub dand kSpoke d lmodels, we icontinue to ddadd
lqualiityy p ioints of access across our globagloball net kwork. In fifiscall 2021, we dd dadded over 2,000 ipoints of access fromff hthe fifisc lal yyear
dendedd Jan yuary 3, 2021, iwithh 386 ipoints of access adddded id in thhe f hfourth quarter of fifiscall 2021 lalone. hThe iprim yary d idriver of thhe

iincreasedd p ioints of access fromff fifisc lal 2020 was thhe iconti dnued expa insion of our DFD net kwork iin lalignmignment iwi hth our
transformatiion strategygy. In com iparison to fifisc lal 2020, we dd dadded 1,995 DFD Doors globagloballllyy, iincl diludi gng 1,067 DFD Doors to hthe
U.S. dand Ca dnada seggment (i l(includinguding expa insion iin majorjora ma krkets s huch as hiChicaggo, Dallllas, Ph ihoenix, Los gAngelles, dand Denver),nver)
502 to the International segment, and 426 to the Market Development segment.

The increase in DFD Doors is the result of our focus on executing our omni-channel strategy to drive our transformation. As
highlighted by the more developed model within the International segment, which has experienced a quick recovery from the
impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic, the capita al-efficiff ent Hub and Spoke distribution model provides a route to market and
powers profitability. In fiscal 2021, our Krispy Kreme U.S. and Canada business has completed the conversion of the last few
designated market areas fromff our legacy wholesale business to DFD, allowing us to focus on DFD expansion in priority areas.
We expect DFD growth to continue to be one of our most significant drivers of profitability growth, through both increased
door count and growth in average revenue per door per week (“APD”) which has risen over 55% for the KrisKK py Kreme U.S. and
Canada business in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2021 compared to the fourth quarter of fiscal 2020. Due in part to the DFD
growth efforts, International Sales per Hub grew 42% in fiscal 2021, while U.S. and Canada Sales per Hub gu rew 14%.

Increasingii Our Globalll Presence

Another of our key strategic initiatives is to increase our global presence as we become the most loved sweet treat brand in the
world. We expanded our presence to 31 countries in fiscaff l 2021, which included opening our first shop in Egypt in August
2021. Approximately 50% of our system-wide sales (Company-owned and franchise) are international and more than 50% of
our Adjusted EBITDA derives fromff our International and Market Development segments, highlighting the beneficial impacts of
global expansion and the resulting increase in profitability and brand reach. Additionally, in October 2021 we initiated our
Company-owned expansion strategy in Canada by acquiring a 60% ownership interest in ten fraff nchise shops.

Going forward, we expect to open in at least three new countries a year, with a key focus in Western Europe and select Asian
and South American countries. We have recently signed new franchise agreements with plans to open Krispy Kreme-branded
shops in Costa Rica, Jordan and Switzerland in fiscal 2022 or 2023, and we expect to have further announcements throughout
the year as we grow our global business.

COVID-19II Update

As of hthe dend of fifiscall 2021, iapproximatelyl 99% of globagloball syystem i-widde hshops (i(incl dludes Compa yny-ownedd a dnd franchihise h )shops)
were opera iti lonal. In thhe U.S. dand Ca dnada, allll iKri yspy Kreme dand lalll I insomnia kiCookies shhops were opera iti lonal iwi hth cer itain
llo ications fa ici gng tempora yry hchallll genges to shhop opera iti gng hhours ddue to staffingffing hchallll genges a imidd risingising COVID-19 cases. hThe
Internatiionall s gegment contiinuedd to perform stronglystrongly iwithh allll hshops iin hthe U.K., lIrel dand, Aust lraliia, New Ze lal dand, dand Me ixico
opera iti lonal as of hthe dend of fifisc lal 2021, dand hthere was contiinued id improvement iwi hthiin hthe Markket De lvelopment seggment,
cont ibributinging to a t drend of ggrow hth for hthe s gegment.

Key Performance Indicators and Non-GAAP Measures

We monitor the key business metrics and non-GAAP metrics set forth below to help us evaluate our business and growth
trends, establia sh budgets, measure the effectiveness of our sales and marketing efforts, and assess operational efficiencies. The
calculation of the key business metrics discussed below may differff from other similarly titled metrics used by other companies,
securities analysts, or investors.

Throughout this Annual Report on Form 10-K, we utilize “global points of access” as a key performance indicator. Global
points of access reflect all locations at which fresh doughnuts or cookies can be purchased. We define global points of access to
include all Hot Light Theater Shops, Fresh Shops, Carts and Food Trucks, DFD Doors, Cookie Shops, and other defined points
at both Company-owned and franchise locations as of the end of the respective reporting period. We monitor global points of
access as a metric that informs the growth of our omni-channel presence over time and believe this metric is useful to investors
to understand our footprintt in each of our segments and by asset type.
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The folff lowing tablea presents our global points of access, by segment and type, as of the end of fiscal 2021, fiscal 2020, and
fiscal 2019:

Global Points of Access (1)

Fiscal Years Ended
January 2, 2022 January 3, 2021 December 29, 2019

U.S. and Canada: (2)

Hot Light Theater Shops.................................................... 241 229 175
Fresh Shops........................................................................ 66 47 45
Cookie Shops ..................................................................... 210 184 168
Carts, Food Trucks, and Other (3) ....................................... 2 — —
DFD Doors (4) ..................................................................... 5,204 4,137 2,288

Total 5,723 4,597 2,676
Internatitt onal:

Hot Light Theater Shops.................................................... 32 28 27
Fresh Shops........................................................................ 370 359 375
Carts, Food Trucks, and Other (3) ....................................... 1 — —
DFD Doors (4) ..................................................................... 2,488 1,986 1,849

Total 2,891 2,373 2,251
Market Developmll ent: (5)

Hot Light Theater Shops.................................................... 109 119 166
Fresh Shops........................................................................ 782 732 693
Carts, Food Trucks, and Other (3) ....................................... 31 30 30
DFD Doors (4) ..................................................................... 891 465 264

Total 1,813 1,346 1,153
Total global points of access (as defined) ................................ 10,427 8,316 6,080
Total Hot Light Theater Shops.................................................... 382 376 368
Total Fresh Shops........................................................................ 1,218 1,138 1,113
Total Cookie Shops ..................................................................... 210 184 168
Total Shops ................................................................................ 1,810 1,698 1,649
Total Carts, Food Trucks, and Other...................................... 34 30 30
Total DFD Doors ....................................................................... 8,583 6,588 4,401
Total global points of access (as defined) ................................ 10,427 8,316 6,080

1. Excludes Branded Sweet Treat Line distribution points and legacy wholesale business doors.
2. Includes points of access that were acquired fromff franchisees in the U.S. and Canada. These points of access were

previously included in the Market Development segment prior to the respective acquisition dates. See Note 2,
Acquisitions, to the audited Consolidated Financial Statements forff further information.

3. Beginning in the third quarter of fiscal 2021, we include Carts and Food Trucks in our calculation of global points of
access. Carts and Food Trucks are non-producing, mobile (typically on wheels) facilities without walls or a door where
product is received from a Hot Light Theater Shop or Doughnut Factory.rr They are primarily found in international
locations, in airports, train stations, etc. Comparative data has been included in all periods presented abovea .

4. DFD Doors for both the U.S. and Canada and Market Development segments exclude legacy wholesale doors, which
have been declining consistent with our strategy to evolve our legacy wholesale business to focusff on the DFD model and
our Branded Sweet Treat Line. As of January 3, 2021, and December 29, 2019, the legacy wholesale doors were 1,508
and 4,693 for the U.S. and Canada segment, respectively, and 187 and 1,919 for the Market Development segment,
respectively. As of the end of the second quarter of fiscal 2021 legacy wholesale doors for the U.S. and Canada and the
Market Development segments were substantially eliminated.

5. Includes locations in Japan, which were acquired in December 2020 and are now Company-owned. All remaining points
of access in the Market Development segment relate to our franchise business. As of January 2, 2022, there were four
Hot Light Theater Shops, 48 Fresh Shops and 105 DFD Doors in Japan operating. As of January 3, 2021, there were
three Hot Light Theater Shops, 40 Fresh Shops and 24 DFD Doors in Japan operating.
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As of January 2, 2022, we had 10,427 global points of access, with 1,810 Krispy Kreme and Insomnia Cookies-branded shops,
34 Carts and Food Trucks, and 8,583 DFD Doors. During fiscal 2021, we added a net 2,111 global points of access, with a net
112 additional shops globally, including six Hot Light Theater Shops, 80 Fresh Shops, and 26 Insomnia Cookie Shops. The Hot
Light Theater Shop openings included expansion in Hilliard, OH and Lakeland, FL for the U.S. and Canada segment, Boca del
Rio, Mexico forff the International segment, and Cairo, Egypt for the Market Development segment which represents our first
franchise shop in Egypt, increasing our global presence to 31 countries. We plan to continue adding new locations and
expanding our Ecommerce and delivery platform in order to extend the availabila ity of our products.

We also utilize “Hubs”u as a key performance indicator. Our transformation is driven by the implementation of an omni-channel
strategy to reach more consumers where they are and drive revenue growth, and this strategy is supported by a capital-efficient
Hub and Spoke distribution model that provides a route to market and powers profitability. Our Hot Light Theater Shops and
Doughnut Factories serve as centralized production facilities (“Hubs”). From these Hubs, we deliver doughnuts to our Fresh
Shops, Carts and Food Trucks, and DFD Doors (“Spokes”) through an integrated network of Company-operated delivery
routes, ensuring quality and freshness. Specific to the U.S. and Canada segment, certain legacy Hubs have not historically had
Spokes. Many Hubs in the U.S. and Canada segment are being converted to add Spokes while certain legacy Hubs will never
have the ability or need to add Spokes.

The following tablea presents our Hubs, by segment and type, as of the end of fiscal 2021, fiscal 2020, and fiscal 2019,
respectively:

Hubs
Fiscal Years Ended

January 2, 2022 January 3, 2021 December 29, 2019
U.S. and Canada:

Hot Light Theater Shops (1) ................................................ 238 226 174
Doughnut Factories............................................................ 4 5 6

Total......................................................................... 242 231 180
Hubs with Spokes .............................................................. 126 113 76

Interntt ational:
Hot Light Theater Shops (1) ................................................ 25 27 27
Doughnut Factories............................................................ 11 9 9

Total......................................................................... 36 36 36
Hubs with Spokes .............................................................. 36 36 36

Market Developmll ent:
Hot Light Theater Shops (1) ................................................ 106 116 163
Doughnut Factories............................................................ 27 26 26

Total......................................................................... 133 142 189
Total Hubs.................................................................................. 411 409 405

1. Includes only Hot Light Theater Shops and excludes Mini Theaters. A Mini Theater is a Spoke location that produces hot
doughnuts.

Non-GAAP Measures

We report our financial results in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the U.S. (“GAAP”); however,
management evaluates our results of operations using, among other measures, organic revenue growth, adjusted earnings before
interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (“Adjusted EBITDA”), and Adjusted Net Income as we believe these non-GAAP
measures are useful in evaluating our operating performance.

These non-GAAP financial measures are not universally consistent calculations, limiting their usefulness as comparative
measures. Other companies may calculate similarly titled finff ancial measures differently than we do or may not calculate them at
all. Additionally, these non-GAAP financial measures are not measurements of finaff ncial perforff mance under GAAP. In order to
facilitate a clear understanding of our consolidated historical operating results, you should examine our non-GAAP financial
measures in conjunction with our historical Consolidated Financial Statements and notes thereto included in this Annual Report
on Form 10-K.
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Organic Revenue Growth

We define “organic revenue growth” as the growth in revenues, excluding (i) acquired shops owned by us forff less than twelve
months following their acquisition, (ii) the impact of foreiff gn currency exchange rate changes, and (iii) the impact of revenues
generated during the 53rd week for those fiscal years that have a 53rd week based on our fiscal calendar defined in the
“Overview” section. See “Results of Operations” for our organic growth calculations for the periods presented.

Adjusted EBIEE TDAII and Adjusted NetNN Income

We define “Adjusted EBITDA” as earnings before interest expense, net (including interest payablea to related parties), income
tax expense/(benefit), and depreciation and amortization, with further adjustments for share-based compensation, certain
strategic initiatives, acquisition and integration expenses, and other certain non-recurring, infrequent or non-core income and
expense items. Adjusted EBITDA enablea s operating performance to be reviewed across reporting periods on a consistent basis
and is one of the principal measures used by management to evaluate and monitor our operating performance.

We define “Adjusted Net Income” as net loss adjusted forff interest expense – related party, share-based compensation, certain
strategic initiatives, acquisition and integration expenses, amortization of acquisition-related intangibles, the tax impact of
adjustments and other certain non-recurring, infrequent or non-core income and expense items.

Adjusted EBITDA and Adjust Net Income have certain limitations, including adjustments for income and expense items that
are required by GAAP. In evaluating these non-GAAP measures, you should be aware that in the future we will incur expenses
that are the same as or similar to some of the adjustments in this presentation, such as share-based compensation. Our
presentation of Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted Net Income should not be construed to imply that our future results will be
unaffected by any such adjustments. Management compensates for these limitations by relying on our GAAP results in addition
to using Adjusted d EBITDA and Adjusted Net Income supplementally.

The following tablea s present a reconciliation of net loss to Adjusted EBITDA and net loss to Adjusted Net Income forff the
periods presented:

Fiscal Years Ended
(in thousands) January 2, 2022 January 3, 2021 December 29, 2019
Net loss $ (14,843) $ (60,940) $ (34,001)
Interest expense, net ....................................................................... 32,622 34,741 38,085
Interest expense — related party(1) ................................................. 10,387 22,468 21,947
Income tax expense ........................................................................ 10,745 9,112 12,577
Depreciation and amortization expense ......................................... 101,608 80,398 63,767
Share-based compensation ............................................................. 22,923 11,601 10,741
Employer payroll taxes related to share-based compensation........ 2,044 — —
Other non-operating expense/(income), net(2) ................................ 2,191 (1,101) (609)
New York City ft laff gship Hot Light Theater Shop opening(3) ......... — 6,513 3,784
Strategic initiatives(4) ...................................................................... — 20,517 4,059
Acquisition and integration expenses(5).......................................... 5,255 12,679 20,433
Shop closure expenses(6)................................................................. 2,766 6,269 629
Restructuringt and severance expenses(7) ........................................ 1,733 — 583
IPO-related expenses(8)................................................................... 14,534 3,184 —
Gain on sale-leaseback ................................................................... (8,673) — —
Other(9)............................................................................................ 4,653 (7) 4,389

Adjusted EBITDA.......................................................... $ 187,945 $ 145,434 $ 146,384
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scal Years Ended
(in thousands) January 2, 2022 January 3, 2021 December 29, 2019
Net loss $ (14,843) $ (60,940) $ (34,001)
Interest expense — related party(1) ................................................. 10,387 22,468 21,947
Share-based compensation ............................................................. 22,923 11,601 10,741
Employer payroll taxes related to share-based compensation........ 2,044 — —
Other non-operating expense/(income), net(2) ................................ 2,191 (1,101) (609)
New York City ft laff gship Hot Light Theater Shop opening(3) ......... — 6,513 3,784
Strategic initiatives(4) ...................................................................... — 20,517 4,059
Acquisition and integration expenses(5).......................................... 5,255 12,679 20,433
Shop closure expenses(6)................................................................. 2,766 6,269 629
Restructuringt and severance expenses(7) ........................................ 1,733 — 583
IPO-related expenses(8)................................................................... 14,534 3,184 —
Gain on sale-leaseback ................................................................... (8,673) — —
Other(9)............................................................................................ 4,653 (7) 4,389
Amortization of acquisition related intangibles(10) ......................... 29,803 26,328 21,318
KKI Term Loan Facility interest and debt issuance costs(11) ......... 2,448 — —
Loss on extinguishment of debt(12) ................................................. — — 1,567
Tax impact of adjustments(13) ......................................................... (12,434) (27,629) (19,960)
Tax specific adjustments(14) ............................................................ 3,936 22,464 4,869

Adjusted net income ...................................................... $ 66,723 $ 42,346 $ 39,749

1. Consists of interest expense related to the Related Party Notes which were paid off in full during the second quarter of
fiscal 2021.

2. Primarily foreign translation gains and losses in each period.
3. Consists of pre-opening costs related to our New York City flagship Hot Light Theater Shop opening, including shop

design, rent, and additional consulting and training costs incurred and reflected in selling, general and administrative
expenses.

4. Consists mainly of consulting and advisory fees, personnel transition costs, and network conversion and set-up costs
related to the transformation of the Company’s legacy wholesale business in the U.S.

5. Consists of acquisition and integration-related costs in connection with the Company’s business and franchise acquisitions,
including legal, dued diligence, consulting and advisory fees incurred in connection with acquisition-related activities forff the
applicable period.

6. Includes lease termination costs, impairment charges, and loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment.
7. Fiscal 2021 consists of severance and related benefits costs associated with the Company’s realignment of the Company

Shop organizational structuret to better support the DFD and Branded Sweet Treat Line businesses. Fiscal 2019 consists of
severances and related benefits costs associated with our hiring of a new global management team.

8. Includes consulting and advisory fees incurred in connection with preparation for and execution of the Company’s IPO.
9. Fiscal 2021 consists primarily of legal expenses incurred outside the ordinary course of business on matters described in

Note 14, Commitments and Contingencies, to the audited Consolidated Financial Statements. Fiscal 2020 consists
primarily of fixed asset and impairment expenses, net of a gain on the sale of land, as well as $1.2 million of management
fees paid to JAB. Fiscal 2019 includes $3.1 million lease impairment expenses related to our Winston-Salem office
location incurred in connection with our corporate headquarters relocation to Charlotte, North Carolina.

10. Consists of amortization related to acquired intangible assets as reflected within depreciation and amortization in the
Consolidated Statements of Operations.

11. Includes interest expense and debt issuance costs incurred and recognized as expenses in connection with the
extinguishment of the KKI Term Loan Facility within four business days of receipt of the net proceeds from the IPO.

12. Consists of the write-off of debt issuance costs in connection with the refinaff ncing of the 2016 credit facility.
13. Tax impact of adjustments calculated applyia ng the applicablea statutory rrr ates. The Company’s adjusted effective tax rate is

22.4%, 25.2%, and 41.0% for each of the fiscal years 2021, 2020, and 2019, respectively. Fiscal 2021 includes the impact
of disallowed executive compensation expense incurred in connection with the IPO. The adjusted effective tax rate in fiscal
2019 was higher compared to fiscaff l 2020 and fiscal 2021 due to the recording of an uncertain tax position of $12.0 million
in the fourtff h quarter of fiscal 2019.

14. Fiscal 2021 consists primarily of the effect of tax law changes on existing temporary differences. Fiscal 2020 and fiscal
2019 include valuation allowances of $20.5 million and $6.6 million, respectively, associated with tax attributes primarily
attributablea to incremental costs removed fromff the calculation of Adjusted Net Income.
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Sales Per Hub

In order to measure the effectiveness of our Hub and Spoke model, we use “Sales per Hub” on a trailing four-quarter basis,
which includes all revenue generated from a Hub and its associated Spokes. Sales per Hub equals Fresh Revenues from Hubs
with Spokes, divided by the average number of Hubs with Spokes during the period. Fresh Revenues include product sales
generated from our Doughnut Shop business (including Ecommerce and delivery), as well as DFD sales, but excluding sales
from our legacy wholesale business and our Branded Sweet Treat Line. It also excludes all Insomnia Cookies revenues as the
measure is focused on the Krispy Kreme business. The average number of Hubs with Spokes for a period is calculated as the
average of the number of Hubs with Spokes at the end of the fivff e most recent quarters.

Sales per Hub was as folff lows for each of the periods below:

Fiscal Years Ended

(in thousands, unlessll otherwise stated)
January 2, 2022
(52 weeks)

January 3, 2021
(53 weeks)

December 29,
2019 (52 weeks)

U.S. and Canada:
Revenues .................................................................................................. $ 928,413 $ 782,717 $ 587,522
Non-Fresh Revenues (1) ......................................................................... (37,311) (128,619) (112,051)
Fresh Revenues from Insomnia Cookies and Hubs without Spokes (2) . (415,768) (323,079) (271,067)
Sales froff m Hubs with Spokes ............................................................... 475,334 331,019 204,404
Sales per Hub (millions) ........................................................................ 4.0 3.5 3.2

Intertt natirr onal:
Sales froff m Hubs with Spokes (3)............................................................ $ 332,995 $ 230,185 $ 223,115
Sales per Hub (millions) ........................................................................ 9.1 6.4 8.3

1. Includes legacy wholesale business revenues and Branded Sweet Treat Line revenues.
2. Includes Insomnia Cookies revenues and Fresh Revenues generated by Hubs without Spokes.
3. Total International net revenues is equal to Fresh Revenues from Hubs with Spokes for that business segment.

In our International segment, where the Hub and Spoke model is most developed, Sales per Hub reached $9.1 million, up from
$6.4 million in the fiscal year 2020, and also up from pre-pandemic levels of $8.3 million in the fiscal year 2019. International
illustrates the benefits of leveraging our Hub and Spoke model in the most efficient way to grow the business, as shown by the
International segment’s quick recovery from the impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic and growth in profit margins. In the U.S.
and Canada, we reached Sales per Hub of $4.0 million, up from $3.5 million in the fiscal year 2020 and up from $3.2 million at
the beginning of our transformation in 2019. U.S. and Canada growth was driven by our efforts to increase the number of DFD
Doors served by our Hubs and to increase APD for the DFD Door portfolio, as the segment makes progress toward optimizing
the model to look more like International. As we further extend the Hub and Spoke model into existing and new markets around
the world, we expect to see this measure continue to grow.
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Results of Operations

The following comparisons are historical results and are not indicative of future results which could differ materially fromff the
historical financial information presented.

Fiscii al Year ended January 2, 2022 comparem d to ttt hett Fiscii al Year ended JanuaryJJ 3, 2021

The following tablea presents our audited consolidated results of operations for fiscal 2021 and fiscaff l 2020:

Fiscal Years Ended
January 2,

2022 (52 weeks)
January 3,

2021 (53 weeks) Change

(in thousands except percentages) Amount
% of

Revenue Amount
% of

Revenue $ %

Net revenues
Product sales................................................. $1,353,466 97.8% $1,085,110 96.7% $ 268,356 24.7%
Royalties and other revenues ............................ 30,925 2.2% 36,926 3.3% (6,001) -16.3%
Total net revenues ........................................ 1,384,391 100.0% 1,122,036 100.0% 262,355 23.4%
Product and distribution costs........................... 354,093 25.6% 310,909 27.7% 43,184 13.9%
Operating expenses ........................................ 630,239 45.5% 488,061 43.5% 142,178 29.1%
Selling, general and administrative expense......... 222,394 16.1% 182,317 16.2% 40,077 22.0%
Marketing expenses................................................ 39,489 2.9% 34,000 3.0% 5,489 16.1%
Pre-opening costs........................................... 5,568 0.4% 11,583 1.0% (6,015) -51.9%
Other (income)/expenses, net ........................... (10,102) -0.7% 10,488 0.9% (20,590) -196.3%
Depreciation and amortization expense .............. 101,608 7.3% 80,398 7.2% 21,210 26.4%
Operating income......................................... 41,102 3.0% 4,280 0.4% 36,822 860.3%
Interest expense, net ............................................... 32,622 2.4% 34,741 3.1% (2,119) -6.1%
Interest expense – related party .............................. 10,387 0.8% 22,468 2.0% (12,081) -53.8%
Other non-operating expense/(income), net ........... 2,191 0.2% (1,101) -0.1% 3,292 299.0%
Loss beforeff income taxes ..................................... (4,098) -0.3% (51,828) -4.6% 47,730 92.1%
Income tax expense ................................................ 10,745 0.8% 9,112 0.8% 1,633 17.9%
Net loss................................................................... (14,843) -1.1% (60,940) -5.4% 46,097 75.6%
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest. 9,663 0.7% 3,361 0.3% 6,302 187.5%
Net loss attributable to Krispy Kreme, Inc........ $ (24,506) -1.8% $ (64,301) -5.7% $ 39,795 61.9%

Product sales: Product sales increased $268.4 million, or 24.7%, from fiscal 2020 to fiscal 2021. Approximately $126.2 million
of the increase in product sales was attributable to shops acquired from franchisees.

Royalties and other revenues: Royalties and other revenues decreased $6.0 million, or 16.3%, from fiscal 2020 to fiscal 2021,
reflecting the impact of francff hise acquisitions including KK Japan duringd the fourth quarter of fiscal 2020, U.S. franchises
during the second half of fiscff al 2020 and the first quarter of fiscal 2021, and Krispy K Canada, Inc. (“KK Canada”) during the
fourth quarter of fiscaff l 2021.
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The folff lowing tablea presents a further breakdown of total net revenue and organic revenue growth by segment forff the periods
indicated:

(in thousands except percentages)
U.S. and
Canada International

Market
Development Total Company

Total net revenues in fiscal 2021 (52 weeks) ................................ $ 928,413 $ 332,995 $ 122,983 $ 1,384,391
Total net revenues in fiscal 2020 (53 weeks) ................................ 782,717 230,185 109,134 1,122,036
Total Net Revenues Growth ....................................................... 145,696 102,810 13,849 262,355
Total Net Revenues Growth % .................................................. 18.6% 44.7% 12.7% 23.4%

Less: Impact of 53rd week...................................................... (15,615) (3,287) (1,603) (20,505)
Adjusted net revenues in fiscal 2020............................................. 767,102 226,898 107,531 1,101,531
Adjusted Net Revenue Growth .................................................. 161,311 106,097 15,452 282,860

Impact of acquisitions............................................................. (119,377) — (4,175) (123,552)
Impact of foreign currency translation.................................... — (22,391) 543 (21,848)

Organic Revenue Growth ........................................................... $ 41,934 $ 83,706 $ 11,820 $ 137,460
Organic Revenue Growth %...................................................... 5.5% 36.9% 11.0% 12.5%

Total net revenue growth of $262.4 million, or approximately 23.4%, was partially offset by one less week of sales of
$20.5 million when compared to fiscaff l 2020. Organic revenue growth of $137.5 million, or approximately 12.5%, was driven
by the continued and successful execution of our growth strategy and transformation deploying our omni-channel approach
globally. We have continued to increase availabila ity through new points of access, particularly the expansion of Spokes,
including DFD Doors, for existing Hubs with Spokes duringd fiscal 2021.

U.S. and Canada segment growth, which reflects franchise acquisitions (51 shops in the second half of fiscaff l 2020, 17 shops in
the first quarter of fiscal 2021, and ten shops in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2021), was also driven by strong organic revenue
growth. U.S. and Canada net revenue grew $145.7 million, or approximately 18.6% from fiscal 2020 to fiscal 2021 while
organic revenue grew $41.9 million, or approximately 5.5%, from fiscal 2020 to fiscal 2021, driven by our omni-channel
model, primarily the strength of DFD, as well as strong growth from Insomnia Cookies. Our strategic expansion of the DFD
programs contributed to organic revenue growth with added points of access as well as strengthened APD which has risen over
55% in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2021 compared to the fourth quarter of fiscal 2020. Organic growth was also aided by our
successful adaptation to changing consumer behavior in response to the COVID-19 pandemic (which heavily impacted the
segment during the first fiscff al quarter of 2020), including expansion of Ecommerce and delivery channels. Organic growth was
partially offset by a $98.8 million withdrawal in revenue from our legacy wholesale business, reflecting the evolution of the
DFD business and the discontinuance of certain legacy extended shelf-life products sold through that channel. Excluding the
impact of exiting the legacy wholesale business, U.S. and Canada organic growth was 18.3% for the year.

Our International segment net revenue grew $102.8 million, or approximately 44.7%, from fiscal 2020 to fiscal 2021.
International organic revenue grew $83.7 million or approximately 36.9%, from fiscal 2020 to fiscal 2021, driven mainly by
successfully leveraging our Hub and Spoke model with added points of access while lappinga a previous year which was
negatively impacted by COVID-19. Organic growth for the period was also driven by successful limited time offerings and an
increased leverage of DFD channels, including DFD Door and APD growth.

Our Market Development segment net revenue grew $13.8 million, or approximately 12.7%, from fiscal 2020 to fiscal 2021
driven mainly by the acquisition of KK Japan in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2020. Market Development organic revenue grew
$11.8 million, or approximately 11.0%, from fiscal 2020 to fiscal 2021, primarily driven by improved market conditions for
international franchise locations as COVID-19 restrictions in certain key markets began to ease.

Product and distribution costs (exclusive of do eprecdd iation and amortization): Product and distribution costs increased
$43.2 million, or 13.9%, from fiscal 2020 to fiscal 2021, largely in line with and attributablea to the same factff ors as our revenue
growth.

Product and distribution costs as a percentage of revenue decreased by approximately 210 basis points fromff 27.7% in fiscal
2020 to 25.6% in fiscal 2021. This margin improvement was primarily driven by the U.S. and Canada segment, which benefited
from higher margins from its DFD business dued to the shift to fresh doughnut sales fromff the legacy wholesale business. In
addition, margins improvedm as a result of the sales mix shift due to the impact of fraff nchise acquisitions.
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Operating expensx es: Operating expenses increased $142.2 million, or 29.1%, from fiscal 2020 to fiscal 2021, driven mainly by
franchise acquisitions and labora investments.

Operating expenses as a percentage of revenue increased approxia mately 200 basis points, from 43.5% in fiscal 2020 to 45.5% in
fiscal 2021, driven mainly by the impact of francff hise acquisitions such as KK Japan, U.S. franchises, and KK Canada, which
resulted in additional operating expenses which are needed to run Company-owned operations versus franchises. Additionally,
we have incurred higher labora costs in part due to labora needed to support the Hub and Spoke model transformation as well as
our expansion of DFD points of access and labora investments as a result of the current labora markets around the world.

Selling, general and administrative expensx e: Selling, general and administrative (SG&A) expenses increased $40.1 million, or
22.0%, from fiscal 2020 to fiscal 2021. The increase was driven mainly by an increase in cost related to the completion of our
IPO ($14.5 million), increased share-based compensation expense related to the accelerated vesting of certain employee
restricted stock units in conjunction with the IPO (as well as the re-loading of executive units and stock options during the
second quarter of fiscal 2021), and by SG&A expenses incurred related to the impact of francff hise acquisitions. As a percentage
of revenue, SG&A decreased by approximately 10 basis points, from 16.2% in fiscal 2020 to 16.1% in fiscal 2021, primarily
due to economies of scale fromff our top-line revenue growth.

Marketing expensesx : Marketing expenses increased $5.5 million, or 16.1%, primarily driven by spend associated with the
increased revenues during the year.

Pre-opening costs: Pre-opening costs decreased $6.0 million, or 51.9%, from fiscal 2020 to fiscal 2021, primarily driven by
$3.6 million costs associated with our expansion in NYC including expenses incurred as we prepared for the opening of our
NYC flagship Hot Light Theater Shop in the second half of fiscal 2020.

Other (income)/expee enses, net: Other income, net of $10.1 million in fiscal 2021 was primarily driven by a gain on a sale-
leaseback transaction in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2021 of $8.7 million described in Note 8, Leases, to the audited
Consolidated Financial Statements, as well as $3.5 million related to one-time COVID-19 related business interruption
insurance proceeds for KKUK in the first quarter of fiscaff l 2021.

Depreciation and amortization expense:x Depreciation and amortization expense increased $21.2 million, or 26.4%, from fiscal
2020 to fiscal 2021 primarily driven by the impact of acquired francff hises and depreciation resulting from increased capita al
expenditures.t Depreciation and amortization expenses as a percentage of revenue remained relatively consistent year-over-year.

Interest expensx e, net: Interest expense, net decreased $2.1 million, or 6.1%, from fiscal 2020 to fiscal 2021, primarily reflecting
the decline in the one-month LIBOR rate in fiscff al 2021 for our unhedged variable-rate debt. Interest expense, net is expected to
continue to decline as we reduce our leverage ratio. See “Capital Resources and Liquidity.”

Interest expensx e – related party: Interest expense with related parties decreased $12.1 million, or 53.8%, from fiscal 2020 to
fiscal 2021, driven by paying off our Related Party Nt otes in full with KK GP durid ng the second quarter of fiscaff l 2021.

Other non-operating expense/x (inc// ome), net: Other non-operating expense, net of $2.2 million in fiscal 2021 was primarily
driven by realized and unrealized foreign currency transaction losses.

Income tax expensx e: Income tax expense increased $1.6 million, or 17.9%, from fiscal 2020 to fiscal 2021. During fiscal 2021,
income tax expense was significantly impacted by disallowed executive compensation expense incurred in connection with the
IPO, tax law changes, and the mix of pre-tax earnings between differentff jurisdictions. During fiscal 2020, income tax expense
was significantly impacted by the recording of a valuation allowance against state net operating loss carryforwards and federal
tax credits as well as the mix of pre-tax earnings between different jurisdictions.

Net income attributablt e to noncontrollit ng interest: Net income attributablea to noncontrolling interest increased $6.3 million, or
187.5%, from fiscal 2020 to fiscal 2021, reflecting stronger earnings allocated to the shareholders of consolidated subsidiaries,
particularly Insomnia Cookies, WKS Krispy Kreme, and KKUK.
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Resultsll of Operations by Segment – FiscFF al Year ended JanuaryJJ 2, 2022 comparem d to ttt hett Fiscii al Year ended January 3, 2021

The following tablea presents Adjusted EBITDA by segment forff the periods indicated:

Fiscal Years Ended Change

(in thousands except percentages)
January 2,

2022 (52 weeks)
January 3,

2021 (53 weeks) $ %
Adjusted EBITDA
U.S. and Canada ............................................................... $ 107,571 $ 91,574 $ 15,997 17.5 %
International..................................................................... 81,422 44,554 36,868 82.7 %
Market Development ......................................................... 40,824 39,060 1,764 4.5 %
Corporate ........................................................................ (41,872) (29,754) (12,118) (40.7)%
Total Adjusted d EBITDA (1)................................................ $ 187,945 $ 145,434 $ 42,511 29.2 %

1. Refer to “Key Performance Indicators and Non-GAAP Measures” abovea for a reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA to net
loss.

U.S. and Canada Adjusted EBITDA increased $16.0 million, or 17.5%, from fiscal 2020 to fiscal 2021, primarily driven by the
revenue growth of 18.6%. Our strategic expansion of the DFD business as part of the Hub and Spoke transformation
contributed to this growth with over 1,000 added points of access duringd fiscal 2021. The increase in EBITDA was also driven
by our Insomnia Cookies business which had a strong year aided by the returnt of activity to college campuses compared to
fiscal 2020. Adjusted EBITDA margin for fiscal 2021 was 11.6% which was essentially flat with margin for fiscal 2020, as we
experienced increased near-term costs such as commodity, labor,a and wage pressures, as well as increased occupancu y costs
associated with rents in NYC. To help offset increasing commodity and labora costs, we successfully implemented prices
increases during the third and fourth quarters of fiscal 2021.

International Adjusted EBITDA increased $36.9 million, or 82.7%, from fiscal 2020 to fiscal 2021, primarily driven by revenue
growth of 44.7% due to DFD expansion and widespread impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic on our international markets
during fiscal 2020, particularly in the U.K. and Ireland. Adjusted EBITDA margin for fiscal 2021 was 24.5%, an increase of
510 basis points compared to fiscaff l 2020, as revenue growth significantly out-paced expense growth, leading to higher margins
consistent with these more establia shed Hub and Spoke markets. We expect the International segment to continue to contribute
to strong EBITDA performance as the markets have rebounded well to match or exceed their performance prior to the
pandemic.

Market Development Adjusted EBITDA increased $1.8 million, or 4.5%, from fiscal 2020 to fiscal 2021 driven mainly by
improved market conditions for international franchise locations as COVID-19 restrictions in certain key markets continued to
ease.

Corporate Adjusted EBITDA decreased $12.1 million, or 40.7% from fiscal 2020 to fiscal 2021, primarily driven by an increase
in costs associated with our operation as a public company.

Capital Resources and Liquidity

Our principal sources of liquidity to date have included cash from operating activities, cash on hand, amounts availablea under
our credit facility, and commercial trade financing including our “Supply Chain Financing Program” or the “SCF Program.”
Our primary use of liquidity is to fund the cash requirements of our business operations, including working capita al needs,
capita al expenditures, acquisitions and other commitments.

Our future obligations primarily consist of our debt and lease obligations, as well as commitments under ingredient and other
forward purchase contracts. As of January 2, 2022, we had the following future obligations:

• An aggregate principal amount of $696.3 million outstanding under the 2019 Facility;

• Non-cancellablea future minimum operating lease payments totaling $722.6 million;

• Non-cancellablea future minimum finance lease payments totaling $39.9 million; and

• Purchase commitments under ingredient and other forward purchase contracts of $132.4 million.
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Referff to Note 7, Long-Term Debt, Note 8, Leases, and Note 14, Commitments and Contingencies, to the audited Consolidated
Financial Statements for more information.

We had cash and cash equivalents of $38.6 million and $37.5 million as of January 2, 2022 and January 3, 2021, respectively.
We believe that our existing cash and cash equivalents and debt facilities will be sufficient to fund our operating and capita al
needs for at least the next twelve months. In fiscal 2022, we expect to use our available cash to support and invest in the growth
of our core businesses, including investing in new ways to serve our consumers and support our shop partners, increasing our
omnichannel presence as we increase the expansion of DFD Doors in priority areas, as well as investing in new shop openings
and new market penetration within the U.S. and internationally. Total capita al expenditures forff fiscal 2022 are expected to be in
the range of $115 million to $120 million, with our focus on deploying the capita al-efficiff ent Hub and Spoke model to reduce
capita al expenditures as a percentage of revenues. We also expect to continue to reduce leverage by repaying debt, as well as to
continue to returnt cash to shareholders through common stock cash dividend payments.

Our assessment of the period of time through which our financial resources will be adequate to support our operations is a
forward-looking statement and involves risks and uncertainties. Our actual results could vary because of, and our future capita al
requirements will depend on, many factors, including our growth rate, the timing and extent of spending to acquire franchises,
the growth of our presence in new markets and the expansion of our omni-channel model in existing markets. We may enter
into arrangements in the future to acquire or invest in complementary businesses, services and technologies. We have based this
estimate on assumptim ons that may prove to be wrong, and we could use our available capital resources sooner than we currently
expect. We may be required to seek additional equity or debt financing. In the event that additional finaff ncing is required fromff
outside sources, we may not be able to raise it on terms acceptablea to us or at all. If we are unable to raise additional capital
when desired, or if we cannot expand our operations or otherwise capita alize on our business opportunities because we lack
sufficienff t capital, our business, results of operations and financial condition would be adversely affected.

Cash FlowFF sw

We generate significant cash from operations and have substantial credit availabila ity and capaca ity to fundff operating and
discretionary spending such as capita al expenditures and debt repayments. Our requirement for working capita al is not significant
because our consumers pay us in cash or on debit or credit cards at the time of the sale and we are able to sell many of our
inventory items before payment is due to the vendor of such items. The following tablea and discussion present, forff the periods
indicated, a summary of our key cash flowsff from operating, investing and finaff ncing activities:

Fiscal Years Ended

(in thousands)
January 2,

2022 (52 weeks)
January 3,

2021 (53 weeks)

Net cash provided by operating activities...................................................................... $ 141,224 $ 28,675
Net cash used for investing activities ........................................................................... (153,407) (168,128)
Net cash provided by finaff ncing activities...................................................................... 16,096 139,441

Cash FloFF ws Provided by Operating Activities

Cash provided by operations totaled $141.2 million for fiscal 2021, an increase of $112.5 million compared with fiscaff l 2020.
Cash provided by operations increased primarily due to operating results producing a smaller net loss in fiscal 2021 due in part
to impacts on business operations during the COVID-19 pandemic in fiscaff l 2020. The increase also reflected an improvement
of approximately $40.5 million in working capita al management primarily as a result of changes in accounts receivable,
inventories, and accounts payablea and accruedr liabilities balances.

We have undertaken broad efforts to improve our working capita al position and cash generation, in part by negotiating longer
payment terms with vendors. We have an agreement with a third-party administrator which allows participating vendors to
track our payments, and if voluntarily elected by the vendor, to sell payment obligations from us to financial institutit ons (the
“Supply Chain Financing Program” or the “SCF Program”). Our typical payment terms for trade payablea s range to 180 days
outside of the SCF Program, depending on the type of vendors and the naturet of the supplies or services. For vendors under the
SCF Program, we have established payablea terms ranging up to, but not exceeding, 360 days. When participating vendors elect
to sell one or more of our payment obligations, our rights and obligations to settle the payablea s on their contractual dued date are
not impacted. We have no economic or commercial interest in a vendor’s decision to enter into these agreements and the
financial institutitt ons do not provide us with incentives such as rebates or profit sharing under the SCF Program. We agree on
commercial terms with vendors for the goods and services procured, which are consistent with payment terms observed at other
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peer companies in the industry, and as the terms are not impacted by the SCF Program, such obligations are classified as trade
payablea s. Our increased use of the SCF programs has continued through the end of fiscal 2021.

Cash FlowFF s Uww sedUU for Investing Activities

Cash used for investing activities totaled $153.4 million for fiscal 2021, a decrease in investment of $14.7 million compared
with fiscal 2020. The decrease is primarily due to $11.1 million cash received as proceeds from a sale-leaseback transaction and
$28.6 million less cash used for acquisitions in fiscal 2021, partially offset by an incremental $21.7 million of property and
equipment purchases.

Cash FlowFF s Pww rovided by Fb inancFF ing Activities

Cash provided by finaff ncing activities totaled $16.1 million for fiscal 2021, a decrease of $123.3 million compared with fiscal
2020. The decrease was mainly driven by a variance of $88.2 million cash flows related to structuredt payablea s programs (net
payments on structuredt payablea s of $20.8 million in fiscal 2021 compared to net proceeds from structuredt payablea s of $67.4
million in fiscal 2020), as we utilized excess cash to pay off outstanding balances. We utilize various card products issued by
financial institutit ons to facilitate purchases of goods and services. By using these products, we may receive differing levels of
rebates based on timing of repayment. The payment obligations under these card products are classified as structuredt payablea s
on our Consolidated Balance Sheets and the associated cash flowsff are included in the financing section of our Consolidated
Statement of Cash Flows.

Other highlights from fiscal 2021 included:

• Repayments of long-term debt and lease obligations (net of proceeds from the issuance of debt) of $453.7 million,
which included the extinguishment of the Related Party Nt otes and the Term Loan Facility described furtheff r below;

• Proceeds from investments by shareholders of $701.3 million, including receipt of $527.3 million IPO proceeds net of
underwriting discounts (but excluding $12.5 million capita alized offering expenses unpaid as of the end of fiscal
2021); and

• Distributions to shareholders and payments forff the repurchase and retirement of common stock of $210.6 million.

Debt

Our long-term debt obligations consist of the following:

(in thousands)
January 2,
2022

January 3,
2021

2019 Facility - term loan ............................................................................................................. $ 621,250 $ 656,250
2019 Facility - revolving credit facff ility ....................................................................................... 75,000 150,000
Less: Debt issuance costs ............................................................................................................ (3,833) (5,419)
Financing obligations .................................................................................................................. 24,473 26,224
Total long-term debt.................................................................................................................. 716,890 827,055
Less: Current portion of long-term debt ...................................................................................... (36,583) (41,245)
Long-term debt, less current portion....................................................................................... 680,307 785,810
Related party notes payablea (excluding accrued interest) ........................................................... — 337,148
Total debt and related party notes payable............................................................................. $ 680,307 $ 1,122,958

2019 Facilitytt

On June 13, 2019, we entered into a credit agreement (the “2019 Facility”). The 2019 Facility provides forff senior secured credit
facilities in the form of $700.0 million in aggregate principal of term loans and $300.0 million of revolving capaca ity.
Borrowings under the 2019 Facility are subject to an interest rate of one-month LIBOR plus 2.25% if our Total Net Leverage
Ratio (as defined in the 2019 Facility) equals or exceeds 4.00 to 1.00, 2.00% if our Total Net Leverage Ratio is less than 4.00 to
1.00 but greater than or equal to 3.00 to 1.00 or 1.75% if our Total Net Leverage Ratio is less than 3.00 to 1.00, as determined
under the 2019 Facility. We are required to make equal installments of 1.25% of the aggregate closing date principal amount of
the term loans on the last day of each fiscal quarter. All remaining term loan and revolving loan balances are to be due five
years from the initial closing date.
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Under the terms of the 2019 Facility, we are subject to a requirement to maintain a Total Net Leverage Ratio of less than 5.50 to
1.00 as of January 2, 2022, which reduces to 5.00 to 1.00 by April 2, 2023. The Total Net Leverage Ratio under the 2019
Facility is defined as the ratio of (a) Total Indebtedness (as defined in the 2019 Facility, which includes all debt and finance
lease obligations) minus unrestricted cash and cash equivalents to (b) a defined calculation of Adjusted EBITDA (“2019
Facility Adjusted EBITDA”) forff the most recently ended Test Period (as defined in the 2019 Facility). The 2019 Facility
Adjusted EBITDA for purposes of these restrictive covenants includes incremental adjustments beyond those included in our
Adjusted EBITDA non-GAAP measure. Specifically, the 2019 Facility Adjusted EBITDA definition includes pro forma impact
of EBITDA to be received from new shop openings and acquisitions for periods not yet in operation, certain acquisition related
synergies and cost optimization activities and incremental add-backs for pre-opening costs and for COVID-19 expenses and lost
profits. Our Total Net Leverage Ratio was 2.99 to 1.00 as of the end of fiscal 2021 compared to 3.98 to 1.00 as of the end of
fiscal 2020.

We were in compliance with the financial and other covenants related to the 2019 Facility as of January 2, 2022 and as of the
date of this filff ing of our Annual Report on Form 10-K, and expect to remain in compliance over the next 12 months. If we are
unable to meet the 2019 Facility financial or other covenants in futureff periods, it may negatively impact our liquidity by
limiting our ability to draw on the revolving credit facility, could result in the lenders accelerating the maturity of such
indebtedness and foreclosing upon the collateral pledged thereunder, and could require the replacement of the 2019 Facility
with new sources of finaff ncing which there is no guaranty we could secure. For additional information, refer to Note 7, Long-
Term Debt, to the audited Consolidated Financial Statements.

Related Party Notes

We were previously party to a senior unsecured note agreement with KK GP for an aggregate principal amount of $283.1
million. In April 2019, we entered into an additional unsecured note with KK GP forff $54.0 million (such notes together, the
“Related Party Notes”). As of January 3, 2021, the outstanding amount of principal and interest was $344.6 million. The
Related Party Notes were paid off in full during the second quarter of fiscal 2021. The interest expense for the fiscal years
ended January 2, 2022, January 3, 2021, and December 29, 2019 was $10.4 million, $22.5 million and $21.9 million,
respectively. See Note 15, Related Party Tt ransactions, to the audited Consolidated Financial Statements for more information.

Term Loan Facility

On June 10, 2021, we entered into the Term Loan Facility. On June 17, 2021, we borrowed $500.0 million under the Term
Loan Facility. The borrowings under the Term Loan Facility bore an all-in interest rate of 2.68175%. As of January 2, 2022,
there was no outstanding principal amount under the Term Loan Facility, as it was paid off in full and terminated on July 7,
2021, primarily using the net IPO proceeds with the difference being partially fundedff by a drawdown of $100.0 million on the
2019 Facility’s revolving credit facility. The Term Loan Facility would have matured on the earlier of (i) June 10, 2022, and (ii)
within fourff business days following consummation of the IPO. The interest expense was $2.4 million for the fiscal year ended
January 2, 2022, which included $1.7 million of debt issuance costs incurred and recognized as expenses. For additional
information, refer to Note 7, Long-Term Debt, to the audited Consolidated Financial Statements.

Critical Accounting Estimates

The financial informatff ion discussed in this “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations” is based upon or derived from the audited Consolidated Financial Statements, which have been prepared in
conformity with GAAP. The preparation of the financial statements requires the use of judgments, estimates and assumptim ons
that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses as well as related disclosures. We consider an
accounting judgment, estimate or assumptim on to be critical when (1) the estimate or assumptim on is complex in naturet or requires
a high degree of judgment and (2) the use of different judgments, estimates and assumptim ons could have a material impact on
the audited Consolidated Financial Statements.

On an ongoing basis, we evaluate our estimates and judgments based on historical experience and various other facff tors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. We review our financial reporting and disclosure practices and accounting
policies quarterly to confirm that they provide accurate and transparent information relative to the current economic and
business environment. A summary of our significant accounting policies is included in Note 1, Description of Business and
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, to the audited Consolidated Financial Statements. We believe that our critical
accounting estimates are:
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Self-InsurancII e Risks and Receivablesll from Insurers

We are subject to workers’ compensation, vehicle and general liability claims and are self-iff nsured forff a significant portion of
our workers’ compensation, vehicle and general liability claims up to the amount of stop-loss insurance coverage purchased
from commercial insurance carriers. We maintain accrualr s forff the estimated cost of claims, without regard to the effects of stop-
loss coverage, using actuarial methods which evaluate known open and incurred but not reported claims and consider historical
loss development experience. In addition, we record receivabla es froff m the insurance carriers for claims amounts estimated to be
recovered under the stop-loss insurance policies when these amounts are estimablea and probable of collection. We estimate
such stop-loss receivables using the same actuarial methods used to establia sh the related claims accrualrr s and taking into account
the amount of risk transferred to the carriers under the stop-loss policies. The stop-loss policies provide coverage for claims in
excess of retained self-insurance risks, which are determined on a claim-by-claim basis. As of January 2, 2022 and January 3,
2021, the Company had approximately $14.7 million and $14.4 million, respectively, reserved forff such programs. Inclusive of
the receivables fromff the stop-loss insurance policies, the Company’s limited liabia lity balance was $7.5 million and $7.7 million
as of January 2, 2022 and January 3, 2021, respectively.

Our estimated liabia lity is not discounted and is based on a number of assumptim ons and factors. The critical assumptim ons used in
determining these related expenses and obligations are future cost projections of claims, which include healthcare cost
projections. These critical assumptim ons are calculated based on historical Company data and experience, as well as appropriate
market indicators including inflation, societal attitudet s toward legal action, and changes in law. The assumptim ons are evaluated
at least semiannually by us in conjunction with outside actuaries and are closely monitored and adjusted when warranted by
changing circumstances. If a greater amount of claims are reported, or if medical costs increase beyond our expectations, our
liabilities may not be sufficient, and we could recognize additional expense.

Income Taxes

Our provision for income taxes, deferff red tax assets and liabilities including valuation allowance requires the use of estimates
based on our management’s interpretation and application of complex tax laws and accounting guidance. We are primarily
subject to income taxes in the U.S. We establish reserves forff uncertain tax positions for material, known tax exposures in
accordance with ASC 740 relating to deductions, transactions and other matters involving some uncertainty as to the
measurement and recognition of the item. We may adjud st these reserves when our judgment changes as a result of the
evaluation of new information not previously available and will be reflected in the period in which the new information is
available. While we believe that our reserves are adequate, issues raised by a tax authority may be resolved at an amount
different than the related reserve and could materially increase or decrease our income tax provision in future periods.

Realization of deferred tax assets involves estimates regarding (i) the timing and amount of the reversal of taxable temporary
differences, (ii) expected future taxable income, and (iii) the impact of tax planning strategies. We believe that it is more likely
than not that we will not realize the benefit of certain deferred tax assets and, accordingly, have established a valuation
allowance against them. In assessing the need forff a valuation allowance, we consider all available positive and negative
evidence, including past operating results, projections of future taxable income and the feasibility of and potential changes to
ongoing tax planning strategies. The projections of future taxable income include a number of estimates and assumptim ons
regarding our volume, pricing and costs. Although realization is not assured forff the remaining deferred tax assets, we believe it
is more likely than not that the remaining deferred tax assets will be realized through future taxable earnings or alternative tax
strategies. However, deferred tax assets could be reduced in the near term if our estimates of taxable income are significantly
reduced or tax strategies are no longer viable.

Goodwill all nd Indefinite e Ltt ived Intangiblett Assets

For each reporting unit, the Company assesses goodwill for impairment annually at the beginning of the fourth fiscal quarter or
more frequently when impairment indicators are present. If the carrying value of the reporting unit exceeds its fairff value, the
Company recognizes an impairment charge for the differenceff up to the carrying value of the allocated goodwill. The fair value
is estimated using a combination of a discounted cash flow approach and a market approaca h.

When assessing goodwill for impairment, our decision to perform a qualitative impairment assessment for an individual
reporting unit is influenced by a number of facff tors, inclusive of the carrying value of the reporting unit’s goodwill, the
significance of the excess of the reporting unit’s estimated faiff r value over carrying value at the last quantitative assessment date,
the amount of time in between quantitative fair value assessments and the date of acquisition. If we perform a quantitative
assessment of an individual reporting unit’s goodwill, our impairment calculations contain uncertainties because they require
management to make assumptim ons and to apply judgment when estimating future cash flows and asset fairff values, including
projected revenue growth and operating expenses related to existing businesses, product innovation and new shop concepts, as
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well as utilizing valuation multiples of similar publicly traded companies and selecting an appropriate discount rate. Estimates
of revenue growth and operating expenses are based on internal projections considering the reporting unit’s past performance
and forecasted growth, strategic initiatives, local market economics and the local business environment impacting the reporting
unit’s performance. The discount rate is selected based on the estimated cost of capita al for a market participant to operate the
reporting unit in the region. These estimates, as well as the selection of comparablea companies and valuation multiples used in
the market approaches are highly subjective, and our ability to realize the future cash flows used in our fair value calculations is
affected by factors such as the success of strategic initiatives, changes in economic conditions, changes in our operating
performance and changes in our business strategies, including retail initiatives and international expansion.

For the fiscal years 2021, 2020 and 2019, there were no goodwill impairment charges. We continue to believe the fair value of
each of our reporting units is significantly in excess of its carrying value, and absent a sustained multi-year global decline in our
business in key markets such as the U.S. and Canada, we do not anticipate incurring significant goodwill impairment in the next
12 months.

Other intangible assets, net primarily represent the trade names forff our brands, franchise agreements (domestic and
international), reacquired franchise rights, and customer relationships. The trade names have been assigned an indefinite useful
life and are reviewed annually for impairment. The fair value calculation forff the trade names includes estimates of revenue
growth, which are based on past performance and internal projections for the intangible asset group’s forecasted growth and
royalty rates, which are adjusted forff our particular facff ts and circumstances. The discount rate is selected based on the estimated
cost of capita al that reflects the risk profile of the related business. These estimates are highly subjective, and our ability to
achieve the forecasted cash flowsff used in our fair value calculations is affected by facff tors such as the success of strategic
initiatives, changes in economic conditions, changes in our operating performance and changes in our business strategies,
including retail initiatives and international expansion. All other intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives. Definite-lived intangible assets are assessed forff impairment whenever triggering events or
indicators of potential impairment occur. We did not have any impairment charges of other intangible assets during any of the
periods presented, and we do not anticipate incurring significant impairment charges in the next 12 months.

New Accounting Pronouncements

Refer to Note 1, Description of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, to the audited Consolidated
Financial Statements for a detailed description of recent accounting pronouncements.
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Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Effects of Changing Pn ricPP es – InflatiII on

We are exposed to the effects of commodity price flucff tuations in the cost of ingredients of our products, of which flour, sugar
and shortening are the most significant. During the second half of fiscaff l 2021 we have experienced headwinds from commodity
inflation globally. We have undertaken efforts to effectively manage inflationary cost increases through rapid inventory
turnover and reduced inventory waste, increased focus on resiliency of our supply chains, and an ability to adjust pricing of our
products (including price increases taking effect in the second half of fiscaff l 2021). Additionally, from time to time we may
enter into forward contracts for supply through our vendors for raw materials that are ingredients of our products or that are
components of such ingredients, including wheat and soybean oil.

We are also exposed to the effects of commodity price flucff tuations in the cost of gasoline used by our delivery vehicles. To
mitigate the risk of fluctuatt ions in the price of our gasoline purchases, we may directly purchase commodity futureff s contracts.

Interestt t Rate Risk

We are exposed to changes in interest rates on any borrowings under our debt facilities, which bear interest based on the one-
month LIBOR (with a floorff of zero). Generally, interest rate changes could impact the amount of our interest paid and,
therefore, our future earnings and cash flows, assuming other facff tors are held constant. To mitigate the impact of changes in
LIBOR on interest expense forff a portion of our variable rate debt, we have entered into interest rate swapsa on $505.0 million
notional of our $696.3 million of outstanding debt as of January 2, 2022, which we account for as cash flow hedges. Based on
the $191.3 million of unhedged outstanding as of January 2, 2022, a 100 basis point increase in the one-month LIBOR would
result in a $1.9 million increase in interest expense forff a twelve-month period, while a 100 basis point decrease would result in
the floor of zero and thus a decrease in interest expense of $0.2 million for a twelve-month period based on the daily average of
the one-month LIBOR for the fiscal quarter ended January 2, 2022.

The Financial Conduct Authority in the U.K. intends to phase out LIBOR by the end of 2023. We have negotiated terms in
consideration of this discontinuation and do not expect that the discontinuation of the LIBOR rate, including any legal or
regulatory changes made in response to its futureff phase out, will have a material impact on our liquidity or results of operations.

Foreigni Currency Riskii

We are exposed to foreign currency translation risk on the operations of our subsidiaries that have functional currencies other
than the U.S. dollar, whose revenues accounted forff approximately 28% of our total net revenues through the fiscal year ended
January 2, 2022. A substantial majority of these revenues, or approximately $384.8 million through the fiscal year ended
January 2, 2022, were attributablea to subsidiaries whose functional currencies are the Canadian dollar, the British pound
sterling, the Euro, the Australian dollar, the New Zealand dollar, the Mexican peso, and the Japanese yen. A 10% increase or
decrease in the average fiscal 2021 exchange rate of the Canadian dollar, the British pound sterling, the Euro, the Australian
dollar, the New Zealand dollar, the Mexican peso, and the Japanese yen against the U.S. dollar would have resulted in a
decrease or increase of approximately $38.5 million in our total net revenues through the fiscal year ended January 2, 2022.

From time to time, we engage in foreign currency exchange and credit transactions with our non-U.S. subsidiaries, which we
typically hedge. To date, the impact of such transactions, including the cost of hedging, has not been material. We do not
engage in foreign currency or hedging transactions for speculative purposes.
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Report of Independent Registered Accounting Firm

Board of Directors and Shareholders
Krispy Kreme, Inc.

Opinion on the financial statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Krispy Kreme, Inc. (a Delaware corporation) and
subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of January 2, 2022 and January 3, 2021, the related consolidated statements of operations,
comprehensive income (loss), changes in shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
January 2, 2022, and the related notes (collectively referred to as the “financial statements”). In our opinion, the financial
statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of January 2, 2022 and January 3,
2021, and the results of its operations and its cash flowsff for each of the three years in the period ended January 2, 2022, in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for opinion

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
the Company’s financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (“PCAOB”) and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in
accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicablea rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange
Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are freff e of material misstatement, whether dued to
error or fraud. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over
financial reporting. As part of our audits we are required to obtain an understanding of internal control over financial reporting
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion.

Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis,
evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Critical audit matters

Critical audit matters are matters arising from the current period audit of the financial statements that were communicated or
required to be communicated to the audit committee and that: (1) relate to accounts or disclosures that are material to the
financial statements and (2) involve our especially challenging, subjective, or complex judgments. We determined there are no
critical audit matters.

/s/GRANT THORNTONRR LLP

We have served as the Company’s auditor since 2017.

Denver, Colorado

March 11, 2022
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Krispy Kreme, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Operations

(in thousands, exceptee per share amounts and number of shares)

Fiscal Years Ended
January 2,

2022 (52 weeks)
January 3,

2021 (53 weeks)
December 29,
2019 (52 weeks)

Net revenues
Product sales..................................................................................................... $ 1,353,466 $ 1,085,110 $ 912,805
Royalties and other revenues............................................................................ 30,925 36,926 46,603
Total net revenues .......................................................................................... 1,384,391 1,122,036 959,408
Product and distribution costs .......................................................................... 354,093 310,909 262,013
Operating expenses .......................................................................................... 630,239 488,061 390,849
Selling, general and administrative expense .................................................... 222,394 182,317 161,452
Marketing expenses.......................................................................................... 39,489 34,000 28,785
Pre-opening costs ............................................................................................. 5,568 11,583 7,078
Other (income)/expenses, net ........................................................................... (10,102) 10,488 7,465
Depreciation and amortization expense ........................................................... 101,608 80,398 63,767
Operating income ........................................................................................... 41,102 4,280 37,999
Interest expense, net ......................................................................................... 32,622 34,741 38,085
Interest expense – related party ........................................................................ 10,387 22,468 21,947
Other non-operating expense/(income), net ..................................................... 2,191 (1,101) (609)
Loss beforeff income taxes ............................................................................... (4,098) (51,828) (21,424)
Income tax expense .......................................................................................... 10,745 9,112 12,577
Net loss............................................................................................................. (14,843) (60,940) (34,001)
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest........................................... 9,663 3,361 3,408
Net loss attributable to Krispy Kreme, Inc.................................................. $ (24,506) $ (64,301) $ (37,409)
Net loss per share:
Common stock - Basic ..................................................................................... $ (0.18) $ (0.52) $ (0.30)
Common stock - Diluted .................................................................................. $ (0.18) $ (0.52) $ (0.30)
Weighted average shares outstanding:
Basic ................................................................................................................. 147,654,548 124,987,370 124,987,370
Diluted.............................................................................................................. 147,654,548 124,987,370 124,987,370

See accompanying notes to Consolidated FinFF ancial Statements.
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Krispy Kreme, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income/(Loss)

(in thousands)

Fiscal Years Ended
January 2,

2022 (52 weeks)
January 3,

2021 (53 weeks)
December 29,
2019 (52 weeks)

Net loss.............................................................................................................. $ (14,843) $ (60,940) $ (34,001)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income:

Foreign currency translation adjustmd ent, net of income taxes(1) ........... (14,955) 19,426 6,940
Unrealized income/(loss) on cash flow hedges, net of income taxes(2) . 13,609 (14,430) (6,446)
Unrealized loss on employee benefit plans............................................ (338) (106) —
Total other comprehensive (loss)/income .......................................... (1,684) 4,890 494

Comprehensive loss ......................................................................................... (16,527) (56,050) (33,507)
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest ................................ 9,663 3,361 3,408
Foreign currency translation adjustment attributablea to noncontrolling
interest .............................................................................................. (414) 547 —

Total comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling
interest ............................................................................................. 9,249 3,908 3,408

Comprehensive loss attributable to Krispy Kreme, Inc. ............................. $ (25,776) $ (59,958) $ (36,915)

1. Net of income tax expense of $0.0 million, $0.0 million and ($0.8 million) for the fiscal years ended January 2, 2022,
January 3, 2021, and December 29, 2019, respectively.

2. Net of income tax (expense)/bene/ fit of ($4.5 million), $4.8 million and $2.1 million for the fiscal years ended January 2,
2022, January 3, 2021, and December 29, 2019, respectively.

See accompanying notes to Consolidated FinFF ancial Statements.
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Krispy Kreme, Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheets

(in thousands, exceptee per share amounts att nd number of shares)

As of
January 2,
2022 January 3, 2021

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents ............................................................................................................... $ 38,562 $ 37,460
Marketablea securities ....................................................................................................................... — 1,048
Restricted cash ................................................................................................................................. 630 23
Accounts receivablea , net .................................................................................................................. 47,491 45,998
Inventories ....................................................................................................................................... 34,851 38,519
Taxes receivablea .............................................................................................................................. 14,662 28,353
Prepaid expense and other current assets......................................................................................... 20,701 12,692

Total current assets .............................................................................................................. 156,897 164,093
Property and equipment, net ............................................................................................................ 438,918 395,255
Goodwill .......................................................................................................................................... 1,105,322 1,086,546
Other intangible assets, net .............................................................................................................. 992,520 998,014
Operating lease right of use asset, net.............................................................................................. 435,168 399,688
Other assets ...................................................................................................................................... 16,429 17,399

Total assets............................................................................................................................ $ 3,145,254 $ 3,060,995
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Current portion of long-term debt.................................................................................................... $ 36,583 $ 41,245
Current operating lease liabila ities .................................................................................................... 50,359 45,675
Accounts payable............................................................................................................................. 182,104 148,645
Accrued liabilities ............................................................................................................................ 140,750 124,951
Structured payablea s.......................................................................................................................... 116,361 137,319

Total current liabilities ........................................................................................................ 526,157 497,835
Long-term debt, less current portion................................................................................................ 680,307 785,810
Related party notes payablea ............................................................................................................. — 344,581
Noncurrent operating lease liabila ities .............................................................................................. 415,208 376,099
Deferred income taxes, net .............................................................................................................. 145,418 144,866
Other long-term obligations and deferred credits ............................................................................ 42,509 63,445

Total liabilities ...................................................................................................................... 1,809,599 2,212,636
Commitments and contingencies
Shareholders’ equity:
Common stock, $0.01 par value; 300,000,000 and 174,500,000 shares authorized as of
January 2, 2022 and January 3, 2021, respectively; 167,250,855 and 124,987,370 shares
issued and outstanding as of January 2, 2022 and January 3, 2021, respectively........................ 1,673 1,250

Additional paid-in capital ................................................................................................................ 1,415,185 845,499
Shareholder note receivable............................................................................................................. (4,382) (18,660)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of income tax............................................................. (2,478) (1,208)
Retained deficit ................................................................................................................................ (178,409) (142,197)

Total shareholders’ equity attributable to Krispy Kreme, Inc........................................ 1,231,589 684,684
Noncontrolling interest .................................................................................................................... 104,066 163,675

Total shareholders’ equity................................................................................................... 1,335,655 848,359
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity........................................................................... $ 3,145,254 $ 3,060,995

See accompanying notes to ConsoliCC dated FinFF ancial Statements.tt
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Krispy Kreme, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(in thousands)
Years Ended

January 2,
2022 (52
weeks)

January 3,
2021 (53
weeks)

December 29,
2019 (52
weeks)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net loss....................................................................................................................................................... $ (14,843) $ (60,940) $ (34,001)
Adjustmentsd to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization expense .......................................................................................... 101,608 80,398 63,767
Deferred income taxes .................................................................................................................... (3,496) (36) 8,422
Loss on extinguishment of debt ...................................................................................................... 1,700 — 1,567
Impairment and lease termination charges ..................................................................................... 3,507 4,701 3,081
Loss on disposal of property and equipment .................................................................................. 458 2,771 585
Gain on sale-leaseback.................................................................................................................... (8,673) — —
Share-based compensation.............................................................................................................. 22,923 11,601 10,741
Change in accounts and notes receivable allowances..................................................................... 275 1,047 365
Inventory write-off.......................................................................................................................... 4,071 726 231
Gain on contingent consideration related to a business combination............................................. — (1,521) (499)
Payment of contingent consideration in excess of acquisition date fair value ............................... — — (4,229)
Collection of related party income tax receivable .......................................................................... — — 28,593
Other ............................................................................................................................................... 594 410 4,703
Change in operating assets and liabilities, excluding business acquisitions and foreign currency

translation adjustments:d
Accounts, notes, and taxes receivable................................................................................ (3,817) (11,942) (1,258)
Inventories.......................................................................................................................... (301) (15,353) (3,217)
Other current and noncurrent assets................................................................................... (316) 434 (5,603)
Operating lease assets and liabilities.................................................................................. 7,787 (1,575) 3,500
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ........................................................................... 30,240 12,906 (10,153)
Other long-term obligations and deferred credits .............................................................. (493) 5,048 14,217

Net cash provided by operating activities .............................................................................................. 141,224 28,675 80,812
CASH FLOWS USED FOR INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Purchase of property and equipment............................................................................................... (119,497) (97,826) (76,373)
Proceeds from disposals of assets ................................................................................................... 218 2,837 —
Proceeds from sale-leaseback ......................................................................................................... 11,091 — —
Acquisition of shops and franchise rights from franchisees, net of cash acquired ......................... (46,330) (74,890) (150,373)
Principal payments received fromff loans to franchisees.................................................................. 92 684 645
Purchases of held-to-maturity debt securities ................................................................................. — (57) (776)
Maturities of held-to-maturity debt securities................................................................................. 1,019 1,124 271

Net cash used for investing activities...................................................................................................... (153,407) (168,128) (226,606)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Proceeds from the issuance of debt................................................................................................. 695,000 288,097 804,002
Repayment of long-term debt and lease obligations....................................................................... (1,147,049) (225,541) (714,617)
Payment of financing costs ............................................................................................................. (1,700) — (5,665)
Proceeds fromff structured payables ................................................................................................. 266,851 292,756 124,666
Payments on structured payables .................................................................................................... (287,625) (225,320) (68,757)
Payment of contingent consideration related to a business combination ....................................... — (506) (4,646)
Capia tal contribution by shareholders .............................................................................................. 120,532 — —
Proceeds from IPO, net of underwriting discounts (excluding unpaid issuance costs) .................. 527,329 — —
Proceeds from sale of noncontrolling interest in subsidiary........................................................... 53,404 21,386 15,625
Distribution to shareholders............................................................................................................ (48,187) (42) (2,629)
Payments for repurchase and retirement of common stock............................................................ (139,103) — —
Distribution to noncontrolling interest............................................................................................ (23,356) (11,389) (18,902)

Net cash provided by financing activities............................................................................................... 16,096 139,441 129,077
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash......................................... (2,204) 2,045 (941)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash ....................................................... 1,709 2,033 (17,658)
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at beginning of the fiscal year ................................................ 37,483 35,450 53,108
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at end of the fiscalff year ................................................... $ 39,192 $ 37,483 $ 35,450
Supplemental schedule of non-cash investing and financing activities:

(Decrease)/increase in accrual for property and equipment, net..................................................... $ (1,159) $ 10,182 $ 10,489
Stock issuance under shareholder notes.......................................................................................... 963 1,535 1,856
Accrual for distribution to shareholders ......................................................................................... (6,928) — —
Contingent consideration incurred for acquisition of Krispy KremeK Mexico ................................ — — 14,021
Contingent consideration incurred for acquisition of shops and franchiseff rights from domestic

franchisees................................................................................................................................ — — 506
Reconciliation of cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at end of fiscalff year:

Cash and cash equivalents .............................................................................................................. $ 38,562 $ 37,460 $ 35,373
Restricted cash ................................................................................................................................ 630 23 77
Total cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash........................................................................ $ 39,192 $ 37,483 $ 35,450

See accompanying notes to Consolidated FinFF ancial Statements.
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Krispy Kreme, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(dollarsll in thousands, unlesll s otherwiseii specifiei d)

Note 1 — Description of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Descriptiontt of Business

Krispy Kreme, Inc. (“KKI”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Company” or “KrispyKK Kreme”) operate through an omni-
channel business model to provide doughnut experiences and produce doughnuts for Doughnut Shops, Delivered Fresh Daily
(“DFD”) outlets, Ecommerce and delivery, and Krispy Kreme branded sweet treats (“Branded Sweet Treat Line”) channels,
expanding consumer access to the Krispy Kreme brand.

The Company has three reportablea operating segments: 1) U.S. and Canada, which includes all Krispy Kreme Company-owned
operations in the U.S. and Canada, Insomnia Cookies shops and the Branded Sweet Treat Line; 2) International, which includes
all KrispyKK Kreme Company-owned operations in the U.K., Ireland, Australia, New Zealand and Mexico; and 3) Market
Development, which includes francff hise operations across the globe, as well as Krispy Kreme Company-owned shops in Japan.
Unallocated corporate costs are excluded fromff the Company’s measurement of segment performance.

As of January 2, 2022, the Company had 1,810 Krispy Kreme and Insomnia Cookies branded shops in over 30 countries around
the world, of which 971 were controlled and operated by the Company and 839 were franchised. The ownership and location of
those shops is as follows:

Krispy Kreme
U.S. and Canada

Krispy Kreme
International

Insomnia
Cookies Total

Company-owned shops ........................................................... 307 454 210 971
Franchise shops ....................................................................... 66 773 — 839
Total........................................................................................ 373 1,227 210 1,810

Initiii ali Public OfferO ing

The Company’s registration statement on Form S-1 related to its initial public offering (“IPO”) was declared effective on June
30, 2021 and the Company’s common stock began trading on the Nasdaq Global Select Market on July 1, 2021. On July 1,
2021, the Company completed its IPO, in which the Company sold 29.4 million shares of common stock at a price to the public
of $17.00 per share. The Company received aggregate net proceeds of $458.8 million after deducting underwriting discounts
and commissions of $28.7 million and offering expenses of $12.5 million.

In connection with the IPO, the Company and its affiliates completed the folff lowing transactions:

• On June 10, 2021, the Company's wholly-owned (excluding certain management equity interests) subsidiary, Krispy
Kreme Holdings, Inc. (“KKHI”), entered into a term loan credit agreement, as borrower, which provided forff term
loans in an initial aggregate principal amount of $500.0 million (the “Term Loan Facility”). On June 17, 2021, KKHI
borrowed $500.0 million under the Term Loan Facility, with debt issuance costs of $1.7 million which were included
in Interest expense, net on the Consolidated Statements of Operations during the second quarter of fiscal 2021. The
borrowings bore an all-in interest rate of 2.68175%. On June 28, 2021, following the Merger (as defined below), KKI
assumed all of the obligations of KKHI as borrower under the Term Loan Facility. On July 7, 2021, the Company
repaid in full and terminated the Term Loan Facility with a cash outflow of $500.7 million, which included
$0.7 million of accrued interest. The Term Loan Facility would have matured on the earlier of (i) June 10, 2022 or (ii)
within fourff business days following the consummation of the IPO.

• On June 28, 2021, KKHI merged into KKI (the “Merger”). As a result of the Merger, the Company eliminated
$107.4 million of noncontrolling interest at KKHI as of the merger date. The management equity interests at KKHI
were exchanged forff common shares in KKI. Restricted stock units (“RSUs”) and stock options held at KKHI were
exchanged forff RSUs and stock options held at KKI at a rate of 317.24 KKI shares to 1 KKHI share.

• On June 30, 2021, the Company effected a 1,745-for-1 split of each outstanding share of common stock (the “Stock
Split”). All share and per share information has been retroactively adjusted to effect the Stock Split for all periods
presented.
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In connection with the IPO, the Company used the proceeds from the Term Loan Facility for the following: (1) repay the
related party notes payablea (including accrued interest of $17.8 million) of $355.0 million, (2) redeem certain common stock of
$102.7 million held by KrispyK Kreme, G.P. (“KK GP”) and (3) pay a pro rata dividend to members of its management who,
prior to the Merger, held equity interests in KKHI in an aggregate amount of $42.3 million. Additionally, the Company paid
$20.3 million to repurchase approximately 1.3 million shares of common stock from certain of the Company’s executive
officers at the price paid by the underwriters and $15.5 million to repurchase approximately 1.0 million shares of common stock
from certain of its executive officers for payment of their withholding taxes with respect to the RSUs vesting or for which
vesting was accelerated in connection with the offering.

On August 2, 2021, the underwriters exercised their over-allotment option and purchased an additional 3.5 million shares of
common stock at the IPO price less the underwriting discounts and commissions. The net proceeds received on August 2, 2021
were $56.1 million after deducting underwriting discounts and commissions of $3.4 million. This brought total net IPO
proceeds to $514.9 million.

Basis of Presentatitt on and Consolidationtt

The Company operates and reports finaff ncial information on a 52 or 53-week year with the fiscal year ending on the Sunday
closest to December 31. The data periods contained within fiscaff l years 2021, 2020 and 2019 reflect the results of operations for
the 52-week period ended January 2, 2022, the 53-week period ended January 3, 2021, and the 52-week period ended
December 29, 2019.

The accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of KrispyKK Kreme and subsidiaries and have been
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the U.S. (“GAAP”). All significant intercompany
balances and transactions among Krispy Kreme and subsidiaries have been eliminated in consolidation. Investments in entities
over which the Company has the ability to exercise significant influence but which it does not control and whose financial
statements are not otherwise required to be consolidated, are accounted forff using the equity method.

Noncontrolling interest in the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements represents the interest in subsidiaries held by joint
venturet partners and employee shareholders. The joint venturt e partners hold noncontrolling interests in the Company’s
consolidated subsidiaries Awesome Doughnut, LLC (“Awesome Doughnut”), W.K.S. Krispy Kreme, LLC (“WKS KrispyK
KremKK e”), and Krispy K Canada, Inc. (“KK Canada”). Employee shareholders hold noncontrolling interests in the consolidated
subsidiaries KrispyK Kreme Holding U.K. Ltd. (“KKUK”), Krispy Kreme Holdings Pty Ltd. (“KK Australia”), Krispy Kreme
Mexico S. de R.L. de C.V. (“KK Mexico”) and Insomnia Cookies Holdings, LLC (“Insomnia Cookies”). Since the Company
consolidates the financial statements of these subsidiaries, the noncontrolling owners’ share of each subsidiary’s net assets and
results of operations are deducted and reported as a noncontrolling interest on the Consolidated Balance Sheets and as net
income attributablea to noncontrolling interest in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and comprehensive income
attributablea to noncontrolling interest in the Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income/(Loss).

Use of Estimtt ates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptim ons that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates under different assumptim ons or conditions.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized in accordance with Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 606, Revenue from Contracts wtt ithtt
Customers. Revenue is recognized when control of promised goods or services is transferred to a customer in an amount that
reflects the consideration expected to be received for those goods or services.

Product Sales

Product sales include revenue derived from (1) the sale of doughnuts, cookies and complementary products to in-shop, Branded
Sweet Treat Line and DFD customers and (2) the sale of doughnut mix, other ingredients and supplies and doughnut-making
equipment to franchisees. Revenue is recognized at the time of delivery for in-shop sales and sales to francff hisees. For Branded
Sweet Treat Line and DFD sales, control transfers and revenue is recognized either at the time of delivery, net of provisions for
estimated product returnst or, with respect to those customers that take title to products purchased from the Company at the time
those products are sold by the customer to the end consumers, simultaneously with such consumer purchases. Revenues from
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Branded Sweet Treat Line customers and from the sale of doughnut mix, other ingredients and supplies and doughnut-making
equipment to franchisees include any applicable shipping and handling costs invoiced to the customer and the expense of such
shipping and handling costs is included in Operating expenses. The Company recorded shipping revenue of approximately
$13.3 million, $15.2 million and $6.5 million in the fiscal years ended January 2, 2022, January 3, 2021, and December 29,
2019, respectively.

Franchiseii Revenue

Franchise revenue included in Royalties and other revenues is derived from development and initial franchise fees relating to
new shop openings and ongoing royalties charged to francff hisees based on their sales. The Company sells individual francff hises
domestically and internationally, as well as development agreements that grant the right to develop shops in designated areas.
Generally, the franchise license granted for each individual shop within an arrangement represents a single performancff e
obligation. The franchise agreements and development agreements typically require the franchisee to pay initial nonrefundablea
franchise fees (i.e., initial services such as training and assisting with shop set-up) prior to opening. The franchises also pay a
royalty on a monthly basis based upon a percentage of franchisee gross sales. Royalties are recognized in income as underlying
franchisee sales occur. The initial term of domestic franchise agreements is typically 15 years. The Company recognizes the
initial nonrefundablea fees over the term of the franchise agreements on an output method based on time elapsed, correspondingr
with the customer’s right to use the franchise for the term of the agreement. A francff hisee may elect to renew the term of a
franchise agreement and, if approved, will typically pay a renewal fee upon execution of the renewal term.

Franchise-reii lated Advedd rtising Fund Revenue

Franchise-related advertising fund revenue included in Royalties and other revenues is derived from domestic and international
franchise agreements that typically require the franchisee to pay advertising fees on a continuous monthly basis based on a
percentage of franchisee net sales, which are recognized based on fees earned each period. Total advertising fund revenue for
the fiscal years ended January 2, 2022, January 3, 2021, and December 29, 2019 is $4.3 million, $8.1 million and $9.3 million,
respectively.

Gift Card Sales

The Company and its francff hisees sell gift cards that are redeemable for products in the Company-owned or franchise shops.
The Company manages the gift card program and collects all funds from the activation of gift cards and reimburses franchisees
for the redemption of gift cards in their shops. Deferred revenue for unredeemed gift cards is included in Accrued liabia lities in
the Consolidated Balance Sheets. As of January 2, 2022 and January 3, 2021, the gross amount of deferred revenue recognized
for unredeemed gift cards was $22.5 million and $18.0 million, respectively. Gift cards sold do not have an expiration date or
service feeff s charged. The likelihood of redemption may be determined to be remote for certain cards due to long periods of
inactivity. In these circumstances, the Company recognizes revenue from unredeemed gift cards (“breakage revenue”) within
Product sales if they are not subject to unclaimed property laws. The Company estimates breakage for the portfolio of gift cards
and recognizes it based on the estimated pattern of gift card use. As of January 2, 2022 and January 3, 2021, deferred revenue,
net of breakage revenue recognized, was $11.2 million and $10.4 million, respectively.

Gift card costs incurred to fulfiff ll obligations under a contract are capita alized when such costs generate or enhance resources to
be used in satisfying future performancff e obligations and the costs are deemed recoverablea . Judgement is used in determining
whether certain contract costs can be capitalized. These costs are capita alized and amortized on a systematic basis to match the
timing of revenue recognition, depending on when the gift card is used. This amortization expense is recorded in Operating
expense in the Company’s Consolidated Statement of Operations. From time to time, management will review the capita alized
costs for impairment. As of January 2, 2022 and January 3, 2021, the capita alized gift card costs were $1.7 million and $1.7
million, respectively.

Consumer Loyalty Ptt rogram

Consumers can participate in spend-based loyalty programs. Consumers who join the loyalty programs will receive a credit or
point for each purchase of eligible product. After accumulating a certain number of credits or points, the consumers can redeem
their credits or points forff a freeff product. The Company defers revenue based on an estimated selling price of the free product
earned by the consumer and establia shes a corresponding liability in deferred revenue. As of January 2, 2022 and January 3,
2021, the deferred revenue related to loyalty programs is $2.3 million and $3.6 million, respectively.
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Revenue-based Taxes

The Company reports revenue net of any revenue-based taxes assessed by governmental authorities that are imposed on and
concurrent with specific revenue-producing transactions. The primary revenue-based taxes are sales tax and value-added tax
(“VAT”).

Operating Expensexx s

Operating expenses consist of expenses primarily related to Company-owned shops including payroll and benefit costs for
service employees at Company-operated locations, rent and utilities, expenses associated with Company operations, costs
associated with procuring materials fromff vendors and other shop-level operating costs.

Marketingii Expenses

Costs associated with marketing the products, including advertising and other brand promotional activities, are expensed as
incurred, and were approximately $39.5 million, $34.0 million, and $28.8 million in the fiscal years ended January 2, 2022,
January 3, 2021, and December 29, 2019, respectively.

Cash and Cash Equivalentsll and Restrictedtt Cash

Cash equivalents consist of demand deposits in banks and short-term, highly liquid debt instruments with original maturities of
three months or less.

All credit and debit card transactions that are processed in less than fiveff days are classified as Cash and cash equivalents. The
amounts due from banks for these transactions totaled $8.5 million and $9.6 million as of January 2, 2022 and January 3, 2021,
respectively.

Restricted cash consists primarily of funds related to employee benefit plans.

Marketable Sll ecSS uritiii es

Marketable securities consist of debt instruments that are being held to maturit ty longer than three months but less than one year.
Their fair value approximates their carrying value on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Account Receivable,ll Net of Allowancll e forff Expecxx ted CreCC dit Losses

Accounts receivable relate primarily to payments dued for sale of products, franchise fees, royalties, advertising fees and
licensing fees. The Company maintains allowances for expected credit losses related to its accounts receivable, including
receivables from franchisees, in amounts which the Company believes are sufficient to provide for losses estimated to be
sustained on realization of these receivables. The measurement of expected credit losses is based on relevant information about
past events, including historical experience, current conditions, and reasonable and supportable forecff asts that affect the
collectibility of amounts from customers. Such estimates inherently involve uncertainties and assessments of the outcome of
future events, and changes in facts and circumstances may result in adjustments to the allowance for expected credit losses. The
Company had allowance forff expected credit losses of $0.9 million and $1.4 million as of January 2, 2022 and January 3, 2021,
respectively.

Concentration of Credit Riskii

Financial instruments that subject the Company to credit risk consist principally of receivables from Branded Sweet Treat Line
and DFD customers and franchisees. Branded Sweet Treat Line and DFD receivables are primarily from grocer/mass merchants
and convenience stores. For the fiscal years ended January 2, 2022, January 3, 2021, and December 29, 2019, no customer
accounted for more than 10% of revenue or a significant amount of receivablea s that would result in a concentration.

Management also evaluates the recoverabila ity of receivables from the franchisees and maintains allowances for expected credit
losses. Management believes these allowances are sufficient to provide for realized losses that may be sustained on realization
of these receivables.
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Inventories

Inventories, which consist of raw materials, work in progress, finished goods, and purchased merchandise, are recorded at the
lower of cost and net realizable value, where cost is determined using the first-in, first-out method. Raw materials inventory
also includes doughnut equipment spare parts. Finished goods and purchased merchandise are net of reserves forff excess or
obsolete finff ished goods, which totaled $3.7 million and $2.7 million as of January 2, 2022, and January 3, 2021, respectively.

Prepaid Eii xpenEE se and Othertt Current Assets

Prepaid expense and other current assets consist primarily of prepaid assets of $19.6 million and $11.3 million, related to
service contracts and insurance premiums, as of January 2, 2022 and January 3, 2021, respectively.

Property and Equipment, net

Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Depreciation of property and equipment is provided using the straight-line method
over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets.

The lives used in computing depreciation are as follows:

Buildings ................................................................................................................................................................. 20 to 35 years
Machinery and equipment....................................................................................................................................... 3 to 15 years
Computer softwareff .................................................................................................................................................. 2 to 7 years

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset or the lease term.

The Company assesses long-lived fixeff d asset groups for potential impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that their carrying amount may not be recoverablea . If the carryingrr amount of the assets exceeds the sum of the
undiscounted cash flows, the Company records an impairment charge in an amount equal to the excess of the carryingrr value of
the assets over their estimated faiff r value.

Impairment charges related to the Company’s long-lived assets were $2.9 million, $0.3 million, and $0.5 million for the fiscal
years ended January 2, 2022, January 3, 2021, and December 29, 2019, respectively. Such charges related to underperforming
shops, shops closed or likely to be closed and shops which management believes will not generate sufficient future cash flows
to enable the Company to recover the carryingrr value of the shops’ assets, but which management has not yet decided to close.
The impaired shop assets include real properties, the fair values of which were estimated based on independent appraisals or, in
the case of any properties which the Company is negotiating to sell, based on its negotiations with unrelated third-party buyers;
leasehold improvements, which are typically abandoned when the leased properties revert to the lessor; and doughnut-making
and other equipment the fair values of which were estimated based on the replacement cost of the equipment, after considering
refurbishment and transportation costs. The impairment charges are primarily attributablea to the U.S. and Canada segment and
are included within Other operating expenses on the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Leases

Effective December 31, 2018, the first day of fiscal year 2019, the Company implemented Accounting Standards Update
(“ASU”) 2016-02 (“the new standard”), Leases, which amended authoritative guidance on leases and is codified in ASC 842,
Leases. The amended guidance requires lessees to recognize most leases on their balance sheets as right-of-use assets along
with corresponding lease liabilities. The new standard requires lessees to apply a duald approach, classifying leases as either
finance or operating leases based on the principle of whether or not the lease is effeff ctively a finff anced purchase by the lessee.
This classificatioff n determines whether lease expense is recognized based on an effective interest method or on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease. The new standard also requires increased disclosures to help financial statement users better
understand the amount, timing and uncertainty of cash flowsff arising from leases. The Financial Accounting Standards Board
(“FASB’s”) authoritative guidance provides companies with the option to apply this ASU to new and existing leases within the
scope of the guidance as of the beginning of the period of adoption. The Company elected this transition method of applying the
new lease standard and has recognized right-of-use assets, lease liabilities and any cumulative-effect adjustments to the opening
balance of retained earnings as of December 31, 2018. Prior period amounts were not adjusted and will continue to be reported
under the accounting standards in effect for those periods.
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The adoption of the new standard had a material impact to the Consolidated Balance Sheets due to the capita alization of right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities associated with the current operating leases in which the Company is the lessee. The adoption of
the new standard resulted in the recording of additional lease assets and lease liabilities (net of prior period reported capita al
leases) of $280.0 million and $291.0 million at the date of adoption, respectively. The adoption of the new standard had a
material impact on the Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity due to the recognition of a deferred gain on
a sale-leaseback transaction completed in March 2018 and the recognition of a previously unrecognized portion of an
impairment to a right-of-use asset at the date of adoption. There was also a $4.1 million deferred tax benefit in the Consolidated
Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity as a result of the adoption. The adoption of the new standard did not have a
material impact on the Consolidated Statements of Operations nor the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.

The cumulative effect of the changes made to the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2018 for the
adoption of ASC 842 was as follows:

December 30,
2018 (as
reported)

ASC 842
Adjustments

December 31,
2018 (as
adjusted)

Account:
Operating lease right of use asset, net .................................................................... $ — $ 270,170 $ 270,170
Property and equipment, net ................................................................................... 227,102 10,085 237,187
Other intangible assets, net ..................................................................................... 920,265 (7,305) 912,960
Current portion of long-term debt .......................................................................... 38,126 1,168 39,294
Current operating lease liabila ities ........................................................................... — 24,088 24,088
Accrued liabia lities................................................................................................... 82,281 (2,967) 79,314
Noncurrent operating lease liabilities ..................................................................... — 258,152 258,152
Long-term debt, less current portion ...................................................................... 592,684 7,152 599,836
Other long-term obligations and deferred credits................................................... 76,576 (54,378) 22,198
Deferreff d income taxes, net ..................................................................................... 128,360 8,257 136,617
Noncontrolling interest ........................................................................................... 131,265 1,711 132,976
Retained (deficit) earnings...................................................................................... $ (67,609) $ 29,767 $ (37,842)

Upon the adoption of the new standard on December 31, 2018, the Company elected the package of practical expedients
provided under the guidance. The practical expedient package applies to leases commenced prior to the adoption of the new
standard and permits companies not to reassess whether existing or expired contracts are or contain a lease, the lease
classification and any initial direct costs for any existing leases. The Company has elected to not separate the lease and non-
lease components within the contract. Therefore, all fixed payments associated with the lease are included in the right-of-use
asset and the lease liability. These costs often relate to the payments forff a proportionate share of real estate taxes, insurance,
common area maintenance and other operating costs in addition to a base rent. Any variable payments related to the lease are
recorded as lease expense when and as incurred. The Company has elected this practical expedient for its real estate, vehicles
and equipment leases. The Company did not elect the hindsight practical expedient. The Company has elected the short-term
lease expedient. A short-term lease is a lease that, as of the commencement date, has a lease term of 12 months or less and does
not include an option to purchase the underlying asset that the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise. For such leases, the
Company will not apply the recognition requirements of Topic 842 and instead will recognize the lease payments as lease cost
on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Additionally, the Company elected the practical expedient under ASU 2018-01,
which allows an entity to not reassess whether any existing land easements are or contain leases.

Lease termination costs represent the estimated fair value of liabilities related to unexpired leases, after reduction by the amount
of accrued rent expense, if any, related to the leases, and are recorded when the lease contracts are terminated or, if earlier, the
date on which the Company ceases use of the leased property. The fair values of these liabilities were estimated as the excess, if
any, of the contractualt payments required under the unexpired leases over the current market lease rates for the properties,
discounted at a credit-adjusted risk-free rate over the remaining term of the leases. The provision for lease termination costs
also includes adjustments to liabilities recorded in prior periods arising from changes in estimated sublease rentals and from
settlements with landlords.
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Goodwill all nd Other Intangible Assetstt

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of identifiablea net assets acquired in a business
combination. For each reporting unit, the Company assesses goodwill for impairment annually at the beginning of the fourth
quarter or more frequently when impairment indicators are present. If the carrying value of the reporting unit exceeds its fairff
value, the Company recognizes an impairment charge for the differenceff up to the carrying value of the allocated goodwill. The
value is estimated under a discounted cash flow approach, which incorporates assumptim ons regarding future growth rates,
terminal values and discount rates. For the fiscal years ended January 2, 2022, January 3, 2021, and December 29, 2019, there
were no goodwill impairment charges.

Other intangible assets primarily represent the trade names for the Company’s brands, franchise agreements (domestic and
international), reacquired franchise rights, and customer relationships. The trade names have been assigned an indefinite useful
life and are reviewed annually for impairment. All other intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. Definite-lived intangible assets are assessed forff impairment whenever triggering events or indicators of
potential impairment occur. The Company did not have any impairment charges of other intangible assets during any of the
periods presented.

Accrued Liabili itll iett s

Accrued liabia lities include accrued compensation, accrued legal fees, accrued utilities, accrued marketing and other accrued
liabilities. As of January 2, 2022 and January 3, 2021, accrued compensation and benefits included in the Accrued liabilities
balance was $41.0 million and $34.1 million, respectively.

Supply Cll hainCC Financii ing Program

The Company has undertaken broad efforts to improve its working capita al, in part by negotiating longer payment terms with
vendors. The Company has an agreement with a third-party administrator which allows participating vendors to track payments
from the Company, and if voluntarily elected by the vendor, to sell payment obligations from the Company to financial
institutions (the “Supply Chain Financing Program” or the “SCF Program”). The Company’s typical payment terms forff trade
payablea s range up to 180 days outside of the SCF Program, depending on the type of vendors and the naturet of the supplies or
services. For vendors under the SCF Program, the Company has established payablea terms ranging up to, but not exceeding,
360 days. When participating vendors elect to sell one or more of the Company’s payment obligations, the rights and
obligations of the Company to settle its payablea s on their contractual dued date are not impacted. The Company has no economic
or commercial interest in a vendor’s decision to enter into these agreements and the financial institutit ons do not provide
incentives such as rebates or profit sharing to the Company under the SCF Program. The Company and vendors agree on
commercial terms for the goods and services procured, which are consistent with payment terms observed at other peer
companies in the industry. The Company’s obligations to its vendors, including amounts due, are not impacted by the SCF
Program and thus remain classified as trade payables.

Cards Pdd rogramPP

The Company utilizes various purchase cards issued by finaff ncial institutit ons to facilitate purchases of goods and services. By
using the cards, the Company receives rebates and differing levels of discounts based on timing of repayment. The payment
obligations under these purchased cards are classified as Structuredt payablea s on the Consolidated Balance Sheets and constitutet
the entire Structuredt payablea s balance. The associated cash flowsff are included in the financing section of the Consolidated
Statements of Cash Flows.

Share-based Compensationtt

The Company measures and recognizes compensation expense for share-based payment awards based on the fair value of each
award at its grant date and recognizes expense over the related service period on a straight-line basis for each tranche of awards.
The Company accounts for forfeiturest of share-based compensation awards as they occur. Compensation expense is included in
Selling, general and administrative expenses in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Fair Value

The accounting standards for fair value measurements defineff fair value as the price that would be received forff an asset or paid
to transfer a liabia lity in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liabia lity in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The accounting standards for fair value measurements establish a three-level faiff r
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value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs used to measure fair value. This hierarchy requires entities to maximize the use of
observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. The three levels of inputs used to measure fair value are as
follows:

• Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets that are accessible as of the measurement date forff identical assets or
liabilities.

• Level 2: Observable inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1, such as quoted prices for similar assets
and liabilities in active markets; quoted prices for identical or similar assets and liabilities in markets that are not
active; or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data.

• Level 3: Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are significant to the fair value
measurement of the assets or liabilities. These include certain pricing models, discounted cash flow methodologies and
similar techniques that use significant unobservable inputs.

The Company’s financial instruments not measured at fair value on a recurring basis include cash and cash equivalents,
receivables, accounts payablea and accrued liabia lities and are reflected in the Consolidated Financial Statements at cost which
approximates faiff r value for these items dued to their short-term nature.t Management believes the fair value determination of
these short-term financial instruments is a Level 1 measure. The Company’s other assets and liabilities measured at fair value
on a non-recurring basis include long-lived assets, lease right-of-use assets, goodwill, and other indefinite-live intangible assets,
if determined to be impaired. Refer to the Property and Equipment, net policy section in Note 1, Description of Business and
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, to the audited Consolidated Financial Statements, for information about
impairment charges on long-lived assets. The fair values of assets evaluated for impairment were determined using an income-
based approach and are classified as Level 3 measures within the fair value hierarchy.

Derivativtt e FinancFF ial Instrumtt ents

Management reflects derivative financial instruments, which typically consist of interest rate derivatives, foreign currency
derivatives and fuel commodity derivatives in the Consolidated Balance Sheets at their faiff r value. For interest rate derivatives,
changes in fair value are reflected in other comprehensive income as the Company applies cash flowff hedge accounting.
Consistent with the classification of interest paid, cash flows from interest rate derivatives are classified as operating on the
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. The changes in the fair values of the foreign currency and fuel commodity derivatives
are reflected in income as the Company does not apply hedge accounting to those derivatives.

Self-InsurancII e Risks and Receivablesll from Insurers

The Company is subject to workers’ compensation, vehicle, and general liability claims. The Company is self-insured for the
cost of workers’ compensation, vehicle, and general liability claims up tu o the amount of stop-loss insurance coverage purchased
by the Company from commercial insurance carriers. The Company maintains accruals for the estimated cost of claims, without
regard to the effects of stop-loss coverage, using actuarial methods which evaluate known open and incurred but not reported
claims and consider historical loss development experience. As of January 2, 2022 and January 3, 2021, the Company had
approximately $14.7 million and $14.4 million, respectively, reserved for such programs. The liability recorded for assessments
has not been discounted. In addition, the Company records receivablea s fromff the insurance carriers for claims amounts estimated
to be recovered under the stop-loss insurance policies when these amounts are estimable and probable of collection. The
Company estimates such stop-loss receivablea s using the same actuarial methods used to establish the related claims accrualrr s
and considering the amount of risk transferred to the carriers under the stop-loss policies. The stop-loss policies provide
coverage for claims in excess of retained self-insurance risks, which are determined on a claim-by-claim basis. Inclusive of the
receivables from the stop-loss insurance policies, the Company’s limited liabia lity balance was $7.5 million and $7.7 million as
of January 2, 2022 and January 3, 2021, respectively.

Preferree d StocSS k

The Company has 50,000,000 shares of authorized preferred stock with $0.01 par value per share. There were no shares of
preferred stock issued nor outstanding as of January 2, 2022 and January 3, 2021.

Earnings (gg Loss)(( per ShareSS (EPS)PP

The Company discloses two calculations of earnings (loss) per share (“EPS”): basic EPS and diluted EPS. The numerator in
calculating common stock basic and diluted EPS is net income (loss) attributable to the Company. The denominator in
calculating common stock basic EPS is the weighted average shares outstanding. The denominator in calculating common stock
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diluted EPS includes the additional dilutive effectff of unvested restricted stock units (“RSUs”) and time-vested stock options
when the effect is not antidilutive. Referff to Note 17, Net Loss per Share, to the audited Consolidated Financial Statements for
further discussion.

Reclassill fici ations

On the Consolidated Statements of Operations, Marketing expenses have been reclassified (formeff rly presented within Selling,
general and administrative expense) to be consistent with the current year presentation. This reclassification does not have a
significant impact on the reported finaff ncial position and does not impact the results of operations or cash flows.

On the Consolidated Balance Sheets, Taxes receivable have been reclassifiedff (formeff rly presented within Accounts receivable,
net) to be consistent with current year presentation. This reclassification does not have a significant impact on the reported
financial position and does not impact the results of operations or cash flows.

Recent Accountingtt Pronouncementstt

Recently Adopted

Accounting Standards Adopted at thett Begie nning of Fiscalii Year 2021g p g g f

In December 2019, the FASB issued ASU 2019-12, Income TaxesTT (Topic 740) Simplim fyi ing the Accounting for Income TaxeTT s.
ASU 2019-12 simplifies the accounting for income taxes by removing certain exceptions in Topic 740 and clarifying and
amending existing guidance. It is effective for annual and interim periods beginning after December 15, 2020, and interim
periods within those fiscal years. There are several adoption methods for different amendments in this ASU, including
retrospective method for amendments related to separate financial statements of legal entities that are not subject to tax,
modified retrospective method for amendments related to changes in ownership of foreign equity method investments or
subsidiaries, either retrospective or modified retrospective method for amendments related to franchise taxes that are partially
based on income and prospective method for all other amendments. The adoption of this standard did not materially impact the
financial statements presented herein.

Accounting Standards Adopted at thett Begie nning of Fiscalii Year 2020g p g g f

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, Financial Instrumett nts—Credit Losses (Topic(( 326): Measurement of Credit
Losses on FinFF ancial Instruments. This ASU enablea s finaff ncial statement users to obtain more decision-useful information about
the expected credit losses on finaff ncial instruments and other commitments to extend credit held by a reporting entity as of each
reporting date. This ASU replaces the incurred loss impairment methodology in current GAAP with a methodology that reflects
expected credit losses and requires consideration of a broader range of reasonablea and supportablea information to inform credit
loss estimates. It is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019, including interim periods within those fiscal
years. The adoption of this standards did not materially impact the financial statements presented herein.

Accounting Standards Adopted at thett Begie nning of Fiscalii Year 2019g p g g f

In February 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-02, IncomII e StatS ement—Reportt ting Comprem hensive IncomII e (Topic(( 220):
Reclassil fii cation of Certain TaxTT Effectsff from Accumulated Other Comprehensive IncomII e. The guidance permits entities to
reclassify the stranded income tax effects resulting from the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act, enacted in December 2017, (“Tax Act”)
from accumulated other comprehensive income to retained earnings. The guidance is effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2018 and interim periods within those fiscal years. The guidance may be applia ed in the period of adoption or
retrospectively to each period in which the effect of the change related to the Tax Act was recognized. The adoption of this
standard did not have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

In January 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-04, Intangibles—Goodwill and Other (Topic 350): Simplifyi ing the Test forff
Goodwill ImpairmeII nt. ASU 2017-04 simplifies the measurement of goodwill by eliminating the requirement to calculate the
implied fair value of goodwill (step 2 of the current impairment test) to measure the goodwill impairment charge. Instead,
entities will record impairment charges based on the excess of a reporting unit’s carrying amount over its faiff r value. It is
effective for annual and interim periods beginning after December 15, 2019. Early adoption is permitted for interim or annual
goodwill impairment test performed with a measurement date after January 1, 2017. The adoption of this standard did not have
a material impact on the Company’s financial statements.
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In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842), which supersedes the existing lease guidance under
current GAAP. ASU 2016-02 is based on the principle that entities should recognize assets and liabilities arising from leases.
Under the new standard, a lessee will recognize on its balance sheet a lease liability and a right-of-use (“ROU”) asset for all
leases, including operating leases, with a term greater than 12 months. The new standard will also distinguish leases as either
finance leases or operating leases. This distinction will affect how leases are measured and presented in the income statement
and statement of cash flows. The new standard is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018, and interim
periods within those annual periods. Early adoption is permitted. Upon adoption, lessees and lessors are required to recognize
and measure leases at the beginning of the earliest period presented using a modified retrospective approach. Refer to the
Leases policy section in Note 1, Description of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, to the audited
Consolidated Financial Statements for more information about the Company’s adoption of this standard.

Not Yet Adopted

In March 2020, the FASB issued ASU 2020-04, Refee rence Rate Refoe rm (TopicTT 848): Facilitation of the Effectsff of Refere ence
Rate Reform on Financial Reportinge , which provides companies with optional guidance to ease the potential accounting burden
associated with transitioning away from reference rates that are expected to be discontinued. It is effective for all entities as of
March 12, 2020 through December 31, 2022. A company may elect to apply the amendments for contract modifications by as
of any date fromff the beginning of an interim period that includes or is subsequent to March 12, 2020, or prospectively from a
date within an interim period that includes or is subsequent to March 12, 2020, up to the date that the financff ial statements are
available to be issued. The Company is currently evaluating the effect of the new guidance on its Consolidated Financial
Statements and related disclosures.

In October 2021, the FASB issued ASU 2021-08, Business Combinations (Topic 805): Accounting for Contract Assets and
Contract Liabilities fromff Contracts wtt ith Ctt ustCC omers, which prescribes the measurement of acquired contract assets and contract
liabilities arising from revenue contracts with customers recognized in a business combination. It is effective for public business
entities forff fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2022, including interim periods within those fiscal years. The
amendments in this updatu e should be applied prospectively to business combinations occurring on or after the effective date of
the amendments. Early adoption is permitted, including adoption in an interim period. The Company is currently evaluating the
effect of the new guidance on its Consolidated Financial Statements and related disclosures.

In November 2021, the FASB issued ASU 2021-10, Government Assistanceii (Topic 832): Disclosures by Bb usiness Entities
about Government Assistanceii , which requires certain disclosures to be made when an entity receives government assistance,
including the types of assistance, an entity’s accounting for the assistance, and the effect of the assistance on an entity’s
financial statements. It is effectff ive forff all entities for finaff ncial statements issued for annual periods beginning after December
15, 2021. Early application of the amendments is permitted. The Company is currently evaluating the effect of the new
guidance on its annual disclosures.

There are other new accounting pronouncements issued by the FASB that the Company has adopted or will adopt, as
applicable, and the Company does not believe any of these accounting pronouncements have had, or will have, a material
impact on its Consolidated Financial Statements or disclosures.

Note 2 — Acquisitions

The Company strategically acquires companies in order to increase its footff prit nt and sell products that diversify its existing
offerings. These acquisitions are accounted for as business combinations using the acquisition method, whereby the purchase
price is allocated to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed, based on their estimated faiff r values as of the date of the
acquisition.

Transaction-related expenses as a result of these acquisitions, which exclude costs incurred to integrate the acquired entities,
were recorded within Operating income in the Statements of Operations (primarily Selling, general and administrative
expenses) during the fiscal year such costs were incurred.

Goodwill recognized for these acquisitions represents the intangible assets that do not qualify for separate recognition and
primarily includes the acquired customer base, the acquired workforce including shop partners in the region that have strong
relationships with these customers and the existing geographic shop and Ecommerce presence.
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2021 Acquisitions

Acquisition of KK Canada

On October 4, 2021, the Company acquired a 60% controlling ownership interest in ten francff hise shops in Canada, KK Canada,
for total consideration of approximately $14.7 million, consisting of approximately $14.4 million in cash and approximately
$0.3 million related to settlement of pre-existing relationships.

The settlement of pre-existing relationships included in the purchase consideration includes the disposal of the franchise
intangible asset related to the franchisee recorded at time of the acquisition of Krispy Kreme by JAB (“the JAB Merger”). The
cumulative net book value of the franchise intangible asset was $0.3 million at the acquisition date. The Company accounted for
the transaction as a business combination.

Other intangible assets consist of reacquired franchise rights with an estimated useful life equal to the weighted average
remaining franchise agreement term. A total of $0.1 million of goodwill and reacquired franchise rights are expected to be
deductible as goodwill for income tax purposes.

The fair value of the 40% noncontrolling interest in KK Canada was estimated to be $9.8 million. The fair value estimate was
based on a total value of the equity in KK Canada derived fromff the consideration paid by the Company for its equity it nterests.

Acquisition of Other Krispyii Kreme Shops in 2021

In the first quarter of fiscal 2021, the Company acquired the business and operating assets of two franchisees, collectively
consisting of 17 Krispy Kreme shops in the U.S. The Company paid total consideration of $38.1 million, consisting of $33.9
million of cash, $0.9 million of consideration payablea to the sellers within 12 months of the respective acquisition dates, and
$3.3 million settlement of amounts related to pre-existing relationships, to acquire substantially all of the shops’ assets.
Consideration payablea of $0.9 million was withheld to cover indemnification claims that could arise after closing. Absent any
claims, these amounts are payablea within 12 months of the respective acquisition dates.

The settlement of pre-existing relationships included in the purchase consideration includes the write-off of accounts and notes
receivable, net of deferred revenue, of $0.6 million. It also includes the disposal of the franchise intangible asset related to the
two franchisees recorded at time of the JAB Merger. The cumulative net book value of the franchise intangible assets was $2.7
million at the acquisition dates. The Company accounted for the transactions as business combinations.
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The folff lowing tablea summarizes the preliminary fair values of assets acquired and liabilities assumed as of the date of
acquisition for the acquisitions above.

KK Canada KK U.S. Shops

Total Purchase
Price Allocation
for Acquisitions

Assets acquired:q
Cash and cash equivalents .................................................................... $ 2,015 $ 40 $ 2,055
Prepaid expense and other current assets ............................................. 301 474 775
Property and equipment, net ................................................................. 2,365 3,829 6,194
Other intangible assets, net ................................................................... 6,873 23,906 30,779
Operating lease right of use asset, net .................................................. 2,894 19,292 22,186
Other assets........................................................................................... 103 897 1,000

Total identified assets acquired ............................................... 14,551 48,438 62,989
Liabilities assumed:
Accounts payable.................................................................................. (1,639) — (1,639)
Accrued liabia lities................................................................................. (489) (334) (823)
Current operating lease liabila ities ......................................................... (554) (2,093) (2,647)
Noncurrent operating lease liabila ities ................................................... (2,327) (17,199) (19,526)
Deferred income taxes, net ................................................................... (2,021) — (2,021)

Total liabilities assumed ........................................................... (7,030) (19,626) (26,656)
Goodwill ............................................................................................... 17,036 9,254 26,290
Noncontrolling interest ......................................................................... (9,822) — (9,822)

Purchase consideration, net ..................................................... $ 14,735 $ 38,066 $ 52,801
Transaction costs in 2021 .................................................................... $ 2,502 $ 1,251 $ 3,753
Transaction costs in 2020 .................................................................... 24 184 208
Reportablea segment .............................................................................. U.S. and Canada U.S. and Canada

During the measurement period, the Company will continue to obtain information to assist in determining the fair value of net
assets acquired, which may differ materially fromff these preliminary estimates. Measurement period adjustments, if applicable,
will be applied in the reporting period in which the adjustment amounts are determined.

The results of operations of the aforementioned acquired shops were consolidated by the Company from the date of acquisition
and include $44.1 million of total revenue and $4.3 million of net income attributablea to the Company for fiscal year 2021. The
amounts do not reflect adjustments for franchise royalties and related expenses that the Company could have generated as
revenue and expenses from the acquired francff hisees duringd the fiscal year had the transaction not been completed.

2020 Acquisitions

Acquisition of KK Japan

On December 8, 2020, the Company acquired all equity interests in Krispy Kreme Doughnut Japan Co., Ltd. (“KK Japan”). KK
Japan holds the franchise and development rights of the Krispy Kreme brand for the territory orr f Japan. At the time of
acquisition, KK Japana manufacturedt and distributed doughnuts through 44 shops and through wholesale channels.

Acquisition-date fair value of consideration transferred was $3.8 million, consisting of settlement of pre-existing relationships,
including the write-off of deferred revenue of ($0.1 million) and the disposal of the franchise intangible asset related to the KK
Japan franchisee recorded by the Company in connection with the JAB Merger. The net book value of the franchise intangible
asset was $3.9 million as of the date of the acquisition of KK Japan.a

The Company calculated an excess of estimated faiff r values of net assets acquired over the acquisition consideration paid,
resulting in a bargain purchase gain of $0.7 million. The bargain purchase gain, which is primarily the result of favoraff blea
purchase terms due to KK Japan’s historical net losses from operations, was recorded within Other income in the Statements of
Operations for the fiscal year 2020.
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Acquisition of Othertt Krispy Kreme ShopsSS in 2020

In 2020, the Company acquired the business and operating assets of an additional eight franchisees, collectively consisting of
51 Krispy Kreme shops in the U.S. The Company paid total consideration of $89.9 million, consisting of $80.4 million cash and
$9.5 million settlement of amounts related to pre-existing relationships, to acquire substantially all of the shops’ assets. The
settlement of pre-existing relationships included in the purchase consideration includes the write-off of accounts and notes
receivable, net of deferred revenue, of $2.6 million. It also includes the disposal of the franchise intangible asset related to the
eight franchisees recorded by the Company at the time of the JAB Merger. The net book value of the franchise intangible asset
was a cumulative $6.9 million as of the dates of acquisition of the fraff nchisees.

Within the measurement period, there was an adjustmd ent to goodwill of $0.1 million related to an adjustmd ent to other assets.

The following tablea summarizes the preliminary fair values of assets acquired and liabilities assumed as of the date of
acquisition for the 2020 acquisitions as well as the acquired businesses’ impact on consolidated results in the year of
acquisition.

KK Japan KK U.S. Shops

Total Purchase
Price Allocation
for Acquisitions

Assets acquired:q
Cash and cash equivalents .................................................................... $ 5,340 $ 112 $ 5,452
Accounts receivable, net....................................................................... 3,322 — 3,322
Inventories ............................................................................................ 354 779 1,133
Prepaid expense and other current assets ............................................. 469 23 492
Property and equipment, net ................................................................. 1,029 16,585 17,614
Other intangible assets, net ................................................................... — 48,011 48,011
Operating lease right of use asset, net .................................................. 12,260 38,096 50,356
Other assets........................................................................................... 3,975 3,699 7,674

Total identified assets acquired ............................................... 26,749 107,305 134,054
Liabilities assumed:
Accounts payable.................................................................................. (2,522) — (2,522)
Accrued liabia lities................................................................................. (3,049) (1,656) (4,705)
Current operating lease liabila ities ......................................................... (4,430) (2,968) (7,398)
Noncurrent operating lease liabila ities ................................................... (7,861) (35,128) (42,989)
Deferred income taxes, net ................................................................... (1,966) — (1,966)
Other long-term obligations and deferred credits................................. (2,468) — (2,468)

Total liabilities assumed ........................................................... (22,296) (39,752) (62,048)
Goodwill ............................................................................................... — 22,411 22,411
Bargain purchase gain .......................................................................... (688) — (688)

Purchase consideration, net ..................................................... $ 3,765 $ 89,964 $ 93,729
Transaction costs in 2020 (approx.)a ..................................................... $ 3,192 $ 4,636 $ 7,828

Reportablea segment(s) ..........................................................................
Market

Development U.S. and Canada

The results of operations of the aforementioned acquired shops were consolidated by the Company from the date of acquisition
and include $38.5 million of total revenue and $0.3 million of net income attributablea to the Company for fiscal year 2020. The
amounts do not reflect adjustments for franchise royalties and related expenses that the Company could have generated as
revenue and expenses from the acquired francff hisees duringd the fiscal year had the transaction not been completed.

2019 Acquisitions

Acquisition of KK Mexico

On November 19, 2019, the Company acquired all equity interests in KK Mexico. KK Mexico holds the franchise and
development rights of the Krispy Kreme brand for the territory orr f Mexico. At the time of acquisition, KK Mexico manufactured
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and distributed doughnuts through 231 shops and through wholesale channels. Acquisition-date faiff r value of consideration
transferred was $76.8 million, consisting of cash of $70.4 million, fair value of contingent consideration of $14.0 million and
settlement of pre-existing relationships (net of debt pushed down) of ($7.6 million).

The purchase agreement for KK Mexico included potential earnout payments of up tu o $12.5 million based on EBITDA results
for the fiscal year 2019 and up to $12.5 million for revenue results forff the fiscal year 2020. The Company included the fair
value of these contingent payments in the purchase consideration. Based on the EBITDA results for fiscaff l year 2019, the
Company paid the full $12.5 million of contingent consideration related to the fiscal year 2019, which was included as a cash
outflow from investing activities in the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the fiscal year 2019. Based on
the revenue results forff the fiscal year 2020, the Company made no earnout payment related to this fiscal year and recognized a
gain of $1.5 million in its Consolidated Statements of Operations for the fiscal year 2020.

The settlement of pre-existing relationships included in the purchase consideration includes the write-off of deferred revenue of
($0.5 million) and the establishment of push-down debt of ($10.7 million). It also includes the disposal of the franchise
intangible asset related to the KK Mexico francff hisee recorded by the Company at the time of the JAB Merger. The net book
value of the fraff nchise intangible asset was $3.6 million as of the date of the acquisition of KK Mexico.

Other intangible assets consist of reacquired franchise rights with an estimated useful life equal to the weighted average
remaining franchise agreement term. None of the goodwill nor the reacquired franchise rights are deductible as goodwill for
income tax purposes.

Within the measurement period, there were cumulative adjustments to goodwill of $1.2 million related to valuation adjustments
on accounts receivable, property and equipment, operating lease right of use assets, other assets, accounts payablea and deferred
income taxes, net.

Acquisition of WKS Krispy Kreme

On November 18, 2019, the Company entered into a joint venturet with W.K.S. Holdings Corporation (“WKS Holdings”)
whereby the Company holds a 55% membership interest in WKS Krispy Kreme and WKS Holdings holds the remaining 45%
membership interest. The Company paid total consideration of $19.6 million to acquire the interest in the joint venture,t
consisting of cash of $46.2 million, fair value of contingent consideration of $0.5 million and settlement of pre-existing
relationships (net of debt pushed down) of ($27.1 million). WKS Holdings, a KrispyKK Kreme franchisee formerly operating
under the name Hot Glaze Enchantment, contributed the assets of 30 Krispy Kreme shops in various states in the western U.S.
to the joint venture.t

The contingent consideration arrangement required the Company to pay Hot Glaze Enchantment based on the fluctuation in faiff r
value of rental payments associated with a KrispyKK Kreme shop in Layton, UT whereupon lease renegotiation was ongoing as of
the acquisition date. The payment was to be on or before the earlier of (a.) April 30, 2021 or (b.) within 30 days following
execution of the new lease agreement. Based on the results of the lease renegotiation a payment of $0.5 million was made to
Hot Glaze Enchantment in 2020 to settle the contingent consideration liability. The Company has not recognized any expense
associated with this contingent consideration in its Consolidated Statements of Operations for the fiscal year 2020.

The settlement of pre-existing relationships included in the purchase consideration includes the write-off of accounts and notes
receivable, net of deferred revenue, of ($0.1 million) and the establishment of push-down debt of ($33.0 million). It also
includes the disposal of the franchise intangible asset related to the Westward Dough, LLC (which contributed six shops into
the WKS Krispy Kreme joint venture)t and Hot Glaze Enchantment franchisees recorded by the Company at the time of the JAB
Merger. The net book value of the franchise intangible asset was $6.0 million as of the date of acquisition of WKS Krispy
Kreme.

Other intangible assets consist of reacquired franchise rights with an estimated useful life equal to the weighted average
remaining franchise agreement term. A total of $49.2 million of goodwill and reacquired franchise rights are expected to be
deductible as goodwill for U.S. income tax purposes.

The fair value of the 45% noncontrolling interest in WKS Krispy Kreme was estimated to be $16.0 million. The fair value
estimate was based on a total value of the equity in WKS Krispy Kreme derived from the consideration paid by the Company
for its equity it nterests.

Table of Contents

70



Within the measurement period, there were cumulative adjustments to goodwill of $1.1 million related to valuation adjustments
on property and equipment, other intangible assets and accounts payable.

Acquisition of Other Krispyii Kreme Shops in 2019

In 2019, the Company acquired the business and operating assets of an additional three franchisees, collectively consisting of
22 Krispy Kreme shops in the U.S. The Companym paid total consideration of $26.6 million, consisting of $23.2 million cash and
$3.4 million settlement of amounts related to pre-existing relationships, to acquire substantially all of the shops’ assets. The
settlement of pre-existing relationships included in the purchase consideration includes the write-off of accounts and notes
receivable, net of deferred revenue, of $0.2 million. It also includes the disposal of the franchise intangible asset related to the
three francff hisees recorded by the Company as of the time of the JAB Merger. The net book value of the franchise intangible
asset was a cumulative $3.2 million at the dates of acquisition of the franchisees.

Within the measurement period, there was an adjustment to goodwill of $0.1 million related to an adjustment to accrued
liabilities.

The following tablea summarizes the fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed as of the date of acquisition for the
2019 acquisitions as well as the acquired businesses’ impact on consolidated results in the year of acquisition. This table
incorporates certain measurement period adjustmd ents duringd the fiscal year 2019.

KKMexico
WKS Krispy
Kreme

Other
KK U.S.
Shops

Total Purchase
Price Allocation
for Acquisitions

Assets acquired:q
Cash and cash equivalents ...................................... $ 856 $ 2,356 $ 44 $ 3,256
Marketable securities .............................................. 1 19 — 20
Accounts receivable, net......................................... 4,242 115 334 4,691
Inventories .............................................................. 1,470 566 171 2,207
Prepaid expense and other current assets ............... 412 237 83 732
Property and equipment, net ................................... 14,383 19,213 5,758 39,354
Other intangible assets, net ..................................... 52,779 26,400 16,049 95,228
Operating lease right of use asset, net .................... 6,723 42,208 11,397 60,328
Other assets............................................................. 1,649 51 559 2,259

Total identified assets acquired ................. 82,515 91,165 34,395 208,075
Liabilities assumed:
Accounts payable.................................................... (6,002) (1,702) (565) (8,269)
Accrued liabia lities................................................... (5,564) (6,370) (2,167) (14,101)
Notes payable ......................................................... (10,706) (33,000) — (43,706)
Noncurrent operating lease liabila ities ..................... (2,846) (38,121) (9,726) (50,693)
Deferred income taxes, net ..................................... (16,576) — — (16,576)
Other long-term obligations and deferred credits... (271) — (950) (1,221)

Total liabilities assumed ............................. (41,965) (79,193) (13,408) (134,566)
Goodwill ................................................................. 36,223 23,606 5,625 65,454
Noncontrolling interest ........................................... — (16,010) — (16,010)

Purchase consideration, net ....................... $ 76,773 $ 19,568 $ 26,612 $ 122,953
Transaction costs in 2020 (approx.)a ....................... $ 1,734 $ 540 $ 114 $ 2,388
Transaction costs in 2019 (approx.)a ....................... 7,447 3,053 2,336 12,836
Reportablea segment(s) ............................................ International U.S. and Canada U.S. and Canada

The results of operations of the aforementioned acquired shops were consolidated by the Company from the date of acquisition
and include $31.7 million of total revenue and $3.7 million of net income attributablea to the Company for fiscal year 2019. The
amounts do not reflect adjustments for franchise royalties and related expenses that the Company could have generated as
revenue and expenses from the acquired francff hisees duringd the fiscal year had the transaction not been completed.

Table of Contents

71



Supplemental unaudited pro formff a informatff ion

The following unaudited pro forma information presents estimated combined results of the Company as if the 2021 acquisitions
had occurred on December 30, 2019, the 2020 acquisitions had occurred on December 31, 2018 and the 2019 acquisitions had
occurred on January 1, 2018:

Fiscal Years Ended
January 2,
2022

January 3,
2021

December 29,
2019

Revenue.......................................................................................... $ 1,384,391 $ 1,151,041 $ 1,083,747
Loss before income taxes ................................................................................. (4,098) (48,788) (5,989)

The amounts in the supplemental pro forma earnings for the fiscal years presented above reflect adjustments for transaction
costs, franchise royalties and related expenses, and amortization that would have been charged assuming the same fair value
adjustments to acquired intangibles. The acquisitions of KK Canada and “Other KrispyK Kreme Shops” are not material to the
Company’s financial statements, and therefore, the supplemental pro forma financial inforff mation related to these acquisitions is
not included herein. These supplemental pro forma results are unaudited and are not necessarily indicative of results of
operations that would have occurred had the acquisitions actually closed in the prior period. The pro forma results are also not
indicative of results of operations for any future period.

Note 3 — Accounts Receivable, net

The components of Accounts receivablea , net are as follows:

January 2, 2022 January 3, 2021

Trade receivablea s, net .............................................................................................................. $ 41,132 $ 39,624
Other receivables, net .............................................................................................................. 5,936 5,958
Receivablea s fromff related parties, net....................................................................................... 423 416
Total accounts receivable, net.......................................................................................... $ 47,491 $ 45,998

Receivablea s fromff related parties, net represents receivablea s fromff equity method investees. Referff to Note 15, Related Party
Transactions, to the audited Consolidated Financial Statements forff further information.

Note 4 — Inventories

The components of Inventories are as follows:

January 2, 2022 January 3, 2021

Raw materials .......................................................................................................................... $ 15,278 $ 16,263
Work in progress...................................................................................................................... 700 871
Finished goods and purchased merchandise............................................................................ 18,873 21,385

Total inventories........................................................................................................... $ 34,851 $ 38,519
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Note 5 — Property and Equipment, net

Property and equipment, net consist of the following:

January 2, 2022 January 3, 2021

Land ......................................................................................................................................... $ 12,931 $ 13,187
Buildings.................................................................................................................................. 146,923 141,853
Leasehold improvements ......................................................................................................... 195,129 158,145
Machinery and equipment ....................................................................................................... 243,673 217,566
Computer software................................................................................................................... 43,985 34,580
Construction and projects in progress...................................................................................... 60,940 43,769
Property and equipment, gross ............................................................................................ 703,581 609,100
Less: Accumulated depreciation.............................................................................................. (264,663) (213,845)
Total property and equipment, net ................................................................................. $ 438,918 $ 395,255

Computer software includes $4.7 million and $4.2 million of costs to develop, code, test and license software under hosting
arrangements as of January 2, 2022 and January 3, 2021, respectively. Software under hosting arrangements consists primarily
of solutions that empower the Company’s consumer-facing website and mobile application. Total depreciation expense was
$68.6 million, $51.5 million and $40.0 million in the fiscal years ended January 2, 2022, January 3, 2021, and December 29,
2019, respectively.

Note 6 — Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwillll

Changes in the carrying amount of goodwill by reportable segment are as follows:

U.S. and Canada International
Market

Development Total

Balance as of December 29, 2019....................................... $ 572,786 $ 277,565 $ 199,324 $ 1,049,675
Acquisitions ................................................................... 68,683 — (46,354) 22,329
Measurement period adjustments related to fiscal year

2019 acquisitions .................................................... 1,235 1,190 — 2,425
Foreign currency impact ................................................ — 12,117 — 12,117

Balance as of January 3, 2021............................................ 642,704 290,872 152,970 1,086,546
Acquisitions ................................................................... 45,328 — (19,038) 26,290
Measurement period adjustments related to fiscal year

2020 acquisitions .................................................... 82 — — 82
Foreign currency impact ................................................ (66) (7,530) — (7,596)

Balance as of January 2, 2022............................................ $ 688,048 $ 283,342 $ 133,932 $ 1,105,322

Acquisitions of franchises result in a reclassification of goodwill between segments.
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Othett r IntanII gibln e All ssets

Other intangible assets consist of the following:

Gross
Carrying
Amount

Accumulated
Amortization

Net
Amount

Gross
Carrying
Amount

Accumulated
Amortization

Net
Amount

Intangible assets with indefinite lives
Trade name ................................................ $ 657,900 $ — $ 657,900 $ 657,900 $ — $ 657,900
Intangible assets with definite lives
Franchise agreements ................................ 32,545 (8,369) 24,176 36,254 (7,519) 28,735
Customer relationships .............................. 15,000 (4,684) 10,316 15,000 (3,819) 11,181
Reacquired francff hise rights ....................... 384,305 (84,177) 300,128 358,095 (59,432) 298,663
Website development costs ....................... 6,500 (6,500) — 6,500 (4,965) 1,535
Total intangible assets with definff ite
lives ........................................................... 438,350 (103,730) 334,620 415,849 (75,735) 340,114
Total intangible assets ............................. $ 1,096,250 $ (103,730) $ 992,520 $ 1,073,749 $ (75,735) $ 998,014

January 2, 2022 January 3, 2021

Amortization expense related to intangible assets included in Depreciation and amortization expense was $29.8 million, $26.3
million and $21.3 million for the fisff cal years ended January 2, 2022, January 3, 2021 and December 29, 2019, respectively.

Estimated futuret amortization expense as of January 2, 2022 is as follows:

Fiscal year
Estimated

amortization expense

2022 .................................................................................................................................................................. $ 28,726
2023 .................................................................................................................................................................. 28,726
2024 .................................................................................................................................................................. 28,892
2025 .................................................................................................................................................................. 28,726
2026 .................................................................................................................................................................. 28,566
Thereafter.......................................................................................................................................................... 190,984

Total .......................................................................................................................................................... $ 334,620

The aforementioned estimates do not reflect the impact of futff uret foreign exchange rate changes.
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Note 7 — Long-Term Debt

The Company’s long-term debt obligations consists of the folff lowing:

Fiscal Years Ended
January 2,
2022

January 3,
2021

2019 Facility - term loan.................................................................................................................. $ 621,250 $ 656,250
2019 Facility - revolving credit facility ........................................................................................... 75,000 150,000
Less: Debt issuance costs................................................................................................................. (3,833) (5,419)
Financing obligations....................................................................................................................... 24,473 26,224
Total long-term debt...................................................................................................................... 827,055
Less: Current portion of long-term debt .......................................................................................... (36,583) (41,245)
Long-term debt, less current portion........................................................................................... 680,307 785,810
Related party notes payable (excluding accruedr interest)................................................................ — 337,148
Total debt and related party notes payable................................................................................. $ 680,307 $ 1,122,958

2016 & 2019 Secured Credit Facilities

The Company entered into a $500.0 million senior secured credit facility (the “prior facility”) that provided forff a term loan with
a principal amount of $350.0 million and a $150.0 million senior secured revolving credit facility, which had the following
amendments: (1) add $65.0 million in borrowings on the term loan and $15.0 million in borrowing capaca ity on the revolving
credit facility; (2) add $125.0 million in borrowings on the term loan; and (3) add $50.0 million in borrowings on the term loan.

In June 2019, the Company refinanced its prior facility. This resulted in the repayment of the outstanding term loan and
revolving credit facility. The Company incurred a $1.6 million loss on extinguishment, related primarily to the write-off of debt
issuance costs as part of the refinancing of the prior facility, included in Interest expense, net in the Consolidated Statements of
Operations. Upon completion of this extinguishment, the Company entered into a $1.0 billion senior secured credit facility that
provided forff a term loan with a principal amount of $700.0 million and a $300.0 million senior secured revolving credit facility
(collectively, the “2019 Facility”). The 2019 Facility is secured by a firstff priority lien on substantially all of the Company’s
personal property assets, certain real properties and all of the Company’s domestic wholly-owned subsidiaries. The Company
capita alized $10.9 million of debt issuance costs related to the 2019 Facility, $8.0 million of which is related to the term loan and
$2.9 million related to the revolving credit facility.

In July 2021, the Company amended the 2019 Facility to allow for financial reporting at the KKI legal entity level and to allow
for KKI to be guarantor of the obligations of its subsidiary Krispy Kreme Doughnuts, Inc. under the 2019 Facility.

After consideration of outstanding borrowings and letters of credit secured by the 2019 Facility, the Company had $225.0
million and $150.0 million of available borrowing capaca ity under the revolving credit facility as of January 2, 2022 and
January 3, 2021, respectively.

The 2019 Facility provides forff quarterly scheduled principal payments on the term loan and repayment of all outstanding
balances on the term loan and revolving credit facility at maturity, June 13, 2024. Further, the Company may be required to
prepay additional amounts annually upon the occurrence of a prepayment event as defined in the 2019 Facility. Because the
amounts of any such future repayments are not currently determinablea , they are excluded from the long-term debt maturities
schedule below.

Interest on borrowings under the 2019 Facility is payablea either at the London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) rounded up
to the next 1/16% of 1% or the Alternate Base Rate (which is the greatest of the prime rate, the Federal Funds rate plus 0.50%,
or the one-month LIBOR rate plus 1.00%), in each case plus the Applicablea Rate. The Applicable Rate forff LIBOR loans ranges
from 1.75% to 2.25%, and for Base Rate loans ranges fromff 0.75% to 1.25%, in each case depending on the Company’s
leverage ratio. All borrowings outstanding under the 2019 Facility as of January 2, 2022 and January 3, 2021 were LIBOR
loans. The Applicablea Rate was 2.00% and 2.00% for the fiscal years ended January 2rr , 2022 and January 3rr , 2021, respectively,
and the LIBOR rate was 0.13% and 0.19% for the fiscal years ended January 2rr , 2022 and January 3rr , 2021, respectively, under
the 2019 Facility. As of January 2, 2022 and January 3, 2021, $505.0 million out of the $621.3 million term loan balance and
$505.0 million out of the $656.3 million term loan balance, respectively, was hedged. The effective interest rate on the term
loan was approximately 3.74% and 3.67% for the fiscal years ended January 2, 2022 and January 3, 2021, respectively. Refer to
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Note 10, Derivative Instruments, to the audited Consolidated Financial Statements forff further discussion of the interest rate
swap aa rrangements.

The 2019 Facility allows the Company to obtain letters of credit without applying those amounts against the usage of the senior
secured revolving credit facility. The Company is required to pay a feeff equal to the Applicablea Rate for LIBOR-based loans on
the outstanding amount of letters of credit plus a fronff ting fee to the issuing bank. Commitment fees on the unused portion of the
senior secured revolving credit facility range from 0.25% to 0.375%, based on the Company’s leverage ratio. At January 2,
2022, January 3, 2021 and December 29, 2019, the fee on the unused portion of the senior secured revolving credit facility was
0.25%, 0.25% and 0.25%, respectively, included in Interest expense in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Restrictions and Covenants

The 2019 Facility requires the Company to meet a maximum leverage ratio finff ancial test. The leverage ratio was required to be
not greater than 6.00 to 1.00 initially, reducing in steps throughout the term of the 2019 Facility ultimately to 5.00 to 1.00. The
leverage ratio under the 2019 Facility was required to be below 5.50 to 1.00 as of January 2, 2022, and January 3, 2021 and is
calculated using Net Debt and Adjusted EBITDA as defined in the 2019 Facility.

The 2019 Facility also contains covenants which, among other things, generally limit (with certain exceptions): mergers,
amalgamations or consolidations; the incurrence of additional indebtedness (including guarantees); the incurrence of additional
liens; the sale, assignment, lease, conveyance or transfer of assets; certain investments; dividends and stock redemptions or
repurchases in excess of certain amounts; transactions with affiliates; engaging in materially different lines of business; and
other activities customarily restricted in such agreements. The 2019 Facility also prohibits the transfer of cash or other assets to
the parent company, whether by dividend, loan or otherwise, but provides forff exceptions to enablea the parent company to pay
taxes, directors’ fees and operating expenses, as well as exceptions to permit dividends in respect of the Company’s common
stock and stock redemptions and repurchases, to the extent permitted by the 2019 Facility. Substantially all of the net assets of
the Company’s consolidated subsidiaries were restricted as of January 28, 2022. As of January 2, 2022 and January 3, 2021, the
Company was in compliance with the financial and other covenants related to the 2019 Facility.

The 2019 Facility also contains customary events of default including, but not limited to, payment defaults, breaches of
representations and warranties, covenant defaults, non-loan party indebtedness in excess of $35.0 million, certain events of
bankruptcy and insolvency, judgment defaults in excess of $35.0 million and the occurrence of a change of control.

Borrowings and issuances of letters of credit under the 2019 Facility are subject to the satisfaction of usual and customary
conditions, including the accuracy of representations and warranties and the absence of defaulff ts.

The aggregate maturitt ies of the 2019 Facility for each of the folff lowing five years by fiscal year are as follows:

Fiscal year Principal Amount

2022....................................................................................................................................................................... $ 35,000
2023....................................................................................................................................................................... 35,000
2024....................................................................................................................................................................... 626,250
2025....................................................................................................................................................................... —
2026....................................................................................................................................................................... —

Term Loan Facility

On June 10, 2021, the Company entered into the Term Loan Facility. On June 17, 2021, the Company borrowed $500.0 million
under the Term Loan Facility. The borrowings under the Term Loan Facility bore an all-in interest rate of 2.68175%. As of
January 2, 2022, there was no outstanding principal amount under the Term Loan Facility, as it was paid off in full and
terminated on July 7, 2021, primarily using the net IPO proceeds with the difference being partially fundedff by a drawdown of
$100.0 million on the 2019 Facility’s revolving credit facility. The Term Loan Facility would have matured on the earlier of (i)
June 10, 2022 and (ii) within fourff business days following consummation of the IPO. The interest expense was $2.4 million for
the fiscal year ended January 2, 2022, which included $1.7 million of debt issuance costs incurred and recognized as expenses.
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Cash Paymea nts of Interest

Interest paid, inclusive of debt issuance costs, totaled $44.3 million, $33.5 million and $40.1 million in the fiscal years ended
January 2, 2022, January 3, 2021, and December 29, 2019, respectively.

Financing Obligations

The Company has long-term financing obligations primarily in the form of lease obligations (related to both Company-owned
and franchised restaurants). Refer to Note 8, Leases, to the audited Consolidated Financial Statements for additional discussion
of the financing obligations.
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Note 8 — Leases

The Company has various lease agreements related to real estate, vehicles and equipment. Its operating leases include real
estate (buildings and ground), vehicles and equipment. Operating lease right-of-use assets and operating lease liabilities are
recognized based on the present value of the future lease payments over the term. The operating lease right-of-use asset also
includes accrued lease expense resulting from the straight-line accounting under prior accounting methods, which is now being
amortized over the remaining life of the lease.

The Company is the lessee on a number of ground leases and multiple building leases, which were classified as operating leases
under ASC 840. As the Company elected the package of practical expedients, the Company was not required to reassess the
classification of these existing leases and as such, these leases continue to be accounted for as operating leases. In the event the
Company modifies the existing leases or enters into new ground or building leases in the future, such leases may be classifiedff
as finance leases.

The Company’s finance leases relate primarily to vehicles and equipment. The lease payments are largely fixeff d in nature.t The
Company is generally obligated for the cost of property taxes, insurance and common area maintenance relating to its leases,
which are variable in nature.t The Company determines the variable payments based on invoiced amounts from lessors. The
Company has elected to not apply the recognition requirements to leases of 12 months or less. These leases will be expensed on
a straight-line basis, and no operating lease liability will be recorded.

The Company included the following amounts related to operating and finance lease assets and liabilities within the
Consolidated Balance Sheets:

As of
January 2, 2022 January 3, 2021

Assets Classification
Operating lease............................................... Operating lease right of use asset, net ........ $ 435,168 $ 399,688
Finance lease ......................................... Property and equipment, net .................... 19,298 23,556
Total leased assets ............................................................................................... $ 454,466 $ 423,244

Liabilities
Current
Operating lease....................................... Current operating lease liabila ities.............. $ 50,359 $ 45,675
Finance lease ......................................... Current portion of long-term debt ............. 1,583 6,245
Noncurrent
Operating lease....................................... Noncurrent operating lease liabilities......... 415,208 376,099
Finance lease ......................................... Long-term debt, less current portion.......... 22,890 19,979
Total leased liabilities .......................................................................................... $ 490,040 $ 447,998

The Company has long-term contractual obligations primarily in the form of lease obligations related to Company-operated
restaurants and franchised restaurants. Interest expense associated with the finance lease obligations is computed using the
incremental borrowing rate at the time the lease is entered into and is based on the amount of the outstanding lease obligation.
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The weighted-average remaining lease term and weighted-average discount rate forff operating and finance leases were as
follows:

As of
January 2, 2022 January 3, 2021

Weighted average remaining lease term:
Operating lease ................................................................................................ 11.6 years 11.1 years
Finance lease ................................................................................................... 13.8 years 12.0 years

Weighted average discount rate:
Operating lease ................................................................................................ 6.65 % 6.94 %
Finance lease ................................................................................................... 7.13 % 7.13 %

Lease costs were as follows:

Fiscal Years Ended

January 2, 2022 January 3, 2021
December 29,

2019

Lease cost Classificaff tion
Operating lease cost ........... Selling, general and administrative expense.. $ 2,481 $ 3,127 $ 2,816
Operating lease cost ........... Operating expenses ........................................ 85,429 70,855 45,732
Short-term lease cost .......... Operating expenses ........................................ 2,513 2,867 1,850
Variablea lease costs............ Operating expenses ........................................ 16,414 9,195 13,161
Sublease income................ Royalties and other revenues ......................... (386) (506) (480)
Finance lease cost:
Amortization of right-of-use
assets .............................. Depreciation and amortization expense ......... $ 3,217 $ 2,587 $ 2,469
Interest on lease liabilities ... Interest expense, net....................................... 2,002 2,040 1,915

Supplemental disclosures of cash flowff information related to leases were as follows:

Fiscal Years Ended

January 2, 2022 January 3, 2021
December 29,

2019

Other information
Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of lease liabia lities:
Operating cash flows forff operating leases................................................... $ 91,967 $ 78,465 $ 59,227
Operating cash flows forff finance leases ...................................................... 1,916 1,781 1,914
Financing cash flows for finance leases ...................................................... 4,901 3,694 1,290

Right-of-use assets obtained in exchange for new lease liabila ities:
Operating leases........................................................................................... $ 95,284 $ 74,979 $ 135,163
Finance leases.............................................................................................. 2,328 7,500 5,062

A majority of the leases include options to extend the lease. If the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend
a lease, the extension period is included as part of the right-of-use asset and the lease liability. Some of the leases include an
option to early terminate the lease. Leases with an early termination option generally involve a termination payment. For the
fiscal years ending January 2, 2022, January 3, 2021, and December 29, 2019 the Company recorded lease termination costs of
$0.6 million, $4.4 million and $2.6 million, respectively. Correspondingly, the right-of-use assets were reduced by $0.6 million,
$4.4 million and $2.6 million, respectively.

The Company’s leases do not contain restrictions or covenants that restrict the Company from incurring other finaff ncial
obligations. The Company also does not provide any residual value guarantees for the leases or have any significant leases that
have yet to be commenced.
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At the inception of the contract, management determines if the contract is or contains a lease. A contract is or contains a lease if
it conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset forff a period of time in exchange for consideration. The incremental
borrowing rate (“IBR”) reflects a fullff y secured rate based on the credit rating taking into consideration the repayment timing of
the lease and any impacts due to the economic environment in which the lease operates. The estimate of the incremental
borrowing rate reflects considerations such as market rates for the outstanding debt, interpolations of rates for leases with terms
that differ fromff the outstanding debt, and market rates for debt of companies with similar credit ratings.

Future lease commitments to be paid by the Company as of January 2, 2022 were as follows:

Fiscal year Operating Leases Finance Leases

2022 ............................................................................................................................................. $ 80,268 $ 3,275
2023 ............................................................................................................................................. 67,952 2,728
2024 ............................................................................................................................................. 63,907 2,588
2025 ............................................................................................................................................. 58,440 2,605
2026 ............................................................................................................................................. 56,505 2,824
Thereafter..................................................................................................................................... 395,510 25,846
Total lease payments ................................................................................................................. 722,582 39,866
Less: Interest................................................................................................................................ (257,015) (15,393)
Present value of lease liabilities ................................................................................................ $ 465,567 $ 24,473

In December 2021, the Company completed a sale-leaseback transaction whereby it disposed of the land at four real estate
properties forff proceeds of $11.1 million. The Company subsequently leased back the properties, which are accounted forff as
operating leases. The Company recognized a gain on sale of $8.7 million, which is included in Other (income)/expenses, net on
the Consolidated Statement of Operations.

Note 9 — Fair Value Measurements

The following tablea presents assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of January 2, 2022 and
January 3, 2021:

January 2, 2022

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Assets:
401(k) mirror plan assets ................................................................ $ 111 $ — $ —
Commodity derivatives .................................................................. — 1,486 —

Total Assets $ 111 $ 1,486 $ —

Liabilities:
Foreign currency derivative......................................................................... — 80 —
Interest rate derivative.................................................................... — 14,667 —

Total Liabilities $ — $ 14,747 $ —
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January 3, 2021
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Assets:
401(k) mirror plan assets ................................................................ $ 237 $ — $ —
Foreign currency derivative............................................................. — 131 —
Commodity derivatives .................................................................. — 420 —

Total Assets $ 237 $ 551 $ —

Liabilities:
Interest rate derivative.................................................................... — 32,813 —

Total Liabilities $ — $ 32,813 $ —

There were no transfers of financial assets or liabilities among the levels within the faiff r value hierarchy during the fiscal years
ended January 2, 2022 and January 3, 2021. The Company’s derivatives are valued using discounted cash flowff analyses that
incorporate observablea market parameters, such as interest rate yield curves and currency rates.

Note 10 — Derivative Instruments

The Company is exposed to certain risks relating to its ongoing business operations. Management evaluates various strategies in
managing its exposure to market-based risks, such as entering into transactions to manage its exposure to commodity price risk
and floating interest rates. The Company does not hold or issue derivative instruments for trading purposes. The Company is
exposed to credit-related losses in the event of non-performance by the counterparties to its derivative instruments. The
Company mitigates this risk of nonperformance by dealing with highly rated counterparties.

Commodity Price Risk

The Company uses forward contracts to protect against the effects of commodity price flucff tuations in the cost of ingredients of
its products, of which flour, sugar and shortening are the most significant, and the cost of gasoline used by its delivery vehicles.
Management has not designated these forward contracts as hedges. As of January 2, 2022 and January 3, 2021 the total notional
amount of commodity derivatives was 1.9 million and 3.0 million gallons of gasoline, respectively. They were scheduled to
mature between January 3, 2022 and March 31, 2023 and January 4, 2021 and December 1, 2022, respectively. As of January 2,
2022 and January 3, 2021, the Company has recorded an asset of $1.5 million and $0.4 million, respectively, related to the fair
market values of its commodity derivatives. The settlement of commodity derivative contracts is reported in the Consolidated
Statements of Cash Flows as a cash flowff from operating activities.

Interest Rate Risk

The Company is exposed to market risk fromff increases in interest rates on any borrowings outstanding under its Debt Facility.
In November 2016, the Company entered into various interest rate swap aa greements (“original interest rate swap”a ) with a
notional amount totaling $300.0 million that would have matured in July 2021. Under the original interest rate swap
agreements, the Company made payments based on a fixeff d rate of 1.18% and in exchange received payments at a variable rate
based on the one-month LIBOR. In April 2018, the Company novated these interest swap agreements.

In May 2018, following the novation of its original interest rate swap, the Company entered into a new interest rate swap (“May
2018 swap aa greement”). The May 2018 interest rate swap aa greements had a notional amount of $300.0 million and were to
mature in July 2021. Under the novated swap aa greements, the Company had fixed the variable portion of the interest rate on a
portion of the Debt Facility and was required to make payments based on a fixeff d rate of 2.70% and in exchange would receive
payments at a variable rate based on the one-month LIBOR. In November 2018, the Company entered into a new interest swapa
agreement with an aggregate notional amount of $155.0 million (“November 2018 swap aa greements”). Under the November
2018 swap aa greements, the Company made payments based on a fixeff d rate of 2.92% and in exchange received payments at a
variable rate based on the one month LIBOR. The November 2018 swap aa greements were to mature in November 2023,
corresponding with an expected extension of the Debt Facility.

In June 2019, following its debt modification (modification to the “2019 Debt Facility”), the Company effectively cancelled its
swap aa greements on $300.0 million of the $455.0 million hedged notional and entered into new agreements with the same
counterparties (the “June 2019 swap agreement”). The only differences between these new agreements and the prior versions

Table of Contents

81



included an extension of the maturity term of the swapsa from 2023 to 2024, and the locking in of a new payment rate on the
fixed leg of the swapsa (1.99%), through the 2024 maturity.

In February 2020, the Company effectively cancelled its swap aa greements on the other $155.0 million hedged notional and
entered into new agreements with the same counterparties (the “February 2020 swap aa greement”). The only differences
between these new agreements and the prior versions included an extension of the maturity term of the swaps from 2023 to
2024, and the locking in of a new payment rate on the fixed leg of the swaps (2.72%), through the 2024 maturity. At the same
time, the Company also entered into a new interest rate swap aa greement with a notional amount of $50.0 million and a maturit ty
date in June 2024. Under this swap aa greement, the Company had fixed the variable portion of the interest rate on a portion of
the Debt Facility and was required to make payments based on a fixeff d rate of 0.95% and in exchange would receive payments
at a variablea rate based on the one-month LIBOR

The net effecff t of the interest rate swap arrangements will be to fix the interest rate on the term loan under the 2019 Debt Facility
up to the notional amount outstanding at the rates payablea under the swap agreements plus the Applicable Rate (as defined by
the 2019 Debt Facility). Management has designated the 2018, the June 2019 and the Februaryrr 2020 swap aa greements as cash
flow hedges and recognized the changes in the fair value of these swapsa in other comprehensive income. As of January 2, 2022
and January 3, 2021, the Company has recorded liabilities of $14.7 million and $32.8 million, respectively, related to the fair
market values of its interest rate derivatives. The cash flows associated with the interest rate swaps are reflected in the operating
activities in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, which is consistent with the classification as operating activities of the
interest payments on the term loan.

All of the interest rate swap derivatives have certain early termination triggers caused by an event of default or termination. The
events of default include failure to make payments when due, failure to give notice of a termination event, failure to comply
with or perform obligations under the agreements, bankruptcy or insolvency and defaults under other agreements (cross-default
provisions).

Foreigni Currency Exchange Rate Risk

The Company is exposed to foreiff gn currency risk primarily from its investments in consolidated subsidiaries that operate in
Canada, the U.K., Ireland, Australia, New Zealand, Mexico and Japan. In order to mitigate foreiff gn exchange fluctuations, the
Company enters into foreign exchange forward contracts. Management has not designated these forward contracts as hedges.
As of January 2, 2022 and January 3, 2021, the total notional amount of foreign exchange derivatives was $51.8 million and
$26.7 million, respectively. They were scheduled to mature between January 2022 and February 2022, and in January 2021,
respectively. As of January 2, 2022 and January 3, 2021, the Company has recorded a liabila ity of $0.1 million and an asset of
$0.1 million, respectively, related to the fair market values of its foreign exchange derivatives.

Quantitative Summary of Derivative Positions and Their Effeff ct on Results of Operations

The following tablea s present the fair values of derivative instruments included in the Consolidated Balance Sheets as of
January 2, 2022 and January 3, 2021 for derivatives not designated as hedging instruments and derivatives designed as hedging
instruments, respectively. The Company only has cash flowff hedges that are designated as hedging instruments.
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Derivatives Fair Value
Derivatives Not Designated as Hedging
Instruments January 2, 2022 January 3, 2021 Balance Sheet Location

Foreign currency derivatives .......................... $ — $ 131 Prepaid expense and other current assets
Commodity derivatives................................... 1,486 420 Prepaid expense and other current assets

$ 1,486 $ 551
Foreign currency derivatives 80 — Accrued liabilities

$ 80 $ —

Derivatives Fair Value
Derivatives Designated as Hedging
Instruments January 2, 2022 January 3, 2021 Balance Sheet Location

Interest rate derivatives ................................... $ 8,535 $ 10,235 Accrued liabia lities

Interest rate derivatives ................................... 6,132 22,578
Other long-term obligations and deferred
credits

$ 14,667 $ 32,813

The effect of derivative instruments on the Consolidated Statements of Operations for the fiscal years ended January 2, 2022,
January 3, 2021, and December 29, 2019:

Derivative Gain/(Loss) Recognized in Income in Fiscal
Years Ended

Derivatives Designated as Hedging
Instruments January 2, 2022 January 3, 2021

December 29,
2019

Location of Derivative Gain/(Loss)
Recognized in Income

Loss on interest rate derivatives ........ $ (10,291) $ (7,633) $ (1,774) Interest expense, net
$ (10,291) $ (7,633) $ (1,774)

Derivative Gain/(Loss) Recognized in Income in Fiscal
Years Ended

Derivatives Not Designated as Hedging
Instruments January 2, 2022 January 3, 2021

December 29,
2019

Location of Derivative Gain/(Loss)
Recognized in Income

Loss on foreign currency................... $ (62) $ (21) $ (248)
Other non-operating expense/
(income), net

Gain on commodity derivatives ........ 1,066 267 153
Other non-operating expense/
(income), net

$ 1,004 $ 246 $ (95)

Note 11 — Employee Benefit Plans

Defie ned Contribution Plans

The Company has a 401(k) savings plan (the “401(k) Plan”) to which eligible employees may contribute up tu o 100% of their
salary and bonus on a tax deferred basis, subject to statutory limitations. The Company currently matches 100% of the first 3%
and 50% of the next 2% of compensation contributed by each employee to the 401(k) Plan.

The Company operates defined contribution plans in the U.K. and Ireland (“KKUK and Ireland Contribution Plans”), to which
eligible employees may contribute up tu o 100% of their salary, subject to statutoryt limitations. The Company currently matches
contributions at a rate of 3% of pensionablea earnings. The KKUK and Ireland Contribution Plans are pension plans under which
the Company pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. The Company has no legal or constructive obligations to pay
further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in
the current and prior periods. The Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognized as employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognized as an asset to
the extent that a cash refund or a reductd ion in the future payments is availablea .

The Company’s Insomnia Cookies subsidiary sponsors a 401(k) plan (the “Insomnia Cookies Contribution Plan”) which allows
all its eligible employees to elect to defer up tu o 100% of their annual compensation not to exceed statutoryt limits. The Insomnia
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Cookies Contribution Plan provides forff discretionary matching contributions, which may not exceed 2% of the employee’s
overall compensation.

KK Australia operates a defined contribution retirement benefit plan forff its employees in Australia (the “Australia Plan”) and in
New Zealand (the “New Zealand Plan”). The Company contributes 9.5% of employee compensation to the Australia Plan and
matches employem e contributions of up to 3% of compensatm ion to the New Zealand Plan.

KK Canada operates a Registered Retirement Savings Plan (“RRSP”) for its employees in Canada (the “Canada Plan”) which
allows eligible employees to contribute. For certain salaried employees, the Company will match eligible employee
contributions up to 2.5% of their annual base salary.rr

Total contribution plan expense for defined contribution plans is $6.6 million, $4.9 million and $4.6 million for the fiscal years
ended January 2, 2022, January 3, 2021, and December 29, 2019, respectively.

Other Employee Benefitff Plans

The Company has a Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Plan (the “401(k) Mirror Plan”) designed to enablea officers of the
Company whose contributions to the 401(k) Plan are limited by certain statutoryt limitations to have the same opportunity to
defer compensation as is available to other employees of the Company under the qualified 401(k) savings plan. The investments
are not a legally separate fund of assets and are subject to the claims of the Company’s general creditors. Such investments are
included in Other assets in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. The corresponding liability to participants is included in Other
long-term obligations and deferred credits in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. The balance in the asset and corresponding
liability account was $0.1 million and $0.2 million as of January 2, 2022 and January 3, 2021, respectively.

KK Mexico operates defined benefit plans for its employees related to seniority premium (the “Mexico Seniority Premium
Plan”) and termination indemnity (the “Mexico Termination Indemnity Plan”). The Mexico Seniority Premium Plan provides
eligible employees a defined benefit of 12 days of salary per full year of service, and the Mexico Termination Indemnity Plan
provides eligible employees a defined benefit of up to three months of base salary. Net periodic benefit cost forff these plans
totaled less than $0.1 million forff the fiscal years ended January 2, 2022 and January 3, 2021, respectively.

Note 12 — Share-based Compensation

Restricted Stock Units (“RSUs”)

The Company and certain of its subsidiaries issue time-vested restricted stock units (“RSUs”) under their respective executive
ownership plans and long-term incentive plans. The time-vested RSUs are awarded to eligible employees and non-employee
directors and entitle the grantee to receive shares of common stock at the end of a vesting period. The majoa rity of RSUs vest in
54 months from the date of grant and include a minimum holding period of six months before the shareholder may redeem the
shares. Certain RSUs vest over a 60-month period subsequent to the grant date (with 60% vesting during the third year
following the grant date, 20% vesting during the fourth year, and 20% vesting at the end of the 60-month term). Throughout the
vesting period and the holding period, shareholders are subjeu ct to the market risk on the value of their shares.

RSUs held by KKI are granted to U.S. employees and directors as well as certain employees of the Company’s subsidiaries.
The U.K. employees receive RSUs held by KKUK. The Insomnia Cookies employees receive RSUs held by Insomnia Cookies.
The Australia employees receive RSUs held by KK Australia. The Mexico employees receive RSUs held by KK Mexico.
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RSU activity under the various plans during the fisff cal years presented is as followff s:

Non-vested
shares

outstanding
at

December
29, 2019 Granted Vested Forfeited

Non-vested
shares

outstanding
at January
3, 2021 Granted

RSU
Dividend
Equivale
nts(1) Vested Forfeited

Non-vested
shares

outstanding
at January
2, 2022

KKI
RSUs ..................... 4,108,726 696,371 2,283 153,263 4,649,551 3,339,608 1,018,629 2,585,390 556,291 5,866,107

Weighted Average
Grant Date Fair
Value ................. $ 10.43 16.90 10.35 11.43 $ 11.37 17.95 — 9.29 14.32 $ 13.78

KKUK
RSUs ..................... 416,068 — — 11,500 404,568 6,785 — 351,500 — 59,853

Weighted Average
Grant Date Fair
Value ................. $ 12.44 — — 12.22 $ 12.45 29.80 — 12.22 — $ 15.77

Insomnia Cookies
RSUs ..................... 30,959 13,688 810 14,558 29,279 15,173 — 809 10,147 33,496

Weighted Average
Grant Date Fair
Value ................. $ 67.82 66.71 74.12 64.30 $ 68.87 97.77 — 74.12 75.68 $ 79.66

KK Australia
RSUs ..................... 1,880,941 63,560 — 100,260 1,844,241 78,534 — — 26,042 1,896,733

Weighted Average
Grant Date Fair
Value ................. $ 1.47 1.67 — 1.36 $ 1.48 1.45 — — 1.36 $ 1.48

KKMexico
RSUs ..................... — 25,055 — — 25,055 32,963 — — — 58,018

Weighted Average
Grant Date Fair
Value ................. $ — 29.21 — — $ 29.21 35.64 — — — $ 32.86

1. For KKI RSU holders that did not vest uponu IPO, dividend equivalent shares were granted after the IPO at a weighted
average grant date fairff value of zero. The vesting terms for the dividend equivalent shares are the same as the underlying
RSUs. The KKI shares presented have been retroactively adjustd ed to give effect to the Stock Split and the Merger.

The Company recorded total non-cash compensation expense related to the RSUs under the plans of $19.6 million, $11.6
million and $10.7 million for fiscal years ended January 2, 2022, January 3, 2021, and December 29, 2019, respectively. The
net deferred tax (expense)/benefits recognized were ($4.9 million), $2.7 million and $2.6 million for fiscal years ended
January 2, 2022, January 3, 2021, and December 29, 2019, respectively.

The unrecognized compensation cost related to the unvested RSUs and the weighted-average period over which such cost is
expected to be recognized are as follows:

As of January 2, 2022
Unrecognized
Compensation

Cost

Recognized Over a
Weighted-

Average Period of

KKI .......................................................................................................................................... $ 57,087 3.1 years
KKUK...................................................................................................................................... 434 2.0 years
Insomnia Cookies..................................................................................................................... 1,837 3.0 years
KK Australia ............................................................................................................................ 607 1.0 year
KK Mexico............................................................................................................................... $ 1,661 3.9 years

Table of Contents

85



The estimated fair value of restricted stock is calculated using a market approach (i.e., market multiple is used forff the KKI,
KKUK and Insomnia Cookies’ plans and an agreed-upon EBITDA buyout multiple is used for KK Australia and KK Mexico
plans).

The total grant date fairff values of shares vested under the KKI plan were $24.0 million, $0.0 million and $1.7 million for fiscal
years ended January 2, 2022, January 3, 2021, and December 29, 2019, respectively. The total grant date fairff value of shares
vested under the KKUK plan were $4.3 million for fiscal year ended January 2, 2022; no shares vested for the fiscal years
ended January 3, 2021 and December 29, 2019. The total faiff r values of shares vested under the Insomnia Cookies’ plan were
$0.1 million, $0.1 million, and $0.1 million for fiscal years ended January 2, 2022, January 3, 2021, and December 29, 2019,
respectively. No shares under the KK Australia and KK Mexico vested duringd the three fiscal years presented.

Time-Vested Stock Options

KKI issues time-vested stock options under its Omnibus Incentive Plan. The stock options are awarded to eligible employees
and entitle the grantee to purchase shares of common stock at the respective exercise price at the end of a vesting period. Stock
options vest over a 60-month period subsequent to the grant date (with 60% vesting during the third year follff owing the grant
date, 20% vesting during the fourth year, and 20% vesting at the end of the 60-month term), and as such are subject to a service
condition. The maximum contractualt term of the stock options is 10 years.

The fair value of time-vested stock options was estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model.
This model is impacted by the Company’s stock price and certain assumptim ons related to the Company’s stock and employees’
exercise behavior. The expected term for stock options granted during fiscal year 2021 was estimated utilizing the simplified
method. Management utilized the simplified method because the Company did not have sufficient historical exercise data to
provide a reasonable basis upon which to estimate expected term. The risk-free interest rate assumption was based on yields of
U.S. Treasury securities in effect at the date of grant with terms similar to the expected term. Expected volatility was estimated
based on the Company’s historical volatility, and also considering historical volatility of peer companies over a period
equivalent to the expected term. Additionally, the dividend yield was estimated based on dividends currently being paid on the
underlying common stock at the date of grant. Estimated and actual forfeiff tures have not had a material impact on share-based
compensation expense.

The following weighted-average assumptim ons were utilized in determining the fair value of the time-vested stock options
granted during fiscal year 2021:

Fiscal Years Ended
January 2,
2022

January 3,
2021

KKI
Risk-free interest rate .......................................................................................................... 1.3 % — %
Expected volatility............................................................................................................... 34.4 % — %
Dividend yield..................................................................................................................... 1.0 % — %
Expected term (years).......................................................................................................... 6.8 years —

A summary of the status of the time-vested stock options as of January 2, 2022 and changes during fiscal year 2021 is presented
below:
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Share options
outstanding at

Share options
outstanding at

January 3,
2021 Granted Exercised

Forfeited or
expired

January 2,
2022

KKI
Options ...................................................... — 2,817,398 — — 2,817,398
Weighted Average Grant Date Fair Value $ — 6.10 — — $ 6.10
Weighted Average Exercise Price ............. $ — 14.61 — — $ 14.61
Weighted Average Remaining
Contractual Term (years)........................... — 9.3 years
Aggregate Intrinsic Value (in thousands).. $ — $ 12,151

The Company recorded total non-cash compensation expense related to the time-vested stock options of $$3.3 imilllliion for the
fiscal year ended January 2, 2022. No non-cash compensation expense related to time-vested stock option was recorded for the
fiscal years ended January 3, 2021 and December 29, 2019.

The unrecognized compensation cost related to the unvested stock options and the weighted-average period over which such
cost is expected to be recognized are as followff s:

As of January 2, 2022
Unrecognized
Compensation

Cost

Recognized Over a
Weighted-

Average Period of

KKI .......................................................................................................................................... $ 13,830 3.2 years

No time-vested stock options under the KKI plan vested nor were exercised duringd the fisff cal periods presented.

Note 13 — Income Taxes

Income (loss) before income taxes consisted of:

Fiscal Years Ended

January 2, 2022 January 3, 2021
December 29,

2019

Domestic........................................................................................................... $ (49,348) $ (47,080) $ (34,836)
Foreign ............................................................................................................. 45,250 (4,748) 13,412
Loss before income taxes ............................................................................... $ (4,098) $ (51,828) $ (21,424)

Domestic income (loss) before income taxes includes unallocated corporate costs, which include general corporate expenses.
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The components of the provision for income taxes are as follows:

Fiscal Years Ended

January 2, 2022 January 3, 2021
December 29,

2019

Current:
Federal....................................................................................................... $ — $ — $ 2,209
State........................................................................................................... 347 156 (396)
International .............................................................................................. 13,894 8,992 2,342

Total current ............................................................................. 14,241 9,148 4,155
Deferred:

Federal....................................................................................................... 4,310 (8,844) 10,117
State........................................................................................................... (5,739) 13,472 (743)
International .............................................................................................. (2,067) (4,664) (952)

Total deferred............................................................................ (3,496) (36) 8,422
Income tax expense......................................................................................... $ 10,745 $ 9,112 $ 12,577

A reconciliation of the statutory U.S. federal income tax rate and the Company’s effective tax rate is as follff ows:

Fiscal Years Ended
January 2,
2022

January 3,
2021

December 29,
2019

Statutory federal rate ........................................................................................ 21.0 % 21.0 % 21.0 %
State income taxes, net of federal benefit......................................................... (2.8) 4.1 0.8
Foreign operations............................................................................................ (12.9) (10.7) 6.0
Credit forff foreign income taxes........................................................................ — — 6.3
Change in valuation allowance......................................................................... 14.3 (34.9) (31.0)
Noncontrolling interest..................................................................................... 46.8 2.6 (3.3)
Impact of uncertain tax positions ..................................................................... 9.1 (1.3) (55.8)
Other permanent differences ............................................................................ (14.2) 1.3 3.0
Transaction costs .............................................................................................. (5.1) (0.8) (10.0)
Deferred adjustments........................................................................................ (96.1) (0.9) (10.2)
Stock compensation.......................................................................................... (217.4) — —
Other................................................................................................................. (4.9) 2.0 14.5
Effective tax rate............................................................................................. (262.2)% (17.6)% (58.7)%

The Company establia shes valuation allowances forff deferred income tax assets in accordance with GAAP, which provides that
such valuation allowances shall be establia shed unless realization of the income tax benefits is more likely than not.

The Company recognizes deferred income tax assets and liabilities based upon its expectation of the future tax consequences of
temporary differences between the income tax and financial reporting bases of assets and liabilities. Deferred tax liabilities
generally represent tax expense recognized for which payment has been deferred, or expenses which have been deductd ed in the
Company’s tax returns,t but which have not yet been recognized as an expense in the financial statements. Deferff red tax assets
generally represent tax deductions or credits that will be reflected in future tax returns forff which the Company has already
recorded a tax benefit in the Consolidated Financial Statements.

The Company continues to assert permanent reinvestment with respect to its initial basis differenceff s of international affiliates
but does not assert indefinite reinvestment on the earnings of the foreign subsidiaries with the exception of its subsidiaries in
Canada. Accordingly, no deferred taxes have been provided forff with regard to the Company’s initial basis difference in
international affiliates. Due to the complexities of tax law in the respective jurisdictions, it is not practical to estimate the tax
liability that might be incurred if such earnings were remitted to the U.S. The Company has not establia shed a deferred tax
liability for the earnings of the foreign subsidiaries as any distributions made from those jurisdictions are expected to be made
in a tax neutral manner.
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The tax effects of temporary differences are as follows:

Deferred income tax assets:
Intangible assets .............................................................................................. $ 1,665 $ 1,884
Accrued compensation....................................................................................................... 4,330 3,302
Insurance accruals............................................................................................ 1,934 2,040
Share-based compensation................................................................................. 2,786 7,676
Deferred revenue ............................................................................................. 1,735 1,903
Transaction costs ............................................................................................. 1,397 1,091
Disallowed interest expense............................................................................... 10,527 9,660
Lease liabilities ............................................................................................... 101,629 91,828
Foreign net operating loss carryforward ............................................................... 2,565 574
Foreign capita al loss carryforward ........................................................................ — 23,067
Federal net operating loss carryforward................................................................ 22,493 22,976
Federal tax credits............................................................................................ 13,913 12,320
State net operating loss and credit carryforwards.................................................... 11,169 9,082
Unrealized loss on foreign currency..................................................................... 3,667 8,203
Other............................................................................................................. 9,567 11,243

Gross deferred income tax assets ................................................................ 189,377 206,849
Valuation allowance......................................................................... (29,972) (40,502)

Deferred income tax assets, net of valuation allowance ............... $ 159,405 $ 166,347
Deferred income tax liabilities:

Intangible assets .............................................................................................. (147,621) (150,818)
Subsidiary investments ..................................................................................... (8,038) (5,359)
Property and equipment .................................................................................... (14,254) (19,104)
Foreign reacquired franchise rights...................................................................... (37,600) (44,236)
Lease right of use assets .................................................................................... (93,250) (85,764)
Other............................................................................................................. (3,683) (5,840)
Gross deferred income tax liabia lities................................................................ (304,446) (311,121)

Net deferredff income tax liabilities ............................................ $ (145,041) $ (144,774)

As of
January 2,
2022

January 3,
2021
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The presentation of deferred income taxes on the Consolidated Balance Sheets is as follff ows:

As of
January 2,
2022

January 3,
2021

Included in:
Other assets.................................................................................................................................. $ 377 $ 92
Deferred income taxes, net .......................................................................................................... (145,418) (144,866)
Net deferred income tax liabilities ........................................................................................... $ (145,041) $ (144,774)

As of January 2, 2022, the Company had Net Operating Loss (“NOL”) carryfrr orff warr rds of approximately $327.5 million for U.S.
state tax purposes and $107.1 million for U.S. federal tax purposes. As of January 3, 2021, the Company had NOL
carryforwards of approximately $243.0 million for U.S. state tax purposes and $109.4 million for U.S. federal tax purposes.
U.S. federal NOL carryforwardsrr are eligible to be carried forward indefinitely. A portion of the Company’s U.S. state tax
carryfrr orff warr rds will begin to expire in the current year. As of January 2, 2022 and January 3, 2021 the Company had foreign
NOL carryforff warr rds of approxia mately $8.5 million and $2.4 million, respectively. As of January 2, 2022, $8.3 million of NOL
carryforwards have a 10-year carryover period and the remaining $0.2 million have either a 20-year carryover period or no
expiration. As of January 2, 2022, the Company had no foreign capia tal loss carryforwards.

As of January 2, 2022, the Company had various tax credit carryfrr orff warr rds of $13.9 million for U.S. federal purposes and zero
for U.S. state purposes. As of January 3, 2021, the Company had various tax credit carryforff warr rds of $12.0 million for U.S.
federal purposes and zero for U.S. state purposes. If not utilized, the credits can be carried forwarff d between 10 and 20 years. If
certain substantial changes in the entity’s ownership occur, there would be an annual limitation on the amount of the NOLs and
credits that can be utilized.

The valuation allowances of $30.0 million and $40.5 million as of January 2, 2022 and January 3, 2021 respectively, represent
the portion of its deferred tax assets the Company estimated would not be realized in the future. Of the $30.0 million as of
January 2, 2022, $2.5 million is for KK Mexico loss carryforwards, $13.2 million is for U.S. state tax carryforwards, and $14.2
million is for U.S. foreign tax credits and other business credits, for which sufficient taxable income is not expected to be
generated. The change in valuation allowance is primarily attributablea to the write-off of a KK Mexico capital loss carryforward
with a corresponding offset to the valuation allowance. Of the $40.5 million as of January 3, 2021, $16.7 million is for KK
Mexico losses and capita al loss carryforwards, $11.8 million is for U.S. state tax carryforwards, and $12.0 million is for U.S.
foreign tax credits and other business credits, for which sufficient taxablea income is not expected to be generated.

Realization of net deferred tax assets generally is dependent on generation of taxable income in future periods. While the
Company believes its forff ecast of future taxable income is reasonabla e, actual results will inevitablya vary from management’s
forecasts. Such variances could result in adjustments to the valuation allowance on deferred tax assets in future periods, and
such adjustments could be material to the finff ancial statements.

On March 27, 2020, the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security Act (“CARES Act”) was enacted to provide economic
relief to those impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic. The CARES Act made various tax law changes including among other
things (i) modifications to the federal NOL carrybackrr rules, (ii) increased the limitation under IRC Section 163(j) for 2019 and
2020 to permit additional expensing of interest, and (iii) enacted a technical correction so that qualified improvement property
can be immediately expensed under IRC Section 168(k). The Company was able to take additional deductions as a result of the
CARES Act, resulting in additional NOLs for the fiscal years ended January 2, 2022 and January 3, 2021. The Company was
able to defer $7.3 million of social security taxes to future years during the fiscal year ended January 3, 2021. During the fiscal
year ended January 2, 2022, the Company repaid half of the deferred social security taxes and will pay the remaining deferred
taxes during the fisff cal year ending January 1, 2023.

The Company files income tax returnst in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and various U.S. state and foreign jurisdictions. For U.S.
federal tax purposes, tax years prior to the year ended December 31, 2017 are closed for assessment purposes; however, tax
years in which an NOL was generated will remain open for examination until the statute of limitations will close on tax years
utilizing NOL carryforwards to reduce the tax due.d Generally, the statute of limitations will close on tax years utilizing NOL
carryforwards three years subsequent to the utilization of NOLs. For state purposes, the statute of limitations remains open in a
similar manner for states where the Company generated NOLs.
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Income tax payments, net of refunds, were $13.6 million, $9.3 million, and $9.3 million in the fiscal years ended January 2,
2022, January 3, 2021, and December 29, 2019, respectively.

The following tablea presents a reconciliation of the beginning and ending amounts of unrecognized tax benefits:

As of
January 2,
2022

January 3,
2021

Unrecognized tax benefits at beginning of year.............................................................. $ 17,341 $ 17,342
Increases related to positions taken in the current year .................................................... 1,383 18
Increases (decreases) related to positions taken in prior years ........................................... (246) (19)
Unrecognized tax benefits at end of year ................................................................... $ 18,478 $ 17,341

Approximately all of the aggregate $18.5 million and $17.3 million of unrecognized income tax benefitsff as of January 2, 2022
and January 3, 2021, respectively, would, if recognized, impact the annual effective tax rate. The Company does not believe
that changes in its uncertain tax benefits will result in a material impact during the next twelve months.

The Company’s policy is to recognize interest and penalties related to income tax issues as components of income tax expense.
The Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets reflect approxia mately $1.9 million and $1.9 million of accrued interest and
penalties as of January 2, 2022 and January 3, 2021, respectively. Interest and penalties were not material duringd the years
presented in the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Note 14 — Commitments and Contingencies

Except as disclosed below, the Company currently is not a party to any material legal proceedings.

Pending Litiii gati iontt

K2KK Asia litigati ion

On April 7, 2009, a Cayman Islands corporation, K2 Asia Ventures and its owners filed a lawsuit in Forsyth County, North
Carolina Superior Court against the Company, the Company’s franchisee in the Philippines and other persons associated with
the franchisee. The suit alleges that the Company and the other defenff dants conspired to deprive the plaintiffs of claimed
“exclusive rights” to negotiate franchise and development agreements with prospective franchisees in the Philippines and
sought at least $3.0 million. The case was dismissed by the North Carolina Superior Court on November 9, 2018. As of August
10, 2021, all levels of appea llate review were exhausted and denied. No loss has been incurred with respect to this matter, and
accordingly no liability related to it has been reflected in the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements.

Insomnia CookiCC es litigatii on related to employee wages

Insomnia Cookies is currently a party to a class action lawsuit alleging violations of unfair competition, unpaid minimum
wages, unpaid overtime, meal and rest period violations and unpaid premiums, failure to reimburse for business expenses,
untimely paid wages, and violation of the California Private Attorner ys General Act. Insomnia Cookies vigorously disputes
these claims. On March 11, 2021, the parties participated in a mediation and reached a class wide settlement and release of
claims in principle forff $0.4 million. The parties have executed a memorandum of understanding memorializing the key
settlement terms and are in the process of finalizing long form settlement documents and seeking preliminary court approval of
the settlement.

TSW Foods, LLC litigatii on

On November 13, 2020, TSW Foods, LLC (“TSW”), a reseller of certain Krispy Kreme packaged products, filed a demand for
arbitration and statement of claim alleging Anticipatory Repudiation of the Master Reseller Agreement, Breach of the Master
Reseller Agreement, and Breach of the Implied Covenant of Good Faith and Fair Dealing. The Company intends to vigorously
defend against TSW’s claims and prosecute its counterclaims. The parties held a voluntary, non-binding mediation on
November 11, 2021. The case is expected to proceed through arbitration pursuant to an existing arbitration agreement. At this
time the Company is unable to predict the outcome of this matter, the potential loss or range of loss, if any, associated with the
resolution of this matter or any potential effect it may have on the Company or its operations.
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Othett r Legal Mattett rs

The Company also is engaged in various legal proceedings arising in the normal course of business. The Company maintains
insurance policies against certain kinds of such claims and suits, including insurance policies for workers’ compensation and
personal injury, all of which are subject to deductibles. While the ultimate outcome of these matters could differ fromff
management’s expectations, management currently does not believe their resolution will have a material adverse effect on the
Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements except as noted abovea .

Purchase Commitmett nts

The Company is exposed to the effects of commodity price flucff tuations on the cost of ingredients for its products, of which
flour, shortening and sugar are the most significant. In order to secure adequate supplies of products and bring greater stability
to the cost of ingredients, the Companym routinely enters into forward purchase contracts with vendors under which it commits to
purchase agreed-upon quantities of ingredients at agreed-upon prices at specifiedff future dates. Typically, the aggregate
outstanding purchase commitment at any point in time will range from one month to several years of anticipated ingredients
purchases, depending on the ingredient. In addition, from time to time the Company enters into contracts for the future deliveryrr
of equipment purchased for resale and components of doughnut-making equipment manufactured by the Company. As of
January 2, 2022 and January 3, 2021, the Company had approximately $132.4 million and $48.3 million, respectively, of
commitments under ingredient and other forwardff purchase contracts. These ingredient and other forwardff purchase contracts are
for physical delivery in quantities expected to be used over a reasonable period in the normal course of business. These
agreements often meet the definition of a derivative. However, the Company does not measure its forwardff purchase
commitments at fairff value as the amounts under contract meet the physical delivery criteria in the normal purchase exception
under ASC 815. While the Company has multiple vendors for most of the ingredients, the termination of the Company’s
relationships with vendors with whom it has forward purchase agreements or those vendors’ inabila ity to honor the purchase
commitments, could adversely affect the Company’s results of operations and cash flows.

Other ComCC mitments att nd Contingencin es

One of the Company’s primary banks issued letters of credit on its behalf totaling $8.5 million and $14.0 million as of
January 2, 2022 and January 3, 2021, respectively, a majority of which secure the Company’s reimbursement obligations to
insurers under its self-insurance arrangements.

Note 15 — Related Party Transactions

As of January 2, 2022 and January 3, 2021, the Company had an equity ownership in two franchisees, KremeWorks USA, LLC
(25% ownership) and KremeWorks Canada, L.P. (25% ownership), with an aggregate carrying value of $1.1 million and $0.9
million as of January 2, 2022 and January 3, 2021, respectively. Revenues from sales of ingredients and equipment to these
franchisees were $7.4 million, $6.6 million and $5.2 million for the fiscal years ended January 2, 2022, January 3, 2021, and
December 29, 2019, respectively. Royalty revenues from these franchisees were $1.3 million, $1.2 million and $1.2 million in
each of the fiscal years ended January 2, 2022, January 3, 2021, and December 29, 2019, respectively. Trade receivables from
these franchisees are included in Accounts receivable, net on the balance sheet. These transactions were conducted pursuant to
franchise agreements, the terms of which are substantially the same as the agreements with unaffiliated franchisees. Refer to
Note 3, Accounts Receivable, net, to the audited Consolidated Financial Statements for more information.

Keurig Dr Pepper Inc. (“KDP”), an affiliated company of JAB, licenses the Krispy Kreme trademark for the Company in the
manufacturing of portion packs for the Keurig brewing system. KDP also sells beverage concentrates and packaged beverages
to Krispy Kreme for resale through Krispy Kreme’s shops. Licensing revenues from KDP were $1.9 million, $1.9 million and
$2.4 million for the fisff cal years ended January 2, 2022, January 3, 2021, and December 29, 2019, respectively.

The Company had service agreements with BDT Capita al Partners, LLC (“BDT”), a minority investor in KKI, to provide
advisory services to the Company, including valuation services related to certain acquisitions. The Company recognized
expenses of $1.0 million, $1.8 million and $0.1 million related to the service agreements with BDT for the fiscal year ended
January 2rr , 2022, January 3rr , 2021, and December 29, 2019, respectively.

In connection with valuation assistance provided by BDT in preparation for the IPO, the Company incurred costs of $6.3
million that are capitaa lized in Additional paid-in capital for the fiscal year ended January 2, 2022. No related costs were
incurred for the fisff cal years ended January 3, 2021 nor December 29, 2019.

Table of Contents

92



In connection with tax sharing arrangements with JAB and other JAB portfolio companies, the Company had a $7.4 million
related party receivable fromff JAB and a $15.3 million related party payablea to the other JAB portfolio companies offset by a
$15.3 million income tax receivable due from taxing authorities as of January 3, 2021. No related party receivable nor related
party payablea was dued to JAB or other JAB portfolio companies as of January 2, 2022. The related party receivable amounts
were presented within Taxes receivable on the Consolidated Balance Sheet as of January 3, 2021.

The Company was party to a senior unsecured note agreement (“the original agreement”) with KK GP for an aggregate
principal amount of $283.1 million. In April 2019, the Company entered into an additional unsecured note with KK GP forff
$54.0 million (such notes together, the “Related Party Notes”). As of January 3, 2021, the outstanding amount of principal and
interest was $344.6 million. The Related Party Notes were paid off in full during the second quarter of fiscal 2021. The interest
expense for the fiscal years ended January 2, 2022, January 3, 2021, and December 29, 2019 was $10.4 million, $22.5 million
and $21.9 million, respectively.

The Company granted loans to employees of KKI, KKUK, KK Australia, KK Mexico and Insomnia Cookies forff the purchase
of shares in those subsidiaries. The loan balance was $4.4 million and $18.7 million as of January 2, 2022 and January 3, 2021,
respectively, and it is presented as a reductd ion from Shareholders’ equity on the Consolidated Balance Sheet.
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Note 16 — Revenue Recognition

Disaggregatie on of Revenues

Revenues are disaggregated as follff ows:

Fiscal Years Ended
January 2,
2022

January 3,
2021

December 29,
2019

Company Shops, DFD and Branded Sweet Treat Line.............................. $ 1,305,597 $1,014,790 $ 788,607
Mix and equipment revenue from franchisees ......................................... 47,869 70,320 124,198
Franchise royalties and other ............................................................... 30,925 36,926 46,603
Total net revenues .......................................................................................... $ 1,384,391 $1,122,036 $ 959,408

Other revenues include advertising fund contributions, rental income, development and franchise fees and licensing royalties
from Keurig related to Krispy Kreme brands coffee sales.

Contract Balances

Deferred revenue subject to ASC 606 and related receivables are as follows:

January 2,
2022

January 3,
2021 Balance Sheet Location

Trade receivablea s, net of allowances of
$896 and $1,437, respectively ............... $ 41,132 $ 39,624 Accounts receivables, net
Deferred revenue

Current ..................................... 17,458 16,045 Accrued liabia lities
Noncurrent ................................ 2,981 2,838 Other long-term obligations and deferred credits

$ 20,439 $ 18,883

Trade receivables at the end of each fiscal year relate primarily to payments dued for royalties, francff hise fees, advertising fees,
sale of products and licensing fees. Deferred revenue primarily represents the Company’s remaining performance obligations
under gift cards and franchise and development agreements for which consideration has been received or is receivable and is
generally recognized on a straight-line basis over the remaining term of the related agreement. The noncurrent portion of
deferred revenue primarily relates to the remaining performance obligations in the franchise and development agreements. Of
the deferred revenue balances as of January 3, 2021, $8.4 million was recognized as revenue in the fiscal year ended January 2,
2022. Of the deferred revenue balance as of December 29, 2019, $7.8 million was recognized as revenue in fiscal the year
ended January 3, 2021.

Transaction Price Allocated to Remaining Performance Obligations

Estimated revenue expected to be recognized in the future related to performance obligations that are either unsatisfied or
partially satisfied as of January 2, 2022 is as follows:

Fiscal year

2022 ........................................................................................................................................................................ $ 12,869
2023 ........................................................................................................................................................................ 2,654
2024 ........................................................................................................................................................................ 1,080
2025 ........................................................................................................................................................................ 1,218
2026 ........................................................................................................................................................................ 526
Thereafter ..................................................................................................................................... 2,092

$ 20,439

The estimated revenue in the tablea above relates to gift cards, consumer loyalty programs and franchise fees paid upfront which
are recognized over the life of the franchise agreement. The estimated revenue does not contemplate future issuances of gift
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cards nor benefits to be earned by members of consumer loyalty programs. The estimated revenue also does not contemplate
future franchise renewals or new franchise agreements forff shops for which a francff hise agreement or development agreement
does not exist as of January 2, 2022. The Company has applied the sales-based royalty exemption which permits exclusion of
variable consideration in the form of sales-based royalties from the disclosure of remaining performance obligations in the tablea
above.

Note 17 — Net Loss per Share

The following tablea presents the calculations of basic and diluted EPS:

Fiscal Years Ended

(in thousands, except share and per share amounts)
January 2,
2022

January 3,
2021

December 29,
2019

Net loss attributable to KrispyKK Kreme, Inc.............................................. $ (24,506) $ (64,301) $ (37,409)
Adjustment to net loss attributable to common shareholders ...... (1,468) (477) 278

Net loss attributable to common shareholders — Basic............................. $ (25,974) $ (64,778) $ (37,131)
Additional income attributed to noncontrolling interest dued to
subsidiary potential common shares.................................... (122) (10) (64)

Net loss attributable to common shareholders — Diluted .......................... $ (26,096) $ (64,788) $ (37,195)
Basic weighted average common shares outstanding................................ 147,654,548 124,987,370 124,987,370

Dilutive effecff t of outstanding common stock options and RSUs. — — —
Diluted weighted average common shares outstanding ............................. 147,654,548 124,987,370 124,987,370
Loss per share attributable to common shareholders:

Basic ...................................................................................... $ (0.18) $ (0.52) $ (0.30)
Diluted.................................................................................... $ (0.18) $ (0.52) $ (0.30)

Potential dilutive shares consist of unvested RSUs, calculated using the treasury stock method. The calculation of dilutive
shares outstanding excludes certain unvested RSUs granted under certain subsidiaries’ executive ownership plans and long-term
incentive plans, because their inclusion would have been antidilutive. Refer to Note 12, Share-based Compensation, to the
audited Consolidated Financial Statements for further information about the plans.

The following tablea summarizes the gross number of potential dilutive unvested RSUs excluded dued to antidilution (unadjusted
for the treasury stock method):

Fiscal Years Ended
January 2,
2022

January 3,
2021

December 29,
2019

KKI................................................................................................ 5,866,107 4,649,551 4,108,726
KKUK............................................................................................ — 404,568 416,068
Insomnia Cookies ............................................................................. — — 809
KK Australia .................................................................................................... — — —
KK Mexico....................................................................................................... — — —

The 2,817,398 KKI time-vested stock options were also excluded fromff the computations for the fiscal year ended January 2,
2022 due to antidilution.

Note 18 — Segment Reporting

The Company conducts business through the folff lowing three reportablea segments:

• U.S. and Canada: Includes all Company-owned operations in the U.S. and Canada, including Krispy Kreme and
Insomnia Cookies-branded shops, DFD, and the Branded Sweet Treat Line;

• International: Includes all KriK spy KremeKK ’s Company-owned operations in the U.K., Ireland, Australia, New Zealand and
Mexico; and
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• Marketkk Development: Includes franchiff se operations across the globe, as well as the Company-owned operations in Japaa n.

Unallocated corporate costs are excluded fromff the Company’s measurement of segment performance. These costs include
general corporate expenses.

Segment information is identified and prepared on the same basis that the CEO, the Company’s Chief Operating Decision
Maker (“CODM”), evaluates finaff ncial results, allocates resources and makes key operating decisions. The CODM allocates
resources and assesses performance based on geographya and line of business, which represents the Company’s operating
segments. The operating segments within the U.S. and Canada and International reportable segments have been evaluated and
combined into reportable segments because they have met the similar economic characteristics and qualitative aggregation
criteria set forth in the relevant accounting guidance.

The primary financial measures used by the CODM to evaluate the performance of its operating segments are net revenues and
segment Adjusted EBITDA. The following tablea s reconcile segment results to consolidated results reported in accordance with
GAAP. The accounting policies used for internal management reporting at the operating segments are consistent with those
described in Note 1, Description of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, to the audited Consolidated
Financial Statements. The Company manages its assets on a total company basis and the CODM does not review asset
information by segment when assessing performance or allocating resources. Consequently, the Company does not report total
assets by reportable segment.

The reportable segment results are as follows:

Fiscal Years Ended
January 2,
2022

January 3,
2021

December 29,
2019

Net revenues:
U.S. and Canada ............................................................................... $ 928,413 $ 782,717 $ 587,522
International .................................................................................... 332,995 230,185 223,115
Market Development ......................................................................... 122,983 109,134 148,771

Total net revenues ................................................................... $ 1,384,391 $ 1,122,036 $ 959,408

Fiscal Years Ended
January 2,
2022

January 3,
2021

December 29,
2019

Depreciee atiii on and amortizatiii on:
U.S. and Canada ............................................................................... $ 55,447 $ 43,056 $ 30,610
International .................................................................................... 36,139 30,438 25,188
Market Development ......................................................................... 2,042 2,304 3,464
Corporate ........................................................................................ 7,980 4,600 4,505

Total depreciation and amortization .......................................... $ 101,608 $ 80,398 $ 63,767
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Fiscal Years Ended
January 2,
2022

January 3,
2021

December 29,
2019

Segmee nt Adjusdd ted EBIEE TDA:
U.S. and Canada ............................................................................... $ 107,571 $ 91,574 $ 71,620
International .................................................................................... 81,422 44,554 53,252
Market Development ......................................................................... 40,824 39,060 51,574
Corporate ........................................................................................ (41,872) (29,754) (30,062)

187,945 145,434 146,384
Interest expense, net ......................................................................................... 32,622 34,741 38,085
Interest expense — related party(1) ................................................................... 10,387 22,468 21,947
Income tax expense .......................................................................................... 10,745 9,112 12,577
Depreciation and amortization expense ........................................................... 101,608 80,398 63,767
Share-based compensation ............................................................................... 22,923 11,601 10,741
Employer payroll taxes related to share-based compensation.......................... 2,044 — —
Other non-operating expense/(income), net(2) .................................................. 2,191 (1,101) (609)
New York City ft laff gship Hot Light Theater Shop opening(3) ........................... — 6,513 3,784
Strategic initiatives(4) ........................................................................................ — 20,517 4,059
Acquisition and integration expenses(5)............................................................ 5,255 12,679 20,433
Shop closure expenses(6)................................................................................... 2,766 6,269 629
Restructuring and severance expenses(7) .......................................................... 1,733 — 583
IPO-related expenses(8)..................................................................................... 14,534 3,184 —
Gain on sale-leaseback ..................................................................................... (8,673) — —
Other(9).............................................................................................................. 4,653 (7) 4,389
Net Loss ........................................................................................................... $ (14,843) $ (60,940) $ (34,001)

1. Consists of interest expense related to the Related Party Notes which were paid off in full during the second quarter of
fiscal 2021.

2. Primarily foreign translation gains and losses in each period.
3. Consists of pre-opening costs related to the Company’s New York City flagship Hot Light Theater Shop opening,

including shop design, rent, and additional consulting and training costs incurred and reflected in Selling, general and
administrative expenses.

4. Consists mainly of consulting and advisory fees, personnel transition costs, and network conversion and set-up costs
related to the evolution of the Company’s legacy wholesale business in the U.S.

5. Consists of acquisition and integration-related costs in connection with the Company’s business and franchise
acquisitions, including legal, dued diligence, consulting and advisory fees incurred in connection with acquisition-related
activities forff the applicablea period.

6. Includes lease termination costs, impairment charges, and loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment.
7. Fiscal 2021 consists of severance and related benefits costs associated with the Company’s realignment of the Company

Shop organizational structuret to better support the DFD and Branded Sweet Treat Line businesses. Fiscal 2019 consists
of severance and related benefits costs associated with the Company’s hiring of a new global management team.

8. Includes consulting and advisory fees incurred in connection with preparation for and execution of the Company’s IPO.
9. Fiscal 2021 consists primarily of legal expenses incurred outside the ordinary course of business on matters described in

Note 14, Commitments and Contingencies, to the Company’s audited Consolidated Financial Statements. Fiscal 2020
consists primarily of fixed asset and impairment expenses, net of a gain on the sale of land, as well as $1.2 million of
management fees paid to JAB. Fiscal 2019 includes $3.1 million lease impairment expenses related to the Company’s
Winston-Salem office location incurred in connection with the Company’s corporate headquarters relocation to
Charlotte, North Carolina.
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Geographical information related to consolidated revenues and long-lived assets is as follows:

Fiscal Years Ended
January 2,
2022

January 3,
2021

December
29, 2019

Net revenues:
United States............................................................................ $ 955,384 $ 854,097 $ 696,841
United Kingdom....................................................................... 147,233 93,121 120,009
Australia / New Zealand............................................................. 99,582 78,677 86,734
Mexico ................................................................................... 77,831 53,085 8,991
All other.................................................................................. 104,361 43,056 46,833

Total net revenues ........................................................... $ 1,384,391 $ 1,122,036 $ 959,408

Fiscal Years Ended
January 2,
2022

January 3,
2021

December 29,
2019

Long-lived assets:
United States............................................................................ $ 684,790 $ 625,928 $ 565,933
United Kingdom....................................................................... 69,112 68,500 63,543
Australia / New Zealand............................................................. 61,155 59,656 54,003
Mexico ................................................................................... 30,944 23,094 20,965
All other.................................................................................. 28,085 17,765 4,290

Total long-lived assets ...................................................... $ 874,086 $ 794,943 $ 708,734

Total long-lived assets consist of Property at nd equipment, net and Operating lease right of use asset, net.

Note 19 — Subsequent Events

The Company evaluated subsequent events and transactions for potential recognition or disclosure in the Consolidated
Financial Statements through March 11, 2022, the date the Consolidated Financial Statements were availabla e to be issued. All
subsequentu events requiring recognition and disclosure have been incorporated into these Consolidated Financial Statements.

On February 9, 2022 the Company’s Board of Directors declared a $0.035 per share cash dividend payablea on May 11, 2022, to
shareholders of record on April 27, 2022.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”)) that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in Exchange
Act reports is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange
Commission’s rules and forms, and that such information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

As of January 2, 2022, we carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of our management,
including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our
disclosure controls and procedures. Based on the foregoing, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded
that our disclosure controls and procedures were effectff ive as of the end of the period covered by this Annual Report on Form
10-K.
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Management’s Annual Reportee on Intertt nalrr Control Over Financii ial Reportiee ngii

This Annual Report on Form 10-K does not include a report of management’s assessment regarding internal control over
financial reporting due to a transition period under the rules of the SEC for newly public companies.

Attett stationtt Reporee t of to hett Regie steii red Publicll Accountingii Firmii

This Annual Report on Form 10-K does not include an attestation report of our independent registered public accounting firm
due to a transition period under the rules of the SEC forff newly public companies.

Changes in Internaltt Controls over FinFF anciali Reportiee ngii

There were no changes during the fiscal quarter ended January 2, 2022 in our internal control over financial reporting (as
defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Exchange Act) that have materially affecff ted or are reasonably likely to materially affect our
internal control over financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information

None.

Item 9C. Disclosure Regarding Foreign Jurisdictions that Prevent Inspections

Not applicable.
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PART III

Item. 10 Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The information required by this item, including information about our Directors, Executive Officers and Audit Committee and
Code of Conduct, is incorporated by reference to the definiff tive Proxy Statement for our 2022 Annual Meeting of Shareholders,
which will be filed with the SEC no later than 120 days after January 2, 2022.

Item. 11 Executive Compensation

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the definitive Proxy Statement for our 2022 Annual
Meeting of Shareholders, which will be filed with the SEC no later than 120 days after January 2, 2022.

Item. 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the definitive Proxy Statement for our 2022 Annual
Meeting of Shareholders, which will be filff ed with the SEC no later than 120 days after January 2, 2022.

Item. 13 Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the definitive Proxy Statement for our 2022 Annual
Meeting of Shareholders, which will be filff ed with the SEC no later than 120 days after January 2, 2022.

Item. 14 Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the definitive Proxy Statement for our 2022 Annual
Meeting of Shareholders, which will be filff ed with the SEC no later than 120 days after January 2, 2022.
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PART IV

Item. 15 Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

List the Following Documents Filed as Part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K:

1. Financial Statements

See Index to Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

2. Financial Statement Schedules

All schedules have been omitted because they are not required or the required information is shown in the Consolidated
Financial Statements or notes thereto.

3. Exhibits

EXHIBIT NO. DESCRIPTION OF EXHIBIT

3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Registrant (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, File number 001-40573, filed on August 18, 2021, and incorporated by
reference herein)

3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Registrant (filed as Exhibit 3.2 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q, File number 001-40573, filed on August 18, 2021, and incorporated by reference herein)

4.1* Description of Capia tal Stock

10.1 Credit Agreement, dated June 13, 2019, by and among Cotton Parent, Inc., Krispy Kreme Doughnuts, Inc., the
other borrowers party thereto, the lenders party thereto and Citibank, N.A. as administrative agent and collateral
agent (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1/A, File number 333-256664,
filed on June 22, 2021, and incorporated by reference herein)

10.2 Note Subscriptu ion Agreement, dated April 15, 2019, by and between Krispy Kreme, Inc. (f/k/a Krispy Kreme
HoldCo, Inc.) and KK GP as Initial Holder (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Registration Statement on
Form S-1/A, File number 333-256664, filed on June 22, 2021, and incorporated by reference herein)

10.3 Note Subscriptu ion Agreement, dated April 15, 2019, by and between Krispy Kreme, Inc. (f/k/a Krispy Kreme
HoldCo, Inc.) and KK GP as Initial Holder (filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Registration Statement on
Form S-1/A, File number 333-256664, filed on June 22, 2021, and incorporated by reference herein)

10.4† Krispy Kreme, Inc. 2021 Omnibus Incentive Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.8 to the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1/A, File number 333-256664, filed on June 22, 2021, and incorporated by reference
herein)

10.5*† Form of Indemnification Agreement between the Registrant and each of its Executive Officers and Directors
(filed as Exhibit 10.5 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1/A, File number 333-256664, filed
on June 22, 2021, and incorporated by reference herein)

10.6* Investors’ Rights Agreement by and among Krispy Kreme, Inc., JAB Holdings B.V. and the Holders Listed on
Schedule A thereto, dated as of July 6, 2021.

10.7† Employment Agreement with Michael Tattersfield (filed as Exhibit 10.10 to the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1/A, File number 333-256664, filed on June 22, 2021, and incorporated by reference
herein)

10.8† Employment Agreement with Josh Charlesworth (filed as Exhibit 10.11 to the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1/A, File number 333-256664, filed on June 22, 2021, and incorporated by reference
herein)

10.9 Term Loan Agreement, dated June 10, 2021, among Krispy Kreme Holdings, Inc., as borrower, the lenders
party thereto, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative agent, and Morgan Stanley Senior Funding, Inc.
and Santander Bank, N.A., as joint lead arrangers and joint bookrunners (filed as Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s
Registration Statement on Form S-1/A, File number 333-256664, filed on June 22, 2021, and incorporated by
reference herein)
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10.10† Form of Share Repurchase Agreement (filed as Exhibit 10.7 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form
S-1/A, File number 333-256664, filed on June 22, 2021, and incorporated by reference herein)

10.11† Employee Stock Purchase Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.9 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1/A,
File number 333-256664, filed on June 22, 2021, and incorporated by reference herein)

10.12 Master Amendment No.1, dated as of July 8, 2021, among Cotton Parent, Inc., KrispyKK Kreme Doughnuts, Inc.,
the other guarantors party tt hereto, the lenders party tt hereto and Citibank, N.A., as administrative agent (filed as
Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, File number 001-40573, filed on July 13, 2021,
and incorporated by reference herein)

10.13 Joinder to Credit Agreement, dated as of July 8, 2021, between Krispy Kreme, Inc. and Citibank, N.A., as
administrative agent (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, File number
001-40573, filed on July 13, 2021, and incorporated by reference herein)

10.14† Krispy Kreme Holdings, Inc. Long-Term Incentive Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.12 to the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1/A, File number 333-256664, filed on June 22, 2021, and incorporated by reference
herein)

10.15† Award Under the Krispy Kreme Holdings, Inc. Long-Term Incentive Plan Restricted Stock Unit Grant Notice
(filed as Exhibit 10.13 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1/A, File number 333-256664, filed
on June 22, 2021, and incorporated by reference herein)

10.16† Stock Option Award Terms and Conditions Under KrispyK Kreme Holdings, Inc. Long-Term Incentive Plan
(filed as Exhibit 10.14 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1/A, File number 333-256664, filed
on June 22, 2021, and incorporated by reference herein)

10.17† Restricted Stock Unit Award Terms and Conditions Under KrispyK Kreme Holdings, Inc. Long-Term Incentive
Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.15 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1/A, File number 333-256664,
filed on June 22, 2021, and incorporated by reference herein)

10.18† Krispy Kreme Holdings, Inc. Executive Ownership Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.16 to the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1/A, File number 333-256664, filed on June 22, 2021, and incorporated by reference
herein)

10.19† Matching Award under the KrisKK py Kreme Holdings, Inc. Executive Ownership Plan Restricted Stock Unit Grant
Notice (filed as Exhibit 10.17 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1/A, File number
333-256664, filed on June 22, 2021, and incorporated by reference herein)

21.1* List of Subsidiaries

23.1* Consent of Grant Thornton LLP, an Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

31.1* Certification of Chief Executive Officer of KrispyK Kreme, Inc. pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a)
promulgated under the Exchange Act

31.2* Certification of Chief Financial Officer of Krispy Kreme, Inc. pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a)
promulgated under the Exchange Act

32.1** Certifications of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of Krispy Kreme, Inc. pursuant to Rule
13a-14(b) or 15d-14(b) promulgated under the Exchange Act, and Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the
United States Code

101* The following financial statements fromff the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
January 2, 2022, formatted in Inline XBRL: (i) Consolidated Statements of Operations, (ii) Consolidated
Statements of Comprehensive Income/(Loss), (iii) Consolidated Balance Sheets, (iv) Consolidated Statements of
Changes in Shareholders’ Equity, (v) Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, and (vi) Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements

104* Cover Page Interactive Data File (formatted as inline XBRL and contained in Exhibit 101)

______________________ ____________ ____________ ___
* Filed herewith.
** Furnished herewith.
† Compensatory plan or arrangement.

Item 16. Form 10-K Summary

None.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 of 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has dulyd caused this
Annual Report on Form 10-K to be signed on its behalf of the undersigned, thereunto dulyd authorized.

Date: March 11, 2022

Krispy Kreme, Inc.

By: /s/ Michael Tattersfield
Name: Michael Tattersfieldff
Title: Chief Executive Offiff cer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1934, this Annual Report on Form 10-K has been signed by the following
persons in the capacities indicated as of March 11, 2022.

Signatureg Title

/s/ Michael Tattersfield Director, President and Chief Executive Offiff cer
Michael Tattersfield (Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ Josh Charlesworth Chief Operating Offiff cer and Chief Financial Officer
Josh Charlesworth (Principal Financial Officer)

/s/ Joey Pruitt Chief Accounting Officer
Joey Pruitt (Principal Accounting Officer)

/s/ Olivier Goudet Director, Chairman of the Board
Olivier Goudet

/s/ Paul Michaels Director
Paul Michaels

/s/ David Bell Director
David Bell

/s/ Patricia Capela Director
Patricia Capel

/s/ Ozan Dokmecioglu Director
Ozan Dokmecioglu

/s/ David Deno Director
David Deno

/s/ Carl E. Lee, Jr. Director
Carl E. Lee, Jr.

/s/ Debbie Roberts Director
Debbie Roberts
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/s/ Lubomira Rochet Director
Lubou mira Rochet

/s/ Michelle Weese Director
Michelle Weese

/s/ Henry Yeagley Director
Henry Yeagley

/s/ Marissa Andrada Director
Marissa Andrada
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